MINUTES
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING
MAY 4, 1987

The Vanderburgh County Board of Commissioners met in session at
2:30 p.m. on Monday, May 4, 1987, in the Commissioners Hearing
Room with President Rick Borries presiding.

Since it was the first meeting of the month, Cpl. Tom Brandsasse
(representing Sheriff Shepard) called the meeting to order and
declared the Board of Commissioners in session pursuant to
adjournment.

The meeting proceeded with President Borries welcoming those in
attendance at today's session.

President Borries entertained comments, corrections, or a motion
to approve minutes of meeting held on April 27th.

Commissioner Cox said the only question she has concerns the
spelling of the Browning Estates developer's last name on Pages 6
and 7. Mr. Wittekindt confirmed the correct spelling of his
name,

With aforementioned correction, motion was made by Commissioner
Cox that the minutes of April 27th be approved as engrossed by
the County Auditor and the reading of same be waived, with a
second from Commissioner Willner. So ordered.

RE: HEARING ON "B" STREET UNDERPASS

President Borries said the Board had advertised a Public Hearing
to be held today on the "B" Street Underpass proposal. He will
make brief comments and then turn this portion of the meeting
over to County Engineer Andy Easley. For many years, the
residents on the west side have been concerned about access over
railroad tracks —-- particularly for emergency vehicles -- near
the area of the Expressway. This has been of concern for a long
time by the residents in the area. The Board looked at several
options and, after conferring with the engineer, the "B" Street
Underpass has been an option that is being given a great deal of
consideration at this point to alleviate the traffic and the
problems that the residents in the area have experienced.
President Borries then asked County Engineer Andy Easley for his
comments and requested that he introduce the representative from
Hayes, Seay, Mattern & Mattern (consultants in the "B" Street
Underpass matter).

Mr. Easley said the residents of the area have requested the
Commissioners to select the "B" Street location. He would like
to inform them that the proposed width of the street going into
the underpass area will be 46 ft. in front of the residents on
"B" Street and then it narrows down to 30 ft. under the underpass
and stays until it comes up to Broadway. A 60 ft. radius is
proposed at Broadway. The underpass will have a standard 14-1/2
ft. clearance under the underpass super structure. The maximum
height of the retaining wall at the east end of the block that
contains the houses on the west side of the railroad track -is
approximately 6 ft. high. There will be some stairs in front of
four (4) houses. He thinks that is really all he can say about
the project. There will be curb, gutter and sidewalk on both
sides and there will be a large pumping station. The Project
Engineer he has been working with from Hayes, Seay, Mattern &
Mattern out of Roanoke, VA is Scott Hodge. He is here and will
be glad to answer any questions, such as how long it will take to
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build the underpass, etc. He asked that Mr. Hodge join him at
the easel. Mr. Easley said the construction of the roadway will
use the 60 ft. right-of-way on "B" Street and no additional
right-of-way will be acquired. We may need some temporary
right-of-way to build the 6 ft. high retaining wall in front of
the houses. They have to put in a footing and will have to cut
off 3 ft. of the residents' property and then backfill 3 ft. in
front of the wall. We will have to obtain an easement from
whomever owns the property.

The traffic counts on this road are projected to be around 1,100
cars per day or less. That is not a heavily traveled road. It
will no longer be the equivalent of a cul-de-sac, that is true.
But it will not be turned into a First Avenue or Green River Rd.
by any shape of the imagination, The residents can still park
parallel to the curb in front of their property. He has noticed
that some cars now pull in at right angles to the right-of-way
and this will not be possible after the underpass is built.

An unidentified resident asked if Mr. Easley can guarantee the
traffic count during the months people are traveling to/from
their summer camps and in the fall when the grain trucks come in.

Mr. Easley said the Evansville Urban Transportation Study had
their counters at numerous locations and determined that the ADT
(Average Daily Traffic) was 1,100 vehicles or less and this is
the ADT they use to design road facilities. Basically, the
people that are going to town -- if they are pulling a boat and
trailer -- he is going to say that if no one is blocking the
Claremont Crossing, they are coming the shortest distance between
two points in a straight line and they are not going to drive a U
to get under that railroad track. If there is a train there,
they will probably go down "B" Street.

Another unidentified resident asked if there will be a stoplight
at the end of "B" Street and Barker?

Mr. Easley responded that this is not under Mr. Hodge's
jurisdiction and the City doesn't really have a full time Traffic
Engineer now, so he (Easley) hasn't asked EUTS that question. He
is going to say that 1,100 cars per day probably will not warrant
a traffic light. But this is just a gquess.

President Borries asked that for purposes of the record here, it
is going to be very difficult for Joanne Matthews, the secretary,
to have minutes of this proceeding unless people come forward and
identify himself/herself for the record. Two questions have
already been asked. Will others who have questions please
approach the podium and identify themselves.

Ms. Lotti L. Potts said she resides at 2822 "B" Street in the
middle of the block. She would like to know how she is going to
turn around to go back to Barker when she would be going out of
her way to go the other way to turn around and go back to Barker?

Mr. Easley said his response would be that normally, when you're
parked parallel on streets, the Traffic Department normally
frowns on "U" turns in the middle of the block. She is probably
going to have to drive around the super block, which means she
may have to go up to Broadway and make a left turn and go out
Claremont.

Ms. Potts said, "That is driving out of the way."

Mr. Easley said, "I understand that; I understand that.
Remember, this location was chosen because of the Petitions
signed by 500 people and submitted to the Commissioners. They
really wanted this location and they felt it would the most
flood-free location and it is for the benefit of the majority of
people who will be using it. ‘

Ms. Potts asked, "Why don't they just buy the houses and do it
right then?"
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Mr. Easley responded, "I can't answer that question.”

Ms. Potts said, "I don't have any children, I have grown boys.
But several residents on the block have little children and it is
really going to be sort of hectic for them. If I live there, I
will make a U Turn -- I won't lie to you."

Mr. Easley said, "The street is going to be of such a width that
I don't anticipate there will be parking on the north side of the
pavement. It is going to be 46 ft. wide. 1If the traffic
permits, I think you could probably get away with making U turns
-- but I'm not advocating it."

Ms. Potts then asked, "Have you noticed how bad the houses are
down in there?"

Mr. Easley asked, "What do you mean by 'bad'?"

Ms. Potts said, "They are falling in. Now I'm just starting to
remodel mine -- and I'm down to my kitchen now. And I ain't
going to do no more work on it until I know if it's going to be
tore up or not. As you know, the machinery will rock the boat
and stuff like that when you're digging up, etc., and I'm not
going to do no more work until I know for sure that my job is

going to stay corrected -— I'm on a fixed income and I'm down to
my kitchen. So it makes a little predicament there....so what do
you say, do it -- or don't do it?"

Mr. Easley said no blasting will be done -- pile driving is

minimal and should not disturb the houses.
Mrs. Potts asked, "You think so?"

Mr. Easley said, "I think so. If the pile driving operation
damages houses —- the contractors are building the Lloyd
Expressway and they have procedures whereby if they damage
somebody's property, they have insurance for that.”

Mr. Kent Coleman approached the podium and said he resides at
2818 "B" Street. "We have various questions to ask and I'd like
to submit some petitions with signatures of residents of every
house except three; no one is living in one house and they were
unable to contact people at the other homes. They would ask that
the Commissioners consider a different route or buy their
property. They are worried about a property value drop; the 6
ft. wall is coming down in front of their houses. Who is going
to want to buy a house with a wall in front of it? With the load
of traffic that will be coming through there in grain season and
the people going to/from the river camps, etc., nine times out of
ten you will pass the Claremont Crossing -- that is where the
trains are going across, so they are going to be coming around.
There is not going to be a light down there, so how are they
going to get around. The residents should not be penalized for a
road to come through there -- or have to turn around and take a
chance going across the railroad tracks in the first place. That
is what these people are trying to get away from. Why should we
be penalized? We're worried about added traffic for our
children. We have young children as well as elderly citizens.

We have one man (where the deepest part will be) who is going to
have steps in front of his house. He has some health problems
and won't be able to climb the steps. We want to know what the
construction damage will be to our houses -- our plaster walls.
Ninety-nine percent of the houses down there do not have dry
walls, they have plaster walls -- and who is going to pay for the
repairs? What about parking during construction period -- when
the road is being torn up? We have water line and gas lines
underneath there. We want to know what is going to happen to our
taxes, because we have a new road and new sidewalk down through
there? 1Is it going to affect our taxes? Not only are we going
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to have to suffer a drop in property value but will we have to
suffer by paying higher taxes also? You mentioned that there
will also be a pumping station. I believe the Ray Becker Parkway
also has a pumping station and a lot of times during the rainy
season the Ray Becker Parkway is flooded and can't be used. We
want to know about the foundations. A lot of those houses were
built back during the 1930's and those foundations aren't just
maybe what they should be. I have a room on the back of my house
that used to be a porch and it has been added in. 1It's on a
brickbat foundation. I work for Wilhite Supply company down on
Division Street, where they were doing pile driving. They are
not even doing the pile driving close -to us —-—- it's about half to
three quarters of a block down the road and it is already shaking
mortar loose from the bricks down there. We want to know if our
houses are going to be able to withstand that kind of a change?
We're worried about the elderly who are down there. Will they
have trouble getting out? Parking during the construction period
is going to be almost impossible. It is going to cost us --
There are several houses that don't have room; I, myself, have
room where I can maybe put some rock down in the back and get .
through from "B" Street; but many others don't have this -- and
it is going to cost me to put a driveway in. There is going to
be a lot of inconvenience during construction. We want to know
how dangerous it is going to be for the elderly to get to the bus
stop down at the end of the blocks --especially with no traffic
signal or way to get across? Our kids will have to go to the end
of the block to catch the school buses and we want to know what
is going to happen there?-- Especially in the morning when shool
buses come through there and stop the traffic as they come along
-- sometime you have to wait at the end of "B" Street and Barker
for as long as five to ten minutes if you don't get out before
the bus comes through. Several times when I haven't gotten away
from the house on time there have been periods of waiting. How
is this going to affect our waiting, with these people coming in
also down from Ohio Township maybe come down into the downtown
area? We want to know about the steps you're talking about
putting in on snow days. Who is going to be responsible for
cleaning those? Will that be up to us? Or will the city clean
them? The trucks and traffic noise is going to increase. We
want to know how the road is going to be kept in condition. We
want to know about mail delivery during construction. When the
river is up it won't be able to get any higher than the Hybrid
Inn anyhow. We still don't understand why we have to be
penalized through all these different things because 500 people
want it to come down that way. If you're going to do it, do it
right. Buy the houses and put something up where it is not going
to affect us. It is of no use to us if we're going to have to go
down and come back around. That house of mine, I bought it just
right after I was married. We didn't have any children. I have
one boy now and the house is getting kind of small for us --
we're going to outgrow it. I bought it as kind of an investment
-- getting into the credit line -- to where I am going to be able
to sell this house and make a small profit off it to put down on
the next bigger house as my family increases. But if it is going
to drop my property values to where I can't even get out of it
what I owe, how am I going to better myself? And what we want to
know is, why should we be penalized jut because of these people?
We're petitioning you (petitions presented to President Borries)
because we don't think we ought to be penalized. We're not
against the road or those people to have a way to come out and
come downtown and get into the city without having the hassle of
a railroad track or anything else like that. We're asking you to
buy the houses or take a different route.”

President Borries thanked Mr. Coleman for his comments and said
that, for the record, we'll show that two pages of petitions were
submitted to the Board. Persons who signed it either reside on
"B" Street and, in at least one instance, on a nearby street.
Said petitions will be entered into the record at this time.
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Ms. Carol James approached the podium and stated she resides at
2828 "B" street. "I think Kent has pretty well covered most of
our complaints, but I would like to highlight a couple of things.
Correct me if I am wrong, but I think you said when you first
began, Mr. Borries, that this has been a problem for many years
-— and this is true. This is why the Ray Becker Parkway and
Dixie Flyer were built., It was supposed to correct the problem
but it did not. I feel that we're suffering from poor planning
in the past. A lot of us do have young children; we do have Deig
Bros. across the street which has created problems for many years
and we've fought but it hasn't done any good. It is a one-block
street. When Deig Bros. is closed they can get out on their
bicycles. We don't have very large yards to begin with, so this
is going to cause problems. When the Ray Becker Parkway was
built we had a problem with equipment not being stored properly
when not in use. My daughter was one of the children who climbed
into a hole and got stuck and we had to call the Fire

Department. What is going to happen now? Where is the equipment
going to be stored while it is not in use after working hours and
on weekends? We're going to have all this heavy equipment. I'm.
familiar with construction equipment as my Dad is a heavy
equipment operator, so I know what we're going to be dealing
with. How is this going to affect our children? It will be
dangerous to them. So this is one of my main concerns -- and I
think Kent has pretty well covered what everyone else feels."

Mr. Carl Dunn approached the podium and stated he resides at 2112
"B® Street. "You said it's been a problem for years for Union
Township to get through. We had a way once and the city let it
get torn down -- the viaduct. Now they want to come through and
decrease the value of our houses and put more traffic there --
which will be more dangerous to our children. Why didn't they
just fix up the viaduct instead of doing all this? This is a
thought. I'm just saying that adding steps to my house is going
to make it rough for me to get up and down and I feel that I
shouldn't suffer anymore so Union Township can get around,
because at one time they had an exit and the city let it go.
That's all I got to say."

Mr. Easley entertained further questions or comments.

Mr. Dave Williams approached the podium and said he is a west
sider. "How high is the entrance?"

Mrs. Cox said Mr. Easley stated there was a 14-1/2 ft. clearance.
Mr. Williams said that is all he wanted to know.

President Borries said he doesn't know whether Mr. Easley or Mr.
Hodge have any response to the questions raised thus far. 1If
they do, maybe the Board needs to hear those at this time.
Further, the Commissioners might have some questions of their
own.

Mr. Easley said the only response he could have would be that any
contractors who have the capability to build a facility like this
is an experienced, responsible contractor and he will be bonded
and will be working under the jurisdiction of the Consulting
Engineer and the Railroad and the County and the Board of Public
Works —-- and he feels reasonably sure that it will be done in a
safe manner. It will be done in a manner that will keep{
inconvenience to the citizen of the block to a minimum. The
street has to be lowered in order to be paved at the lower
elevation. "I cannot guarantee that you can drive or park in
front of your house everyday. You may have to walk half a block
for a while. It has to be done in stages. I lived in a
community years ago that got its first underpass and they had
prayed and wished and persuaded and bribed to get that underpass
and it went through fairly smoothly. It had massive walls very
similar to the ones in Diamond Avenue. In my opinion, this is
going to have little more impact on the property values in the
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area. I'm not going to try to say what it is going to do to the
property values. I think that will have to be addressed when we
get to another point in this project.”

Mr. Jack Coleman of 1403 Jackson was recognized by the Chair.

"It is all very well for you people to be so certain that you are
not going to do any damage. But you haven't addressed the
concerns of these people as to the children, the elderly -- as to
the amount of traffic, as to the noise, dust, dirt -- I don't
think you have any concerns for these people at all. I think
you're trying to rush something through here. There was very
little concern as to letting people know when this meeting was
going to be held. Everybody was hoping you'd get around to it at
4:00 p.m. and it was the first thing on the agenda. I think it
is just another political deal.”

Mr. Easley said he'd like to respond to Mr. Coleman's comments.
We had a press release which stated that this hearing would be at
2:30 -- the Press Release said 2:30 p.m., did it not?

Mr. Coleman said the release said the Commissioners Meeting
started at 2:30 p.m. and there was a possibility that they would
not get to the hearing before 4:00 p.m. So, in other words, we
tried to keep a certain amount of people interested in the
hearing away.

Mr. Easley said we thought about putting a legal ad in the paper.
"I heard it on WIKY twice this morning before breakfast. People
were notified via the Press Release."

Ms. Velsa Saalwachter approached the podium and stated she
resides on the north side of "B" Street. "I am the only resident
on the north side and I am just wondering, do you not take
anything off the north side of the street?"

Mr. Easley responded, "The construction of the project doesn't
require the taking of any right-of-way."

Ms. Saalwachter said, "I mean the yards."

Mr. Easley said, "No, we won't bother your yards insofar as any
permanent taking. And there will be no retaining wall for your
yard."

Ms. Saalwachter said, "I didn't think there would be, but I was
just wondering if that would do anything to my front yard."

Mr. Easley said, "I don't believe so; you'll get a new sidewalk
on "B" Street. on both sides."

Ms. Saalwachter said she hopes it comes down in front of her
house.

President Borries asked Mr. Easley if he would want to ask Scott
Hodge to offer comments?

Mr. Hodge said he would give a brief overview of the project as
it has been laid out. "We're starting at mid-point on "B" Street
and going down to the 14 ft. 6 inch clearance until we intersect
with an 8 degree curve at Broadway Avenue. Broadway Avenue will
be lowered approximately 5 ft. There will be a temporary detour
in place for approximately 30 days on Broadway Avenue for those
people who travel down Broadway, to accommodate the undercut on
Broadway. Once that is in place, the temporary detour on SIGECO
property will be taken out and you'll travel on Broadway as it
should exist in the future. The bridge type structures will be
reinforced concrete structures with steel plate through girders
over the top of the roadway with 14 f£t. 6 inch minimum burms.
You'll have two side slopes, so you won't have any retaining
walls through the area around the railroad structure. There will
be a pumping station located between the two structures. From
that point, the pumping station will pump from a 12 inch forced
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main down to Broadway Avenue and down to the southwest corner of
the SIGECO property and on out into the Ohio River. The property
damage should be minimal. Retaining walls will range from 0 to 6
ft. and there will be four sets of steps. The highest set of
steps will consist of eight (8) steps and the lowest will consist
of three (3). The tracks that have supplied SIGECO in the past
will be removed, as shown on the right-hand side of the drawing.
I believe that pretty much entails the scope of the project as we
know it today.

A gentleman from the audience offered comment, but it was
inaudible because he was speaking from whence he was seated.

Mr. Hodge responded, "Well, Sir, all we're talking about as far
as Broadway Avenue is in the area of the vicinity shown.

Commissioner Borries said, "Again, Sir, we need to conduct an
orderly meeting. If you'd like to come up and give your name for
the record, we'd surely appreciate it -- as we'd like to get
everyone on record at this point." -

Mr. Lawrence Lowe approached the podium and identified himself
and said he is with the West Side Improvement Association. He
would like to know how we're going to go down Broadway where it
is already closed off and has been closed off for years.

Mr. Hodge said he will address the question if Mr. Lowe will just
explain to him what he is asking, since he (Hodge) is not from
Evansville,

Mr. Lowe said, "The railroad runs across Broadway."

Mr. Easley said, "I think he's talking about the Dixie Flyer that
goes down Broadway.

Mr. Lowe asked what good it is going to do to go down Broadway?

Mr. Hodge said designated area of Broadway Avenue needs to be
lowered approximately 5 ft. for the detour, because for that
distance it is not substantial to come from underneath these
bridge structures to Broadway Avenue as it exists today.

Mr. Lowe asked, "Well, that is not going to help them out on "B"
Street. Where is the detour going to help them out any?"

Mr. Hodge said, "Well, the detour is not for "B" Street -- it's
for the traffic on Broadway Avenue."

Mr. Lowe asked, you mean on the north side of it?

Mr. Easley said there are coal trucks and tankers that take
petroleum products that go south on Broadway, Sir. So it has to
be kept open. If it is cut off, you'd have to go all the way to
Dogtown to come back to Hybrid Inn.

Mr. Lowe said they have to cross the railroad tracks to get over
on Broadway.

Mr. Easley said they have to come up from the south.

Mr. Lowe said, "I can't see that it is going to do them any good
to detour via Broadway Avenue -- and the trucks ain't gonna go
Broadway south because of the railroad tracks. You're talking
about Dixie Flyer and I don't know what you're calling the Dixie
Flyer -- the back road behind the railroad?”

Mr.Easley asked, "You know where the L&N Offices are?"
Mr. Lowe said, "I certainly do, I worked there.”

Mr. Easley said if you want to go to the Hybrid Inn you take that
bg-pass around there. 1It's a matter of terminology -- we call it
the Dixie Flyer. We're all talking about the same thing.
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Mrs. Cox said, "He's not talking about Dixie Flyer on that map
though, Andy. He's talking about Broadway."”

Mr. Lowe said the L&N railroad is south of the elevators and
everything -- it's south of where it comes off there.

Mr. Easley said, "It's Broadway Avenue until the Seaboard
Offices, right?"

Mr. Lowe said the trucks coming off Claremont go to the left --
they don't go to the right.

President Borries called for order and thanked Mr. Lowe for his
comments. If Mr. Lowe has specific comments, he can put those in
writing to Mr. Easley and we will be glad to respond to those.
Mr. Lowe's concern is appreciated and his vigilance on this
matter. If he will put his comments in writing, we'll certainly
want to take those under consideration.

Ms. Bertha Bergdorf was recognized by the Chair. She said she is
a taxpayer and her question is, "How many times are the taxpayers
going to be paying for mistakes that somebody else made? 1In
other words, whoever took out the viaduct should have to put
something through to let those people out. It shouldn't be the
taxpayer over and over."

Commissioner Borries thanked Mrs. Bergdorf for her question and
then entertained comments from the Commissioners.

Commissioner Cox said, "Mr. President, on a memo we received
February 12, 1987, there were several different questions posed
and there was to be some discussion taking place. Just for the
record and for everyone's information, I think we should enter it
into the record if we do have definite answers on these gquestions
that were posed. One was that the railroad raised the question
about closing the crossing at Claremont Avenue. I want to know
if a decision has been reached with the railroad company that
Claremont Avenue, because we are building "B" Street now, is it
going to be closed or will it remain open? We'll take these one
at a time.

Mr. Easley responded, "Mrs. Cox, Mr. Hodge was at that meeting
when that question was raised and their only reply was that we
are sure that the Board of Works and the County Commissioners
would want to have a lot of input into any discussions concerning
the possible closing of Claremont. And I was of the opinion that
it should be left open if at all possible, unless there were
great cries of increased safety from the standpoint that it was a
high accident crossing. I have not heard of any accidents at
that crossing, but that was my comment and I think the minutes
should reflect that. Other than that, it has not been brought up
again and I am not sure as to what the procedure is as to how you
legally go about closing a crossing. Does the railroad have the
right to arbitrarily close it?"

Mr. Hodge said they are going to meet with the railroad within
the next two weeks to discuss this particular set of preliminary
plans and, at that point, he is sure they will bring up the fact
that as an alternative they would like to close Claremont Avenue.
At that point, that is when HSM&M will get involved in getting
Mr. Easley linked up with the railroad people to discuss this
particular point. They have not made any sort of formal comment
as far as saying they would want to close it, they just said it
was a possibility that their main office might request that this
be done. So nothing formal has been done at this point.

Commissioner Cox said, "You just might want to stay up there, Mr.
Hodge. I think you addressed this, but the railroad was asked
about the maximum degree of the curvature on the detour and they
responded that it should be an 8 degree -- preferably a 10 degree
-—- maximum. Did I understand you to say that the plan calls for
an 8 degree curvature?”
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Mr. Hodge replied, "Yes Ma'm, but that is on a different
subject. The 8 degree is the roadway, which is by actual
guidelines. What we talked about was actual detour railroad
track, in which we have followed the criteria, which is a CSX
criteria.”

Mrs. Cox said, "And there was the possibility of a fenced-in area
on the northwest side of Broadway that was suggested to be used
as a possible contractor's storage and staging area."”

Mr. Hodge said, "Yes, Ma'm, that is true. The contractor's
storage area is on the north side to the west of Broadway Avenue
-- now that is with the approval of the SIGECO Power Company
because they own that particular fenced-in area."”

Mrs. Cox asked, "I know you said that there would be a pumping
station located on this proposed underpass. We have one at Ray
Becker and it does flood. So if people's cars are parked down
there (see, there is no parking on Ray Becker) -- sometimes there®
is as much as 3-4 ft. of water or deeper that comes up at Ray
Becker, we're talking about damage -- if we're going to allow
parking to occur down there. Is the capacity of these pumps
stronger or greater than Ray Becker, or have you made a
comparison or what?2"

Mr. Hodge said, "The first thing is, the comparison needs to be
made of how much area needs to be drained. Ray Becker Parkway
has several more lanes and a lot more area than the "B" Street
Underpass area. Right now, in preliminary stages, we have
estimated that the pump station will be at least as large as that
of Ray Becker Parkway —-- so that should tell you something right
there. It should be able to handle the capacity. What we need
to do is be sure that we design for storm frequency that is high
enough to assure that there is no property damage to the people.
Instead of designing for a five or ten year storm, we should
design for something like around 25 year to 50 year storm., That
is something that needs to be discussed with your office."”

Commissioner Cox said this concludes her questions.

Commissioner Willner said, "I just have one thing -- and that is
dollars. I see by your estimate here that the dollars
($1,971,043.00) do you think that is a high figure and that the
bids will actually come in at somewhat under that?"

Mr. Hodge said, "I would say there is a possibility that the bids
'will come in at slightly under that -- yes. Based on the
possibility of the relocation of fiber optic cables it probably
is not going to cost $50,000, but can't grant that in writing due
to the fact that we have not discussed it with the engineers from
U.S. Sprint as to what the actual cost will be. That was only a
telephonic estimate.”

Commissioner Willner said, "I guess the second question is, the
track leading into the SIGECO plant -- is that going to be
completely taken away from Broadway and brought in from the
northern end? Or, is that going to be relocated there?"

Mr. Hodge said, "I will comment that it is to be removed and I
will let Mr. Easley comment on where it will be placed.”

Mr. Easley asked, "Are we talking about the replacement track?"
Commissioner Willner said, "Yes."

Mr. Easley said, "SIGECO has indicated that they are probably
going to request -- instead of our spending money to re-lay track
so they will have railroad access - that they be given the cash
and they will decide later how they want to put railroad siding
to that property. I think there is a letter to this effect being
written to the Commissioners.”
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Commissioner Borries said that unless anyone has closing remarks
at this time in regard to this matter..ee.e.

Ms. Potts was again recognized by the Chair. She approached the
podium and asked, "If you're going to give SIGECO all that money,
why don't they just buy our damn houses? That's a bunch of

crap. They get almost all of my check just for the electric
bill. I just think it's a bunch of bull crap.”

President Borries thanked Ms. Potts for her comments. He said,
"Where we are is that we of this Commission have proceeded very
carefully on this matter for a number of years. Our decision of
today -- and, of course, the purpose of this meeting was to
receive an update from the consultant and design engineering firm
regarding this particular matter and to take your concerns under
advisement at this time -- which we want to do. We will try to
answer your questions as best we can once we are able to get this
testimony and, certainly, we will be in contact with you. That _
is our concern. At this point we do not want to make more
mistakes. Obviously, whatever mistakes and concerns that you
have at this time -- it is certainly our utmost concern that we
want to avoid those kinds of mistakes and proceed through this
matter, not only officially, but certainly as tax efficient as we
possibly can. We are concerned about you and these matters you
brought up today and we will try to get answers for you. As we
go, we will be in contact with you regarding those answers. I
want to thank you for coming today. I thank Mr. Hodge for
representing his firm and Mr. Easley. Again, if you'd like
copies of the minutes of this meeting, they will be available
from our County Commission Office. As you have additional things
you might think of, please stay in touch with us. Again, thank
you very much."

President Borries declared a five (5) minute recess at 3:30 p.m.

de &k % ke & Kk Kk ok Kk Kk %k

The meeting reconvened at 3:37 p.m. and was called to order by
President Borries.

RE: REQUEST FOR WAIVER OF CURB & GUTTERS IN BROWNING ROAD
ESTATES, SECTION "D" ‘

President Borries said Mr. Bill Wittekindt is present today to
request waiver of curb and gutters in Browning Road Estates,
Section "D". This matter was continued from last week.

Mr. Wittekindt said he has re-evaluated the situation since last
week's meeting. What he would like to do is to withdraw his
request for waiver of curb and gutters and go with the
construction of rolled curbs and gutters in Browning Road
Estates, Section "D".

President Borries said this is good news and he thanked Mr.
Wittekindt for coming to today's meeting and his decision in the
matter. Commissioner Cox echoed Mr. Borries' sentiments.

RE: MOTO COMMERCIAL PERMIT

Mrs. Barbara Cunningham of the Area Plan Commission said that in
1980 the Commissioners and the APC granted a petition for
rezoning at the corner of Burkhardt & Division Streets (where the
MOTO Station now stands) because the State was going to take
additional right-of-way. They rezoned the portion behind it.
When they did that, it was subject to certain commitments. 1In
the APC it was subject to existing setback requirements. As for
the County Commission, it was subject to existing setback
requirements with only one (1) curb cut on Burkhardt. Since that
time circumstances have changed, and the State will not allow

them to have a curb cut on Division Street. The plan has been
reviewed by the Site Review Committee, which includes Mrs.
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Zigenfus and Mr. Easley. They are both in agreement that if
certain stipulations are made as to the width (they do not want
it any wider than 30 ft.) they find no objection to two (2) cuts
on Burkhardt at this time, because there won't be any on Division
Street. The matter is being brought before the Commission at
this time to have the aforesaid stipulation lifted.

Motion to this effect was made by Commissioner Willner, with a
second from Commissioner Cox. So ordered.

RE: MARION BIGGERSTAFF PROPERTY ON CYPRESS-DALE RD.
(FORMERLY UNION TOWNSHIP SCHOOL)

It was noted by President Borries that an added item on today's
agenda concerns the Marion Biggerstaff property on Cypress-Dale
Rd., which was formerly the Union Township School. Mrs. Barbara
Cunningham of the Area Plan Commission is here to address this
matter. This concerns the clean-up of Mr. Biggerstaff's property
and the Bergdorfs wanted to know "what action has been -- or
will be -- taken to cause the removal of this health hazard and -~
eye sore. As of April 17, 1987, we could not see that any
improvement had taken place. In fact, more trash had been hauled
in and piled up. The trash is a health threat and an eye sore to
the community. Your continued surveillance of this problem will
be appreciated by all of us in the community."”

Mrs. Cunningham said that on March 31, she had a letter from the
APC Attorney at the time (Paul Wallace) to the Attorney for Mr.
Biggerstaff, who stated he had closed the Revised Entry of
Injunction reflecting the proper signature of the Honorable Terry
Dietsch, Judge of Vanderburgh Superior Court and he anticipated
filing the Entry for the Judge's signature that week. 1In the
letter he also said, "Additionally, I have caused the Area Plan
Commission Staff (he is writing to the Attorney for Mr.
Biggerstaff) to contact you to arrange an appointment for the
Staff, yourself and Mr. Biggerstaff, to point out what items need
to be removed and to be kept removed from the premises." 1In
essence, he says, he will recommend the most serious penalties
and fines be imposed against Mr. Biggerstaff if he continues to
fail compliance, particularly in light of the extraordinary
efforts made to accommodate him.

That was March 31st. On April 28th, the APC received a letter
from the Bergdorfs. On April 2nd the APC received a letter from
the attorney for Mr. Biggerstaff, who said (and this is addressed
to Beverly Behme), "Confirming our telephone conversation of
April 1lst, where we agreed to meet with Marion Biggerstaff at the
old Union Township School on April 21st at 4:00 p.m." Mrs.
Cunningham said they set up the appointment. On April 21lst the
appointment was cancelled by the attorney for Mr. Biggerstaff.

On April 28th the appointment was rescheduled on the advice of
the APC Attorney for re-inspection. On April 18th, it was again
cancelled by the attorney for Mr. Biggerstaff. On April 19th,
they called the attorney for Mr. Biggerstaff and asked that he
contact the APC. Subsequently, the APC has a new attorney who
has informed them that they have made every effort possible and
he has the materials and he is to file (and she has also spoken
to Judge O'Connor today) and the APC Attorney will file the
injunction for information for contempt and, at that time, the
Judge will set a hearing. The attorney for the Petitioner called
this morning. Mrs. Cunningham did not speak with her, but she
left word that she would like to set up an appointment for later
this week to come out and inspect the property. She said the APC
can possibly go out there, but that is no longer necessary. We
all know that what Mr. Biggerstaff needs to keep are only
agricultural uses on that property. Anything that does not count
as an agricultural use would not comply. Mrs. Cunningham
continued, "Our attorney we have working now will be filing the
injunction.”
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President Borries asked if any of the residents have questions
regarding the Biggerstaff matter?

Mrs. Bergdorf asked if the Commissioners need proof that nothing
has been done? She has some photos.

Commissioner Cox asked if she can ask that the Bergdorfs' names
and addresses be entered again into the record. And when the
document is filed, that they receive a copy of the document so
they will know that it has been filed? Just have the attorney
copy them in on any hearing dates that are coming up.

Mrs. Cunningham said she would be glad to do this. 1Is that Mr.
and Mrs. Otto Bergdorf, R.R.#2, Box 60, Evansville, IN?

The Bergdorfs confirmed that this is correct.

With regard to the photos mentioned by the Bergdorfs, Mrs.
Cunningham said it is possible that the APC will ask for those at
a later date.

President Borries expressed appreciation to the residents who are
in attendance today concerning the Biggerstaff matter. As they
know, the County is working on this matter. We have been to
court once on this and will do it again. At this point, what
Mrs. Cunningham is saying is that contempt means defiance; that
we are going back to court on the matter and, hopefully, he is
going to see loud and clear here what needs to be done.

One of the residents said he still has several dogs -- and the
wooden fence across the front is going in all directions -- but
he is trying to hide the debris behind the fence.

RE: DRAINAGE WORKSHOP

Mrs. Cunningham said the Urban Drainage Workshop is scheduled for
this coming Thursday (May 7th) and will begin at 9:00 a.m. The
Commissioners are co-sponsors. They have 35-40 or more
reservations at this point. They believe it will be helpful to
the professional engineers and land developers, as well as local
government.

RE: BURDETTE PARK

The Chair recognized Mark Tuley, Manager/Burdette Park. He said

he'd like to begin with some good news. He has a check from the

West Side Nut Club in the amount of $2,000.00. He would like for
the Board to accept the check, endorse it and deposit it into the
County General Fund in the Burdette Park Account.

Motion to this effect was made by Commissioner Willner, with a
second from Commissioner Cox. So ordered.

It was the consensus that a letter should be sent to the West
Side Nut Club expressing appreciation for this contribution.

Insurance Matters: Mr. Tuley said there are several insurance
matters that need to be addressed today, if possible. First
concerns the Community Service Program which they have at
Burdette in conjunction with the courts, which they're lucky to
be a part of —- because this saves them thousands of dollars and
helps them to accomplish a lot of work which they wouldn't have
the manpower to accomplish otherwise. One of the problems both
the courts and the Park has experienced during the past few
months concerns the transport of these Community Service people
to the park facility. Some of these people have a tendency to
roam around and to not make it out to the job site. Basically,
they are asking if there is a way to transport these people back
and forth. He has talked with Jerry Schenk (who is in the
audience today) and John Hodge, our insurance agent of record
concerning the matter, as to whether the current county insurance
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we currently have would cover this. The Commissioners have a
copy of Mr. Hodge's letter to us. He doesn't see any problem
with it at all. The only thing he would need the Commissioners®
permission for would be to use Burdette's bus to transport these
people They would also need permission for the County to pay
for a Chauffeur's License for four (4) of his staff people who
will be working the various weekends to accomplish the transport
of these workers. He forgot to bring the book with him, but
under Public Passenger he thinks it says to get a Public
Passenger Chauffeur's License you have to have a physical prior
to that examination. He would think that it would be to the
benefit of the county to pick up that cost and to pay for the
Chauffeur's License. That program probably saves the County
$15,000 to $20,000 per year in wages and salaries/benefits.

The Chair entertained questions of Mr. Tuley.

Commissioner Cox said, "Mark, I need to clarify; these are Work
Release people?"

Mr. Tuley said in Mr. Hodge's letter he put Work Release people, ~
but they are not.

Mrs. Cox asked, "Then where do they come from?"

Mr. Tuley said, "Well, I guess they operate now what they call
the 'Safe House' out on Third Avenue."

Mrs. Cox asked, "Are they all in one specific area where you go
and pick them up, or are you going to drive all over...."

Mr. Tuley said, "No, it is all one area -- right behind the old
Zenith Plant."

Mrs. Cox said, "If that is where they are, I know where that is."

Mr. Tuley said from there they are dispatched to the Cemetery,
the Highway Crew and to Burdette. What is happening to him
lately is that they met with Dennis Heathcott (who was out at
Burdette last week) of the Court Staff to meet concerning this.
For instance, a guy would get off work early because he had to be
at his job, then you'd get five or six people who would ride out
there with him, so obviously they could leave early too -- and
they're not getting a full day's work out of these people. The
court obviously isn't happy about this and neither is he. They
felt the best way to tighten the program up would be the
transporting of the workers. Also, a lot of these people don't
have transportation or a way to get out to Burdette.

Mrs. Cox said, "My other point is, this Halfway House doesn't
have any vehicles whereby they could bring them out there?"

Mr. Tuley said, "From what I understand, they have two officers
working on weekends and he believes there are something like six
(6) support facilities that they try to handle -- and they just
don't have enough manpower. Most of the time when they send
employees out, it is only an average of 15 to 20 per day on
Saturday or Sunday and they only have a van -- so they have to
make two trips to get them out to Burdette."

Mrs. Cox asked, "And the Sheriff's Department couldn't do this
for us?"

Mr. Tuley responded, "I don't know; I could check on that for you
and would be glad to do that. They do have a Prisoner Transport

Van."

Mrs. Cox said, "My other question here is that he is talking
about two licenses: One is a Public Passenger and another is a
Chauffeur's License. I know of nothing that says 'Public
Passenger/Chauffeur's License'. it is either one or the other. A
You don't have to have a physical for a Chauffeur's License.

What do you have, Rick?"
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Mr. Tuley said, "The law has changed on that."
(President Borries said, "Yes; I had to have a physical and that
is what they call a PP/Chauffeur's License now."

Mr. Tuley said, "There is a big difference in driving a big
gravel truck and driving a bus."

Mr. Borries said this was for purposes if he used the school van
or anything like that; but he had to have a physical and pass a
test. Again, he knows he had to take a physical and pass the
test -- but maybe the law has changed,

Mrs. Cox said, "Well, I guess that is right then."

Mr. Tuley said he believes this was the first year it was
implemented. But he believes they broke it down into two
categories.

Commissioner Borries queried Mr. Tuley concerning the other
license?

Mr. Tuley said they still have a regular Chauffeur's License; but
they break it down into Public Passenger if it's 15 or more
people -- he believes this is where they draw the line. From
what he understands from Mr. Schenk, certain companies work with
the insurance companies here in town who offer these physicals at
a reduced rate for companies, etc.

Commissioner Cox said, "Or, you can go to the Minor Emergency
Center and get it -- it doesn't involve that much."

Mr. Tuley said it won't cost a lot of money and the license is
$7.50...50 we're not talking a lot of money -- $200.00 at the
most.

Commissioner Cox asked Mr. Tuley how many days a week he uses
these workers?

Mr. Tuley said, "Two; last year we were able to get them
sometimes three or four days a week. Now I understand there are
five or six facilities using this program that have requested
their help, and they are trying to help all of them. So we just
get them on Saturdays and Sundays year around.”

Mrs. Cox said, "I know they also help the State Highway
Department. I don't know how they get them."

Mr. Tuley said, "I really don't know. From what I understand,
basically that program is a part of the same insurance carrier
that you are under -- and so whether we transport them or you
transport them, we are basically insured anyway, I would think --
if I understand it correctly. I was trying to clarify that the
other day with John Hodge and he said they have both programs
insured. If the Commissioners want to take this under advisement
and want him to come back next week, he will be glad to do so.
But the court system would like an answer as soon as possible.”

Commissioner Willner said, "I see no problem with it; let's let
them get their licenses and pay for them -- we're not talking
about that much money."

Mr. Tuley said they have enough money in Burdette's budget to
cover this.

Mrs. Cox said an extensive physical is not required with an EKG
and all the blood work, etc. Was Mr. Borries' physical that
extensive?

Mr. Borries responded that it was a little more extensive than he
wanted at the time -- but it was all right.
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Motion to approve the request was made by Commissioner Willner,
with a second from Commissioner Cox. So ordered.

Loss Control Risk Management Program: Mr. Tuley continued and
said that Mr. Schenk has been working with him on the Loss
Control Risk Management program. In one of these visits to the
park several weeks ago, they found several areas that they feel
need to be addressed right away. According to letter from Mr.
Schenk of April 29th, the following hazards need to be addressed
immediately as they present serious liability hazards for the
county. Mr. Schenk's letter is as follows:

April 29, 1987

Burdette Park

Mark Tuley, Manager
Nurrenbern Road
Evansville, IN 47712

RE: Loss Control Services
This letter is to confirm my visit to your location on April
28, 2987.

The purpose of my visit was to meet Commissioner Rick
Borries, and to inspect several hazards which you and I
discovered last week while making a routine inspection.

The following hazards listed below need to be addressed
immediately as they present serious liability hazards for the
county.

1) Stop signs installed at all exits from the park onto
Nurrenbern Road (total - 3)

2) Stop sign posted from the new softball diamond onto
Nurrenbern Road (total - 1)

3) Painted crossway across Nurrenbern Road from the new
softball diamond to main park area.

4) Small asphalt section added to allow the public to
cross over from the ball diamond to the main entrance.

5) Reduce speed limit on Nurrenbern Road at park area
(caution light may need to be installed).

We all agree that we need to address the above items as

soon as possible. There is definitely a liability situation
here that needs immediate attention before softball season
starts.

Mr. Borries and I physically tested the Nurrenbern Hill and
without any acceleration, our car reached 45 miles per hour
by the time we passed the exit from the softball field.

We also made a traffic count from 2:30 p.m. to 3:00 p.m.,
this was at a time which would be considered as a slow time.
Thirty-one cars passed this area in 30 minutes, averaging one
car per minute during slow time. The number will increase
considerably during peak times of the day.

Thanks again, Mark and Rick, for your cooperation to our
safety program. If at any time prior to our next safety
meeting I can be of any assistance to you, please call.

Sincerely,

Jerry Schenk, President
CREA/cra Appraiser
Risk Manager
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Mr. Tuley said that with regard to the speed limit, as you come
down Red Bank, it is 30 mph; when you turn heading west on
Nurrenbern, the speed limit increases to 40 mph in front of the
park. He believes Mr. Schenk's letter is pretty well
self-explanatory and Mr. Schenk is present today and will be glad
to address these concerns with the Board. With the additional
company picnics signed up this year as compared to last year and
the ball diamonds being across the street, there were some
serious problems. The traffic out there is becoming
unbelievable. That hill has been there for years and, obviously,
they have had some problems out there. But with the ball
diamonds across the street at the bottom of the hill, he believes
we have a serious problem. He doesn't know what it would take
for the Commission to possibly reduce the speed limit in that
area.

Commissioner Willner asked why Mr. Tuley doesn't come back with
his recommendations to handle the safety problem and let the
Commission vote on them -- rather than bringing the Commission
all the problems. Just tell them what he wants.

Commissioner Borries said, "I think this is what he wants."
Mrs. Cox said, "He's got it here.”

Mr. Tuley said, "Basically I need the Commissioners to have the

Traffic & Sign Department install the proper signs needed at the
entrances and exits of the park at all locations. From what he

understands, that is a joint city-county department and it takes
an order of the Commissioners to get the signs.

Commissioner Willner queried Mr. Tuley concerning the speed limit
desired?

Commissioner Borries said, "30 mph".

Mr. Tuley said he agrees that they ought to drop it down to 30
mph.

Commissioner Borries emphasized again that he and Jerry Schenk
started out at the top of Nurrenbern Rd., and without any
acceleration whatsoever (he just had his foot right at the break
pedal in case anyone came out into the road) -- they were 45 mph
by the time they passed the exit at the softball field -- so he
thinks Mr. Schenk's concerns are really appropriate. That is
going to be a popular area there, so he thinks we need to
consider a 30 mph speed limit.

Commissioner Cox said she agrees. She then asked if we have to
place stop signs according to ordinance?"

Attorney Curt John responded that a list of all signage is kept,
but it hasn't been updated for quite some time,"

Motion was made by Commissioner Cox that stop signs be installed
at all exits from Burdette Park onto Nurrenbern Rd.; for a total
of three (3). Mrs. Cox said we need to specifically say
"Entrance 1, Entrance 2 and Entrance 3? 1Is that correct?

Mr. Tuley said there is a total of three (3) and that would be on
the north side of the street and there is one on the south side
where you exit the ball diamond.

Following brief discussion between Mr. Tuley and the Commis-
sioners, Commissioner Cox said she would amend her motion to
include that a stop sign be posted from the new softball diamond
onto Nurrenbern Rd. and that the maximum speed limit on
Nurrenbern Rd. be 30 miles per hour from the intersection of Red
Bank Road West to the intersection of Nurrenbern Road and Graff
Road.
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Mr. Borries said he is not so sure that we shouldn't put it 30
miles per hour all the way to that curve, because that is a
dangerous curve where it goes into Red Bank. He said consistency
would be his concern; he doesn't want people speeding up and
slowing down and getting all confused here as to how fast they
are going in the summer -- when we all like to go a little faster
-- and will be, if Congress passes this law on the 65 miles per
hour limit. He has concerns because of the increased traffic.

On the portion from Red Bank on the curve all the way to the top
of Nurrenbern should be 30 miles per hour. People could take
that curve quicker. How does that sound?

Mrs. Cox said her motion is amended to say that the speed limit
on Nurrenbern Rd. from the intersection of Red Bank Rd. and
Nurrenbern on the east to Graff Rd. on the west of Nurrenbern be
posted at a 30 miles per hour speed limit.

Attorney John asked whether the Commissioners want the short
section of Red Bank Rd. to be changed as well?

Following brief discuséion, Commissioner Cox moved that the -
maximum speed limit for South Red Bank Road from Ogdon south to
deadend also be posted at 30 miles per hour.

A second to Mrs. Cox's motion concerning the 30 miles per hour
maximum speed limit on South Red Bank Rd. and Nurrenbern Rd. in
designated areas was made by Commissioner Willner. So ordered.

Mr. Tuley said he has one more question. What do we do about Mr.
Schenk's recommendation re the painted crossway across
Nurrenbern?

Motion was made by Commissioner Cox that the Traffic Engineering
Department be contacted to have this done immediately, with a
second from Commissioner Willner. So ordered.

Mr. Tuley said his crew could put in the sidewalk from the ball
diamond to the main entrance.

Commissioner Willner said he bets they could paint the crossway,
too —- but go ahead with whatever agreed and he would provide a
second.

Commissioner Cox said,"Well, Bob, they know the Federal
Guidelines to be used. If they will come out there and lay it
out, then these guys can paint it. If we have an accident there
we want to make sure that it is according to Federal Guidelines;
that is why I made the motion for the Traffic Engineering people
to do it.

Commissioner Borries asked Mr. Tuley, "And you're going to do the
asphalt? The only portion would be right along the road beyond
the north side of the road?"

Mr. Tuley said that is correct.

Continuing, Mr. Tuley distributed promotional material concerning
the U.S.C.F. 1987 Indiana-Kentucky District Championship Road
Race to be held at Burdette Park on May 31lst and the Big RV Show
scheduled from Friday 5 p.m. on May 8th thru Saturday 10 p.m. May
9th. With regard to the Road Race, he said it was initially
suggested that it be held downtown in conjunction with the
Freedom Festival, and we are delighted that it was decided to
hold it at Burdette Park and he is working with the Sheriff's
Department with regard to getting the safety end worked out.

They do have national insurance for that and the Commissioners
will be receiving a copy.

President Borries expressed appreciation to Messrs. Tuley and
Schenk. He said he appreciates all of Mr. Schenk's work in
calling these matters to our attention. When we move in a
positive way here to correct these problems, it is better on all
of us -- particularly on the dollars that could go out.
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RE: VANDERBURGH AUDITORIUM - KIM BITZ

Mr. Bitz presented the following report for the 1lst Quarter -~
1987:

Utilities (Gas & Electric only/January - March)

1987 1986 1985
CCF 23,078 28,785 33,808
$ 6,779.07 $10,564.10 $14,503.08
KWH 166,355 156,670 171,359
$10,185.00 $ 8,756.33 $ 8,607.97
Total (Qtr.) $16,964.07 $19,320.43 $23,111.05
Rentals Calendar Days Occupied Total Usage Total Events
1987 58 81 65
1986 60 63 58
1985 58 70 54
Revenue (1st four months)
1987 $72,410.83
1986 $70,090.86
1985 $63,758.01

Mr. Bitz said cubic feet of gas used has dropped since 1985 by
10,000 cu. ft., which is a bright spot —- and the dollar figure
has also been decreased. 1In fact, it has been sliced in half.
With regard to killowat hours, they are a bit higher this year as
compared to last year, but it is still a drop from 1985. But the
overall utility cost for the lst quarter has dropped as compared
to 1985. They are really happy about that. They are also happy
about the increase in total number of events. The figures under
total usage reflect the total number of times that either the
Gold Room or the Auditorium were used for performances or
rehearsals, etc.

The revenue total reflects an increase in 1987 over 1986 -- not
as much of an increase as reflected between 1985 and 1986; but we
are up some $2,400.00 over last year.

The Chair entertained questions of Mr. Bitz; there were none.

RE: COUNTY ATTORNEY -~ CURT JOHN

Attorney John asked whether the roads in Burdette Park are
accepted County roads?

Commissioner Cox said, "We maintain them."

Attorney John said he doesn't think then that it will take any
amendment to the Ordinance, since the roads are just
egress/ingress to the Park. So he could just order those signs
posted rather than amending the Ordinance. He believes the
Ordinance just addresses Thru Streets and which streets have
Right-of-Way.

Ordinance Amending Speed Limits on Harmony Way and Tupman Rd.:

Mr. John said he had also prepared the Ordinance with regard to

speed limits on Harmony Way and Tupman Rd. If the Commissioners
like, they may want to review same prior to advertising. He will
be here next Monday, as well, and the Commissioners can sign the
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Ordinance at that meeting if they so desire. He will add speed
limit on Red Bank Rd. and Nurrenbern Rd. in the designated areas
and the one Ordinance will cover these changes, as well.

Commissioner Cox asked whether the Board can just go ahead and
vote on this and get this started?

Mr. John said the Board can vote on it now and it can be
advertised.

Mrs. Cox said what she would like to do is to give Mr. John the
authority to go ahead and legally advertise these two plus the
speed limits on Red Bank Red and Nurrenbern Rd., which were
approved today.

A second to the motion was provided by Commissioner Willner. So
ordered.

Commissioner Cox asked if Joanne Matthews will advertise the
Ordinance as soon as possible.

(Note: Ordinance will be advertised in Courier & Press on
Saturday, May 9, 1987.)

RE: COUNTY HIGHWAY - BILL BETHEL

Weekly Work Report: Mr. Bethel submitted copies of the Weekly
Work Report for Employees at the County Garage for period April
27 thru May 1, 1987........report received and filed. Attached
to the report was the following Work Schedule:

Gradall: Middle Mt. Vernon Rd., New Harmony Rd., Oak Hill
Rd., and 01d 460

Paved: Fisher Rd. (will finish today)

Patched: Marx Rd., Ridgewood, Audubon Chestnut, Cherry,

Spry Rd., Fuquay Rd., Indian Mounds and Ridgeway
Grader: Bottoms
Moved in the east side.
Weekly Work Report/Bridge Crew: Also submitted for the same

period was the Weekly Work Report for the Bridge
Crew........report received and filed.

- Replaced culvert on St. Joe at Sensmeier
- Replaced culvert on Darmstadt Rd.
~ Replaced culvert on Calf Lane
Weekly Absentee Reports: Also submitted for the same period were

the Weekly Absentee Reports for Employees at the County Garage
and the Bridge Crew........reports received and filed.

The Chair entertained questions of Mr. Bethel.

Commissioner Cox said, "Bill, I didn't get to the County Council
Finance Meeting, but I did read an account of it in the paper and
I believe there was some question over our road paving program
for 1987 and what is the status?"”

Mr. Bethel said, "Mrs. Cox, there is some question but I talked
to all of them and I hope that it will be settled to our
benefit." S e

Mrs. Cox said, "We invited them to the hearing and sent them an
updated list of all the.sece..”

Mr. Bethel responded, "There was some question but I really feel
that they will appropriate the money for our repaving program.”
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RE: COUNTY ENGINEER

Mr. Easley reported that he does not have any new business. He
attended the County Council's Finance Meeting last Wednesday and
took the estimate that he had made on the 0ld Princeton Rd. They
told him to come back to this week's meeting and they would
approve a transfer of funds. He would like permission from the
Commissioners to transfer the money ($40,000.00) from the
Eickhoff-Koressel account, which is not going to be in
preliminary engineering in 1987 and he thinks we can probably
spare those funds for the 0l1ld Princeton Rd. improvements. There
is just a little over $600,000 in the account. Otherwise, we
would have to ask for an additional appropriation out of R&S. If
we do go under construction with Eickhoff Koressel he is sure we
can get $40,000.00 for the R&S out of County Council. We can get
that done in a hurry and that is why he would like to do it in
this manner. Otherwise it would take 60 days to get an
appropriation and we have no numbers to charge anything to.

Mr. Bethel emphasized that this was Council's suggestion.

Commissioner Cox asked "Is that the only place where we have any
money left? I just don't like the condemnation that goes along
with taking something out of one of our major projects that we
need here in Vanderburgh County. Do we have any money left at
all Andy, from the St. Joe or Lynch accounts or have we zeroed
that out?”

Mr. Easley said, "At the end of the year, I think they were under
the impression that we had no more bills to pay and it was not
encumbered.”

Mrs. Cox said, "Well, it is up to us to tell the Auditor to
encumber it. He doesn't just automatically do that."

Mr. Easley said Suzie Kirk sent a letter requesting it, but
somehow it didn't get done. And it takes sixty (60) days to get
a new appropriation. If the Commissioners feel they want to put
the money back, he will initiate a request to transfer the money
back to the Eickhoff-Koressel account.

Commissioner Cox said, "We work on promises all the time and I
never will forget that when you said the County Council could
borrow $300,000 from the Roads & Streets account with the
understanding that they would put that back in from the Wheel Tax
money and that money never went back into the R&S funds -- and we
should all remember that very well."

Mr. Easley said we either have to get an appropriation or delay
the project three (3) months.

Commissioner Borries said if Mr. Easley will put the request in
writing, that we want that money back in the account -- because
we don't want to send Council any signals at this point that the
Eickhoff-Koressel project is not important or that we are
delaying it for any reason. So the money that has been put into
that account needs to be used for that. He would want to do this
because that project is one that we don't want to delay. The USI
area is going to grow and that project needs to continue.

County Auditor Sam Humphrey said there is a wide discrepancy
between what is in the budget and what is shown as income.
Somehow or the other in miscellaneous revenue we carry $70,000
and Rose Zigenfus tells him that it is $700,000. He doesn't know
what it is. At this point there is $3.1 million that is shown as
income but is not allocated. Mr. Eads told him that he was not
going to approve anymore additional appropriations until this is
straightened out.

Mr. Easley said he thought this was straightened out at the end
of the year.
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Mr. Humphrey said, "No. I don't have those figures, because Rose
has them. There was something at the tail end of the year last
year. I am told that some encumbrances were to have occurred but
Alice (McBride) wouldn't accept them.

Commissioner Borries asked if any of the members of the
Commission have a suggestion, in order to get this 01d Princeton
Rd. project moving....

Mr. Easley said we have to charge some culverts and do some
excavation work -- and purchase asphalt and crushed stone. He
can request a reimbursement appropriation to that account, if we
can satisfy them that we need it in 1987.

Commissioner Willner asked if there is any money left in the
Lynch Rd. account?

Mr. Humphrey advised that this has been closed out.
Mrs. Cox said, "It surely has -- there's nothing left."

Mrs. Cox mentioned two or three accounts that have been zeroed
out.

Mr. Humphrey said that legally, if an account is not encumbered
by contract or by letter, then at the end of the year the funds
go back into the General Fund.

Commissioner Borries asked if there will be any funds left from
Covert Avenue?

Mr. Easley responded, "No, because I had to request an additional
appropriation to pay bills."

Commissioner Cox noted that Covert Avenue was zeroed out.

Mr. Easley said this was an oversight and lack of
communications. The Auditor's office got their standard letter
and, for some reason, the letter was not respected or noted or
something.

Commissioner Cox said Council is going to appropriate some monies
for sand and gravel, etc., don't we have some monies in the
highway budget to do this and then wait for the appropriation to
come through for the County General Fund? Would they not do
that?

Commissioner Willner said, "When we talked about this project the
first time, if you will look at it really closely —-- there are
two big culverts there and I don't see why we can't call it a
bridge project and take the whole thing out of the bridge funds
as far as I am concerned. We didn't like the idea when it first
came up, but the Bridge Crew is putting all culverts in on county
highways right now and you go 500 ft. either side of it -- and
there are two big culverts right here on this project. If we
have a problem out of R&S, let's just switch over to the bridge
accounts.

Commissioner Cox said, "If we qualify; and you have construction
money in your bridge account.”

Mr. Easley said, "We have contractual services and
mategials....if that is your pleasure, then we will do it that
way.

Mrs. Cox said, "That qualifies then to use bridge money."
Commissioner Willner said, "Absolutely."

In response to query from Commissioner Borries, the Board
unanimously agreed that this is the route to take.
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Street Plans/McCutchan Estates I & Greenbriar Hills Section III:
Mr. Easley said the approval of Street Plans was deferred until
this week. Do the Commissioners have questions concerning this
matter?

Commissioner Cox said she thought these were excellent plans,
with one exception. She thinks that we did waive sidewalks on
most of the area with the exception of the west side of Greendale
Court and the south side of Bob Court. 1Is this shown on the
plans? She could not find it —-- except at the back of the

plans. It states where they will be, but she doesn't believe
they are shown on the street plan.

Mrs. Cox read following notation, "Sidewalks required on west
gside of Greendale and south side of Bob Court Drive.”

Mr. Easley said, "That will suffice.®

Mrs. Cox said, "If that will suffice, I have no further
questions."” -

Commissioner Borries said this was going to be his concern, but
as long as he has that notation on there....

Motion to approve Greenbriar Hills Section III, as presented, was
made by Commissioner Willner, with a second from Commissioner
Cox. So ordered.

With regard to McCutchan Estates I, there was a brief exchange of
conversation between Mr. Easley and Mrs. Cunningham, but they
were inaudible. Mrs. Cox said there was a statement in the plan
regarding the Heinlein road and the easement has been granted.
She asked if Mrs. Cunningham read that?

Mrs. Cunningham said, "I saw that, but he asked me what their
time frame for that is."

Mr. Easley said "I discussed with Katheryn that I did not like

the dedication certificates on the plat, because that does not

clarify that the easement is being dedicated as a public road
n

L R N

Mrs. Cunningham said "I understand, too, that the road has not
beeneeecesss™

Commissioner Borries asked if there is a motion on McCutchan
Estates 1?

Mr. Easley said, "This has to have official dedicated public road
access off Heinlein and they are going to approve a section of
Heinlein over to Burch Drive, so they will have proper width. It
is a good thing we did some work on Heinlein, such as it is."

Commissioner Willner asked, "Weren't they going to build that
first construction wise, so that the construction equipment used
in the building of the subdivision can use that road? That is
the problem."”

Mr. Easley said "I haven't asked Morley that and I don't have an
answer."

Mr. Willner said "We need an answer. The people don't want them
coming in the other way and tearing the road up and I agree with
them."

Mrs. Cox asked, "What does it have to say on the plat then, in
order tOeeeeccee

Commissioner Willner responded, "They build that road first
before they improve the subdivision. I don't really care whether
or not they blacktop it, but if they rock it and use it..."
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Mr. Easley said he agrees.

RE: TALL TIMBERS

President Borries said he has a letter from Mr. Griggs concerning
the Tall Timbers inspection report. Mr. Borries said he did not
meet with Mr. Griggs at the site, so he assumes he may have met
perhaps with Andy Easley. The Commission's knowledge and
approval would be only to the extent that Mr. Griggs, as a
licensed P.E., would furnish at Mr. Jarrett's expense a list of
improvements that he was going to do, which he has talked about.
Mr. Borries asked whether there are comments at this time
concerning the letter received from Mr. Griggs? He is not sure
where Mr. Griggs is talking about the nine (9) pipe culverts in
the subdivision and the aspect of which ones are acceptable and
which ones are not. At this time, we would ask for further
clarification from Mr. Griggs. At that point, if we can get that
information from him, then we ought to be able to make a
decision. He says that these culverts are not acceptable, in his
opinion, and they range in size from 18 inches to 24 inches in ~
diameter and he feels that these should not be placed there in
that fashion -- and he is saying that there is no excuse for this
type of construction and they are going to have to be replaced.
And there is a strong possibility that £ill material may
infiltrate some of the pipe joints causing a subsidence of the
roadway slab -- so these things would have to be done. He says
there have been some deviations that have occurred that should
not have occurred if we'd had proper inspection. The culverts
could become expensive maintenance problems and he does not see
any major maintenance liability if the minor corrections
referred to in the body of this report are implemented.

Thus, we'll ask for clarifications as to where these culverts are
and his suggestions in putting these in. President Borries said
he does not detect at this point whether Mr. Jarrett would be
willing to do these things, but as Mr. Griggs stated in his
report, he would have to do these things and Mr. Borries is of
the opinion that there would have to be an inspection at that
point in order for acceptance to be made.

Commissioner Cox asked, "Who is to adequately inspect the work
that is going on out there? We have other subdivisions going.
Who is inspecting to make sure that they are complying with the
approved plans that this Board gave their sanction to during the
time of construction? Who is inspecting these subdivisions?

Commissioner Borries asked Mr. Easley, "Is the Assistant doing
any inspection at all on any of these?"

Mr. Easley responded in the negative.

Mrs. Cox asked, "What kind of inspection is he doing? You mean
our Assistant Bridge Engineer?"

Mr. Easley said he is not inspecting streets; he is doing
culverts that are being replaced.

Mrs. Cox said, "But he shouldn't be doing that. He should not be
doing subdivision...."

Mr. Willner said, "Culverts come out of the bridge fund..."

Mrs. Cox said, "Absolutely not, unless they qualify as a bridge.
Who inspects the streets, then?"

Mr. Easley said, "Lee Stuckey and I are inspecting the streets."
Mrs. Cox asked, "Pinkston isn't inspecting the streets?"

Mr. Easley said, "He has from time to time."
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Mrs. Cox said, "And he is a bridge crew member paid from bridge
funds -- and we asked you, Andy, quite some time ago not to use
bridge funds to do this. Yet you continue to do it. I tell you
- I justoooou

Commissioner Willner asked, "Do you inspect the other street
plans as they are called in and requests made via a routine that
you have?"

Mr. Easley said, "Before the forms are made, if they give us
notice we check the sub-grades and the concrete pour. Sometimes
if Bill Bethel, Lee Stuckey, and myself are covered up (like this
morning, when I was at the garage on the repaving program when I
got a call that they were making a pour; Lee wasn't around and I
asked whether Pinkston could go out and look at it before they
poured the concrete -- but he was the only alternative I had).
Possibly once a week I uses Pinkston for an hour or two to do
that, because he is covering the county. I'm trying to cover
with the personnel we have -- and we haven't had all the
inspection we should have had."

Mrs. Cox said "Who says it was not adequately inspected. That
means we could have ten inspectors and it still could not be
adequately inspected. I don't necessarily see that he is
pointing out here that we have a shortage of inspectors, Andy."

Commissioner Borries said, "There is a lot of building going on
in the county and I think that is the obvious thing and I would
say to you that we simply have to do with the staff that we have
at this point, which will include you (Easley) and Lee Stuckey
and the highway crew and we cannot use the bridge crew to do
these things. Again, at this point, I am going to ask for
further clarification from him regarding the culverts. We'll
have the Surveyor's office or the assistant review these -- but
he is a P.E. and I would want at this point see his explanation
as to where these culverts are and the modifications and
suggestions he makes. The other obvious thing is whether Mr.
Jarrett is committed to make those changes.

Mr. Easley said he went out and looked at those two culverts.
There are two joints -- you can lay sections of pipe on a curve
and you can deflect the section. But you cannot deflect it
excessively to cause an open joint. As long as you have a
moderate deflection there are tables --I think they probably had
excessive deflection in one or two joints. Otherwise, there is
nothing wrong with laying (and I have books that show how to lay
pipe on a curve) and I think he is apprehensive; he didn't crawl
through all of them and he has a right to raise the question and
that is a good point and I don't argue with it.

Commissioner Borries said, "He has done that -- and, again, I
would want to know where these are in regard to the previous
plans; if these changes are going to be made. If they are made,
Mr. Jarrett will pay to have them made. If we're in compliance
at that point,...."

Commissioner Cox interjected, "Well, somebody is telling Mr.
Jarrett to do something, because they are doing some things out
there in the subdivision and I don't know where he's getting his
guidance -- because this Board has never given him any direction
-- but they are cutting some streets and puttlng in a drainage
pipe --I was out there one day last week."

Commissioner Borries said, "We forwarded the comments made by the
Surveyor's office and told him here were the concerns that had
been advanced and that he needed to hire an engineer to address
those. I would assume that Mr. Jarrett has done so."

Mrs. Cox asked, "Did he hire this engineer, too?"

Commissioner Borries said, "I assume; I don't now -- that would
be his choice.”
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Mrs. Cox asked, "Well, how do we know that is right -- they
haven't submitted a set of plans of what they are doing -- we
don't know what they are doing out there.”

Commissioner Borries responded, "That is what I said. I want to
see the plans of what he is doing. I assume he is reacting to
the comments from the Surveyor's Office and those concerns were
raised at the meeting we had. We need to see those plans. We
will be in contact with Mr. Griggs and ask him for those plans.”

RE: TRAVEL REQUEST -VETERAN'S SERVICE OFFICE

The meeting proceeded with President Borries reading the
following request:

MAY 7, 1987

Board of Commissioners

of Vanderburgh County

305 Administration Bldg. -
Civic Center Complex

Evansville,, IN 47708

Dear County Commissioners:
Please be advised that we respectfully request permission to
attend the Indiana Department of Veterans' Affairs 42nd

Annual Service Officers Training School at Lake Monroe,
Bloomington, Indiana, from May 26 through May 30, 1987.

This school is mandated under Indiana Code 10-5-1-12 for us
to continue to be certified State Service Officers.

In our travel account we have allocated monies for this
school expense.

Please feel free to contact me if you need any further
information.

Sincerely yours,

Carl M. Wallace
Vanderburgh County
Veterans Service Officer

Motion to approve the request was made by Commissioner Willner,
with a second from Commissioner Cox. So ordered.

RE: ACCEPTANCE OF CHECKS

President Borries presented the following letter from Evansville
Cable T-V:

April 27, 1987

Mr. Richard J. Borries, President

Board of Commissioners/Vanderburgh County

305 Administration Building/Civic Center Complex
Evansville IN 47708

Dear Commissioners:

Enclosed you will find a check in the amount of $22,918.97
which represents payment for the lst quarter (Jan., Feb.,
March, 1987).

As indicated to you in my letter dated January 27, 1987, the
first quarter should reflect a higher increase simply because
of a rate increase on the basic and additional outlets that
was effective January 1 1987. Our payment to you for the
last quarter of 1986 was $20,898.72. Also, attached you will
find back up for this particular payment.
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Again, we at Evansville Cable would like to thank the County
Commissioners for giving Evansville Cable the pleasure of
serving the residents in the county with cable television
service.

If any of the Commissioners have questions, please feel free
to call me at any time.

Thank you, and
Best regards,

Robert D. Ossenberg
Vice President & General
Manager

President Borries said a check has also been received from Wells
Cable T.V., Inc. in the amount of $112.18 for franchise fee for
1st quarter 1987.

Motion to accept both checks and endorse same for deposit into
the General Fund was made by Commissioner Willner, with a second
from Commissioner Cox. So ordered.

RE: CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE

Aiken Management Co.: Certificate of Insurance (Jesse F. Stock
Insurance Co.) for "CATS" Performances on May 19, 19, and 20,
1987 at the Vanderburgh Auditorium.

RE: OFFICE CLOSING

It was announced by President Borries that all County Offices
will be closed tomorrow, May 5th, for the Primary Election.

RE: SCHEDULED MEETINGS:

Wed. May 6 5:00 p.m. Area Plan (Room 301)
2:30 p.m. County Council Mtgqg.
Thurs. May 7 District Mtg.
Vincennes, IN
10:30 a.m. APC Mtg. (Room 303)
May 7 8 a.m. to 4 p.m. Drainage Seminar
(Room 301)
Mon. May 11 Special Drainage Mtgqg.

RE: OLD BUSINESS

SIGECO Proposal/Pollack Avenue: Commissioner Cox asked whether
the Board needed to take any action re the SIGECO proposal on
relocation of utilities on Pollack Avenue?

Commissioner Borries said he had a call concerning this, but he
did not see it on the agenda. As Mr. Gulick has pointed out in a
letter concerning the Pollack Avenue widening project, if the
County can participate in the relocation of the company's Z85
electric transmission pole (which will be in conflict with the
County's construction when that project goes to construction) the
County could save some money and the road's safety could be
improved. It is on the northwest corner of Fuquay and Pollack.
This proposal would combine three highway projects for electrical
adjustments into one larger one. The cost to move the steel pole
in question has been estimated at $45,000.00. By combining
projects and moving the line completely off Pollack Avenue, the
State and Federal participation money for I-164 would help reduce
the County's percentage. The adjusted cost then becomes
$37,000.00. Since Pollack widening will be 75% fundable,
Gallivan has indicated that the final cost to the County would be




COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Page 27
May 4, 1987

$9,500.00. Mr. Gulick goes on to say that would only be a
preliminary proposal and he would hope we could give him input
back. But if we agree, we could send him a positive or negative
report at this time. But he does say he thinks there are some
cost savings to be gained here and they are going to have to do
some moving because of the I-164 project that will be in that
area.

Commissioner Willner suggested that Mr. Lindenschmidt check this
out and bring the information to the next Commissioners' meeting.

Mr. Jim Lindshschmidt said that is what Mr. Gulick wanted to do.
He needs to know, however, if the Commissioners would be in
agreement if he can get it done for this amount.

Commissioner Willner said he really doesn't know, because this is
the first he's heard about it.

Commissioner Borries said he spoke with Mr. Gulick by phone;
again, what he wants to do is to do this along with the I-164
relocations because it will save us money at some point in the
future.

Commissioner Willner again urged that Mr. Lindenschmidt check
this out.

Commissioner Cox said, "In other words, if we want to spend money
three different times on three different projects, rather than
one time on a dovetail operation, SIGECO will gladly charge us
three different amounts of money on three different projects. But
they will also look into lumping them altogether so we can get it
at a reduced amount.

Commissioner Willner said, "I am not sure whether this pole has
an easement and that we have to pay to start with., Sometimes
they don't have permission to have the pole on there to start
with and, therefore, would have to move it at their own expense.
They are not going to tell you that; you need to check it out to
see whether we really have to pay for the move. That's all I'm
saying.

Commissioner Borries said we will check that out. Speaking to
the other Commissioners, he said he'd like to take another step
here so we can get this commitment. " If we find out we do have
to pay, would we have your approval at this time to do this to
save money?"

Commissioner Willner responded, "Certainly."
Commissioner Cox chimed in, "Mine, too."

President Borries asked that Mr. Lindenschmidt advise Mr. Gulick
that we are going to check out the easement. If they have to do
it, good for them. If we have to do it, we're supporting the
proposal.

RE: CLAIMS

Kenneth Jarboe, Jr.: Claim presented in the amount of $38.00 for
Permit Fee refund(6804V). Motion to approve claim for payment
was made by Commissioner Willner, with a second from Commissioner
Cox. So ordered.

RE: EMPLOYMENT CHANGES

Treasurer's Department (Releases)
Barbara Hedges Registrar $14,005/Yr. Eff: 5/7/87
Georgiana Harris Supv. of Posting..$14,005/Yr. Eff: 5/4/87

Auditor's Office (Appointments)

Tabreccia Baker Posting Clerk $12,400/Yr. Eff: 5/4/87
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Recorder (Appointments)

Sharon Kohtala Release Dep. $13,440/Yr
Recorder (Releases)

Dieanna J. Krepps Release Dep. $13,440/Yr.
Circuit Court (Appointments)

Janice Ann Sloat  Secretary $12,000/Yr.
Circuit Court (Releases)

Janice Ann Sloat Secretary $10,500/Yr.
Lee Vandeveer P.T. Intern $3.35/Hr.

Clerk of Circuit & Superior Court (Appointments)

Sharon Yunker Bookkeeper $566.93/Pay
Shirley R. Eidson Dep. Clerk $519.19/Pay
Jennifer Althaus Dep. Clerk $514.94/Pay

Clerk of Circuit & Superior Court (Releases)

Dorothy J. Schaefer Bookkeeper $566.93/Pay
Sharon Yunker Dep Clerk $519.19/Pay
Shirley R. Eidson Dep. Clerk $514.94/Pay
Election Office (Appointments)

Casey E. Randolph Bal. Assem. $4.85/Hr.
4/30/87

Vanderburgh Auditorium (Appointments)

Anthony LaRue Part-Time $4.88/Hr.

4/27/87

Superior Court (Appointments)

Debra M. Settle Court Reporter $19,695/Yr.

Superior Court (Releases)

Debra M. Settle
Mary J. Stucki
Marilyn Hess
Adrianne Hawthorne

S.C. Sec'y. $16,308/Yr.
Court Reporter $19,695/Yr.
Clerical Asst. $13,663/Yr.
P.T. Intern $ 3.35/Hr.

Page 28
Eff: 5/11/87
Eff: 5/8/87
Eff: 4/27/87
Eff: 4/24/87
Bff: 4/21/87
Eff: 4/27/8%
Eff: 4/27/87
Eff: 4/27/87
Eff: 4/27/87
Eff: 4/27/87
Eff: 4/27/87

Eff:

Eff:

Eff: 5/4/87
Eff: 5/1/87
Eff: 5/1/87
Eff: 4/24/87
Eff: 5/1/87

There being no further business to be brought before the
President Borries adjourned the meeting at 5:00 p.m.

PRESENT: COMMISSIONERS COUNTY AUDITOR
R. J. Borries Sam Humphrey
R. L. Willner
S. J. Cox

COUNTY HIGHWAY COUNTY ENGINEER

Bill Bethel Andy Easley

AREA PLAN BURDETTE PARK

B. Cunningham
B. Behme

Mark Tuley

Board,

COUNTY ATTORNEY

Curt John

SHERIFF

T.

Brandsasse

AUDITORIUM

K. Bitz
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SECRETARY:

OTHER
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Scott Hodge/Hayes, Seay, Mattern & Mattern

Lottie L. Potts
Kent Coleman
Carol James

Carl Dunn

Jack Coleman
Velsa Saalwachter
Lawrence Lowe

Mr. & Mrs. Otto Bergdorf
Bill Wittekindt
Jerry Schenk

News Media

Joanne A. Matthews

) R

Richard J. Borried, President
7

Tt

Robert L. Willner, Vice President

Shirley Jean Cox, Member



MINUTES
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING
MAY 11, 1987

The Vanderburgh County Board of Commissioners met in session at
2:30 p.m. on Monday, May 11, 1987, in the Commissioners Hearing
Room, with President Rick Borries presiding.

The meeting was called to order by President Borries, who
subsequently stated that approval of minutes of the previous
meeting will be deferred until next week.

RE: SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT

The Chair recognized James Fravel, Jr., Chief Deputy Sheriff.
Mr. Fravel read the following letter from Sheriff Shepard:

May 8, 1987

Mr. Richard Borries, President
Vanderburgh County Commissioners
Civic Center Complex

Evansville IN 47708

The Vanderburgh County Sheriff's Department requests
permission to sell the following items at public auction such
time as to be set by the auctioneer. The proceeds from this
sale will be placed in the General Fund as per Indiana State
Law.

The following items have been recovered from various
offenses, or listed as found articles and the owners
have not come forward to identify and claim them.

Sincerely,

Clarence C. Shepard
Sheriff of Vanderburgh Co.

President Borries said a lengthy list of items is attached, which
will be made available to the public.

Mr. Fravel said notices will be posted at the Civic Center and
notices will appear two different times in the newspapers. He
believes Mr. Curran Miller handled the auction the last time.

President Borries entertained questions.

Commissioner Cox asked, "These are no longer considered 'hot'
items are they?"

Mr. Fravel said these are items they have had for at least two
years, in general, and some longer than that.

Commissioner Willner asked what the State Statute says concerning
items of this nature.

Mr. Fravel said that, to the best of his recollection, it says
two (2) years. He said the auction should raise several hundred
dollars.

President Borries asked if the Commission agrees that the
Sheriff's Department is to follow the statute and work with
County Attorney John and proceed?
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Motion to this effect was made by Commissioner Willner, with a
second from Commissioner Cox. So ordered.

RE: TALL TIMBERS

It was noted by Commissioner Borries that the Tall Timbers matter
was scheduled for today's agenda. While he does have a letter,
he has talked with Mr. Jarrett on the phone and there will be no
action today on that matter. He believes he is still asking for
some clarification on different aspects.

RE: PERRY TOWNSHIP VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT

Mr. Paul Harper of 1416 Hathaway, a volunteer with the Perry
Township Fire Department, was recognized by the Chair. He said
they have been fighting a dump fire. It seems that there should
be some way of eliminating this kind of stuff. What they have
run into since the fire started at 4:00 p.m. Saturday, there have
been 767.2 manhours put in fighting it. They were out there
seven (7) hours and twenty-four (24) minutes....and they're still
fighting it. He asked if the Board would believe that they have
used 543,000 gallons of water. The dump runs from 15 to 20 ft.
deep. There was over $100.00 worth of fuel o0il used. They
ruined two hoses that would run about $175.00 to replace. The
question is, can't something be done to eliminate this kind of
stuff? They had it before and it took them four or five days to
put it out. What can be done? What is the solution? They are
volunteer help -- they don't get paid -- they do it for free and
they are glad to do it. But it looks like they should have some
help some way.

Commissioner Borries asked Mr. Harper just where specifically is
the dump located?

Mr. Harper said he believes it is at 2900 S. Red Bank Rd.

Commissioner Borries asked if this constitutes some kind of
illegal dump where people are just trashing up that particular
area. He doesn't know whether this is a public dump or what.
But the Sheriff goes by there as well as other officials, so
somebody ought to know what it is all about. He doesn't know.
But there is a dump there that causes them so much trouble every
so many years. They just want to know whether something can be
done. 1If this keeps up, their treasury is going to be in bad
shape. They want some answers. If people are breaking the law,
why? 1If they are not, then what is the alternative? He doesn't
want to go back to the Chief with no answers.

The Chair entertained questions,

Commissioner Cox said she doesn't know that she has questions --
but she does have comments to make. She lives out there very,
very close to the action. She did check with Area Plan this
morning and the area is zoned agricultural. They haven't
received one complaint on this piece of property that they have
in their files. She has lived out there since 1959. She knew
the dump was back there, because a lot of people do use it to
haul in lumber, shingles, tires, etc. But it is completely
surrounded by big trees and the owner's home. His lawn and front
is kept very nicely and people can't see the eyesore that it is
and the potential hazard that it is. She talked to the owner of
the property. It is a very, very deep ravine and they bought it
from the railroad company. In fact, his father bought it from
the railroad company. They used to raise livestock back there,
but every now and then when the river would come up (depending
upon the river's height) they would be flooded out. So they have
been filling this in for the last twenty years. They do have a
fire every now and then. The man would like to have it filled
in. He doesn't want to just continue it as a dump necessarily,
but this has been his livelihood. He's age 71 and a widower She
thinks he's willing to cooperate in any way that he can. The
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city is only nine (9) blocks away from this site and the fumes
and smoke that came from it certainly affected the city
residents. She can't understand why all these manhours (and she
just wrote it down) -- why some help by the City of Evansville
couldn't have gotten involved in giving some manpower hours to
this. She knows we had a problem with the water -- not being
allowed to use City water -- and that was worked out. But that,
too, was a detriment. But that is a little beside the point.

The point is that we are going to be doing some road paving; we
are going to be pulling some shoulders; we are going, hopefully,
to be building a bridge on Rollet's Lane, where we will have some
extra dirt. She was wondering if the county couldn't hall the
dirt from out in that area to this man's landfill (or whatever
you want to call it) and help get this covered up. It is zoned
‘agricultural and the Board knows what a problem we've had down in
Union Township with the Biggerstaff property. It is awfully hard
to pin these things down —-- it is a difficult job -- but we can
work on it. Roger Lehman of the Building Commission is here and
he knows what the rules and regulations are for operating the
landfill (if this classifies as that). -

Commissioner Borries asked Commissioner Willner if he has any
comments?

Commissioner Willner said that landfills are strictly a State
problem -- if it is a landfill.

Commissioner Borries said this was going to be his question. He
asked Mr. Lehman if he has any comments? 1Is this a landfill or
not?

Mr. Lehman said that from the pictures he has seen (he hasn't
been out there personally), it definitely would be classified as
a landfill, which is governed by the State Board of Health (or
whatever their new name is now).

Commissioner Borries asked, "Has this man been following those
regulations?®

Mr. Lehman said, "Evidently not; they require dirt put over it
ever so many feet, etc., so he is sure he hasn't. The Building
Commission has never received any complaints either and he wasn't
aware of it until he saw it on the news. He will be glad to
contact Rick Schroeder with the State Board of Health and have

him check it out from the State's angle -- as we have in the
past.
Commissioner Borries said that if it isn't licensed -- and if

we're having problems now (we're in a dry spell; I heard on the
media that we're talking about seven inches of moisture or
precipitation below normal for this time of year) so we could
reasonably expect more incidences like this -- at least a brush
fire, and it is going to constitute a problem until we have some
adequate rain. And then we have drainage problems, but that is a
another matter. The real question here is that if they are not
following the State Statute, then as pointed out by Commissioner
Cox, we need to begin to fill that thing and move in that
direction. 1If anyone is going to operate a licensed landfill,
they are going to have to go through all the State regulations
and do whatever is necessary to keep it from becoming a health
hazard. If this is going to comnstitute that much of a hazard
(possibly toxic chemicals or something else in there) he would
appreciate Mr. Lehman's continuing to work on this and obtain an
immediate opinion from the State. Mr. Lehman agreed to do so.

Commissioner Cox said she doesn't know that Commissioner Borries
is old enough to remember the First Avenue Dump, which was
operated by the city. Look at the problems we had out there,
even with control. You get spontaneous combustion -- and
sometimes that thing would burn for a week or ten days or two
weeks.,
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RE: SOIL & WATER CONSERVATION SERVICE - ELVIS DOUGLAS

Mr.Elvis Douglas of the Vanderburgh County Soil & Water
Conservation Service was recognized by President Borries.

Mr. Douglas said he is present today to ask that the
Commissioners join with the rest of the counties of Indiana and
the nation to join in a celebration of Soil Stewardship Week.
They can do this by proclaiming May 24 thru May 31, 1987 as Soil
Stewardship Week in Vanderburgh County. The celebration goes
back quite some time; in fact, some 1500 years ago it first began
in Europe and early in the century it crossed the water and made
it to the U.S. It first got its start in several of the Southern
states beginning in the churches. After several years of not
making very much growth, one of the National Farm Magazines
formed a branch to join in the movement to try to spread this
throughout the nation. Of course, they didn't make very much
progress and it has continued to remain a celebration carried out
pretty much in the southern states. In the mid 1950's, they
asked the N.A.C.D. (National Association of Soil & Water -
Conservation Districts) to join in and try to make this a
nationwide observance. In 1954, the N.A.C.D. joined in the
movement and after one year with conflicts from other church
activities, they decided it would be necessary to make it a week
long observance. This year the theme of Soil Stewardship Week is
"Health, Hope and Healing". Mr. Douglas said he would like to say
that just as we need health, hope and healing in our daily lives,
certainly the conservation of our soil (water, sunshine and air)
resources so vital to our livelihood -- certainly, we need that
type of commitment in those. Again, he asks that the
Commissioners sign the Proclamation.

Motion to sign the following Proclamation was made by
Commissioner Willner, with a second from Commissioner Cox. So
ordered.

PROCLAMATTION

WHEREAS, the well-being of our people depends upon the
production of ample supplies of food, fiber, and other products
of the soil; and

WHEREAS, the quality and quantity of these products depend
upon the conservation, wise and proper management of the soil and
water resources; and,

WHEREAS, protection of our surface waters from pollution is
dependent upon the protection of soils from being blown or washed
into those waters;

WHEREAS, conservation districts provide a practical and
democratic organization through which landowners are taking the
initiative to conserve and make proper use of these resources;
and

WHEREAS, the soil conservation movement is carrying forward a
program of soil and water conservation in cooperation with
numerous agencies and countless individuals::

NOW, THEREFORE, I, in full appreciation of the value of our
soil and water resources to the public welfare, and desiring to
honor those who protect those resources, do hereby proclaim May
24-31, 1987

SOIL AND WATER STEWARDSHIP WEEK
IN THE COUNTY OF VANDERBURGH

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and
Seal of the County to be affixed.
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Done at the City of Evansville
in the County

of Vanderburgh

this 11th day of May, the Year of
Our Lord one thousand nine hundred
eighty-seven.

Richard J. Borries, President
Board of Commissioners of
the County of Vanderburgh

Attest: Sam Humphrey, Auditor
Vanderburgh County

President Borries said Mr. Douglas does nice work and the Board
appreciates all the work he does in regard to soil conservation.

RE: COUNTY ATTORNEY - CURT JOHN

Attorney John reported that he has nothing other than the -
ordinance concerning the speed limits on county roads, which were
approved by the Board last week. He believes the ordinance has
already been advertised.

Commissioner Cox said she saw the advertisement in the newspaper
on Saturday, May 9th.

It was noted by President Willner that the ordinance was approved
last week; the Commissioners have only to formally sign same
today.

Commissioner Borries said that with the nice weather this past
weekend, he is certain traffic in the area of Burdette Park
picked up considerably. Perhaps the local media can help the
county via informing people that some changes in speed limits in
this area have taken place. Again, because of the increased
activity on those softball diamonds, we are really asking for
cooperation to hold that speed down.

Attorney John asked whether the new speed limits have been
posted?

Commissioner Borries said he is uncertain. He said Mr. Bethel
may want a copy of the ordinance -- and he asked that Mr. Bethel
coordinate with the Traffic Department to make sure the roads are
properly signed. (Copy of the following ordinance was provided
to Mr. Bethel.)

ORDINANCE AMENDING SPEED LIMITS

BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of Vanderburgh
County, Indiana that henceforth the Ordinance regulating the
maximum speed limits is hereby amended as follows:

1. Tupman Road -- the maximum speed limit shall be
30 miles per hour.

2, Harmony Way -- from 600 feet North of Westwood Drive
to 1200 feet South of Westwood, the maximum speed
limit shall be 30 miles per hour.

3. South Red Bank Road -- from the corporate limits of
the City of Evansville South to the end of Red Bank
Road at the intersection of Red Bank and Nurrenbern
Road and Graff Road, the maximum speed limit shall be
30 miles per hour.

This Ordinance shall become final, binding and in full force and
effect immediately upon its passage and upon the execution hereof
by the members of the Board of Commissioners of Vanderburgh
County, or a majority of them.
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VANDERBURGH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

BY: Richard J. Borries, President
Robert L. Willner,Vice President
Shirley Jean Cox, Member

PASSED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF VANDERBURGH COUNTY
ON THIS 4TH DAY OF MAY, 1987 AND ON SAID DAY SIGNED BY THE
MEMBERS OF SAID COMMISSION AND ATTESTED BY THE UNDERSIGNED
AUDITOR OF VANDERBURGH COUNTY, INDIANA.

Sam Humphrey, Auditor
Vanderburgh County, Indiana

Approved as to form:

Curt John
County Attorney

RE: COUNTY HIGHWAY - BILL BETHEL ‘ -

Weekly work Report: Mr. Bethel submitted copies of the Weekly
Work Report for employees at the County Garage for period of May
4 thru May 8, 1987........report received and filed. Attached to
the Work Report was the following Work Schedule:

Gradall: Radio Avenue, Oak Hill Rd, 0ld 460

Paved: Finished Fisher Rd., 0ld State Rd., from Camp
Ground to Evergreen, and Telephone RAd.

Patch Crew: Larch Lane (curb), Happe Rd., Darmstadt Rd., Old
Princeton Rd., Fisher, Audubon and Chestnut,
Heckel Rd., Upper Mt. Vernon Rd., Cliffwood Dr.,
Peerless, Hillview Drive and Boonville-New

Harmony
Graded &
Rocked: Motz Lane, Motz Rd.
Mower: St. Joe Avenue

Weekly Work Report/Bridge Crew: Also submitted for the same
period was the Weekly Work Report for the Bridge Crewe.eeees.
report received and filed.

- Concreted and rip-rapped 7519 Meadow View Drive

-~ Concreted and rip-rapped end of culvert on Whispering
Hill Drive

- Replaced culvert on Bender Rd., and repaired drain at
2442 Lexington Avenue

- Rip-rapped Bender Rd., St. Joe Rd., and Campbell Rd.
- Repaired the Ohio St. Bridge
Weekly Absentee Reports: Also submitted for the same period were

the Weekly Absentee Reports for Employees at the County Garage
and the Bridge Crew.....reports received and filed.

Revised 1987 Road Paving Program: Mr. Bethel said he went before
County Council last week to request money for the 1987 road
paving program. He was cut back somewhat and a copy of the
revised 1987 Road Paving Program has been submitted to the
Commissioners. He still has hopes, however, of getting it all.
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RE: COUNTY ENGINEER -~ ANDY EASLEY

McCutchan Estates I: Mr. Easley said that Mr. Gary Williams, the
developer of McCutchan Estates, and Mr. Jim Morley of Morley &
Associates are present today. He relayed the Commissioners®

comments concerning the access to McCutchan Estates off Heinlein

Rd. for construction equipment. He believes Mr. Morley would

like to address the matter at this time. l

Mr. Morley said that first of all, they have to have their cost
estimate plans approved before they can record anything; thus,
they are anxious to get this done. Questions were raised
concerning access to Heinlein Rd. and they didn't want to do any
work on Heinlein or the Effinger property until after the plans
were approved. They do have a problem with Heinlein. Heinlein
is posted "No Trucks" at a point some 600 ft. west of where they
need to come in. What process will need to be done so they can
legally get up Heinlein to the point to come into the
subdivision. Andy said there were also questions raised
regarding whether or not they should come in off 0l1d Petersburg -
Rd. He relayed those to Gary Williams (who is here) and if there
are questions they can answer, they would be glad to do so.

Thus, there are two things: They need to be legally able to get
up Heinlein Rd. And, the second concerned the questions the
Board has concerning the entrance on 0ld Petersburg Rd.

The Chair entertained questions from the Commissioners.

Commissioner Willner said, "I think what we're doing on Heinlein
is asking people to stay off of it; instead of taking a shortcut
up Heinlein to Burch Park Drive, they can go Highway 57 and come
around ——- and we want them to do that.

Mr. Morley said, "But the sign is up just past Burch Park Drive.
He asked, "So there is no problem, that is not something by
ordinance?”

Mr. Willner said, "Just don't let it get you stuck in that small
portion at the top of the hill -- that's all.

Mr. Morley said the next concerns access off 0ld Petersburg Rd4d,.
and whether the Commissioners had questions concerning
construction equipment getting to the site off 0ld Petersburg
Rd.?

Commissioner Willner said, "They wanted you to use the Heinlein
Rd. entrance -—- "

Mr. Morley said, "That is fine, when we get Heinlein RAd.
constructed -- but until that time, the only road we have is..."

Commissioner Willner said, "I believe you are missing the point.
We want you to do it first -- so you don't tear up...."

Mr. Morley said there are two property owners: Tom Wolf and Gary
Williams (who are partners on the subdivision).

Commissioner Willner asked, "Why would you not build the entrance
off Heinlein Rd. first before you start the subdivision?"

Mr. Morley said, "They are both to be roads for the subdivision.
In the springtime, they'd rather come in the most convenient way
and they are building a nice entrance up there. Under the
present ordinance, they put up the money for everything -- it all
comes. But if it is all put up and all guaranteed, what
difference does it make? I don't understand. There are two
roads that come in and out. I don't understand. Does someone
have a real concern here or is there a problem that we need to
address?

Commissioner Cox said, "I don't have a real concern. I
understand that at the Area Plan Commission meeting there was an
agreement to upgrade the present road that comes off 0l1d
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Petersburg Rd. back into the subdivision to a 24 ft. width, I
believe. And the one off Heinlein was going to act as a primary
entrance.

Commissioner Willner said, "A 24-ft roadway does not meet the
code for a subdivision. 8So they just merely asked you to finish
the other one first and use it. 1Is there anything wrong with
that?"

Commissioner Cox asked, "Who is 'they', Bob2?"

Commissioner Willner said, "The people in McCutchanville on 0l1d
Petersburg Rd. want that traffic to go in down below. 1It's
simple.. If you don't want to do it, just say so. 1It's simple.
I don't see the big problem."”

Mr. Morley said there is no truck traffic going in and out. They
moved equipment in.

Commissioner Willner asked, "How are they going to build the -
homes if they don't run truck traffic in? How are they going to
get concrete trucks in?"

Mr. Morley responded, "I don't understand. There are five more
subdivisions up and down 0Old Petersburg Rd. Why is this being
singled out? What's going on?"

Commissioner Willner said, "We merely want you to use that. 1It's
very simple."

Mr. Morley asked, "What is different about this subdivision and
every other subdivision up and down that road? 1Is it posted? Is
there something we don't know about here? I guess I understand
what you are saying. But what is different here than the next
one up the road?"

Mr. Willner responded, "Probably the next one up the road has 50
ft., I would imagine."

Mr. Morley said, "But it's 0ld Petersburg Rd. that we're talking
about, right? 1It's traffic on 0ld Petersburg Rd.?

Mr. Willner said, "I would say both of them, yes."

Mr. Morley said, "Because the private roadway, where there is a
neck that is 36-1/2 ft. right-of-way which he is to build up to
regular 24 ft. width -- because Rose suggested for traffic
movement that it would preferable to have the two entrances in
and out of the subdivision -- and that was agreed to -- and now
there is the question of construction. He is starting and
working at that end and when the plans are approved he has to put
up 100% of the money for all of it. He has eighteen (18)
months. But never before do I remember our telling any
contractor where to start on something. I just don't
understand. I am sure he will comply as much as he can, but
there are two things: 1Is there some ordinance violation here?
Secondly, what does that have to do with the approval of the
construction drawings?"

Commissioner Borries responded, :Well, last week I think we
wanted more information in terms of the project, itself. The
other thing was the matter of comment that Bob made simply to ask
for cooperation and it has nothing to do with singling anyone
out, short of the fact of making the comment in terms of asking
for cooperation -- and that is what we are doing.

Commissioner Willner commented, "There are some people who are
afraid that they are not going to construct the lower drive and
when he is through with the subdivision he will come in here and
say he wants the extra portion to construct homes. That's the
who%e purpose of the thing. If you don't want to do it just say
SO.
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Mr. Morley said, "That is why you passed the ordinance and said
you have to guarantee 100% of it. You did and he is ready with
the Letter of Credit as soon as the plans are approved.”

Commissioner Cox asked, "Did this come up at Area Plan?"

Mr. Morley said, "Rose Zigenfus had suggested that we have both
accesses. He's got to include the private road coming in..."

Commissioner Willner said, "Wait a minute. What do you mean
suggested?”

Mr. Morley said, "At the Plan Commission meeting they wanted the
50 ft. legal road for a subdivision....”

Commissioner Willner said, "It wasn't suggested; if you did not
give that road you would not have gotten your subdivision.”

Mr. Morley said, "That is correct."”

Commissioner Willner said, "Now then, they think you don't want
to use that. After you have done the legal, there are people who
say you are not ever going to use that. I just want you to
assure me that you are; that you are going to start using it. 1If
not, then I don't want to approve the plans. 1It's that simple,
Jim. I don't care about the money. I just want to hear you say
that they are going to build that 50 ft. road into there and use
it. That's what I want to hear you say."

Mr. Morley said, "Yes sir, that is correct. The 50 ft. roadway
is going to be built and used and the Letter of Credit will be
put up right now or as soon as the plans are approved. That is
part of the ordinance. We all have to guarantee them. We can't
do what they are afraid of Bob. The new ordinance has completely
eliminated that possibility. No longer can somebody go in and
then pull out on a project, because your new ordinance now makes
them guarantee the whole thing."

Commissioner Willner said, "It doesn't guarantee that you will
build that 50 ft. roadway in there first, it doesn't do that at
all."

Mr. Morley said, "It gives us that time; the ordinance gives us
18 months. They put up all the money and there is 18 months in
which to complete it. Perhaps Mr. Williams can answer any
questions I can't. I can't say when any particular part of it is
to be completed. But both are entrances into the subdivision."

Commissioner Cox said, "I guess the question here is, are both
entrances going to be completed before homes are started?"”

Mr. Morley asked, "Before homes are started? I doubt that very
much. They already have some buyers in line who will probably
want to start homes within the next two or three weeks. And it
will be probably the end of the summer before we get all the work
on Heinlein done. There are some poles to relocate along the
side and then we've got some sewer work along Heinline. It will
take longer to complete Heinlein than it will to do the upgrading
of the entrance off Petersburg —-— just by the nature of the
work."

Mrs. Cox said, "Well, you're starting out with a road that has a
potential base through a field, where you're going to build a
road to connect onto Heinlein."

Mr. Morley said, "That's right."™ He then asked Mr. Williams what
his anticipated completion date is for all the improvements on
Phase I?

Mr. Williams responded, "Six months". He made other comments,
but they were inaudible because he was speaking from his seat and
not at the podium. "We upgraded the entry as suggested by the
APC. We've done everything the Area Plan Commission asked."
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Commissioner Borries asked Mr. Willner whether he wanted to ask
Mr. Williams directly?

Commissioner Willner responded, "It is very clear to me that they
are not going to put the road in off Heinlein first. It is very
clear to me that they want to go to the other one which, in my
opinion, they have not met the legal subdivision ordinance. They
have to have a road in there 50 ft. and they have not got it and
as far as I am concerned I am going to vote 'no', because I
understand they don't want to do this. I understand why they
don't want to do it."

Mr. Morley interjected, "No, we do want to do it. The private
road is there right now. That road is already constructed; it is
an asphalt road that...."

Mr. Willner interjected, "That is not a legal road for the
subdivision.”

Mr. Williams said, "But I didn't see anything in the minutes of
the meeting I had that said we couldn't go back in and start
construction in the subdivision now. It sets in a pocket away
from everyone. We're working a thousand feet off 0ld Petersburg
Rd. back in the subdivision. We intend to build Edinborough.

But like Jim said, I had to file a Letter of Credit for
$426,000.00 at Citizens Bank to construct the road and put in
utilities. There is no way I cannot do it. I have to do it. I
intend to do it. 1I've done everything in my power to do
everything the APC requested. There is not a thing I haven't
done. If someone would drive by and look at what we are doing
then I think they'd understand what we are doing. I'm not trying
to get out of any laws; I'm not trying to do anything that is not
right. I think that if anyone...."

Commissioner Borries asked, "Can you assure him as to what his
concern is?"

Mr. Williams said, "Yes I can assure him. That road will be put
in as quickly as possible. They are cutting on roads right now;
that road ties into them."

Commissioner Borries asked, "What is your response to his comment
that you are not following the subdivision ordinance at this
point?*®

Mr. Williams said, "I am; my attorney is Ted Ziemer. Had I known
this, I would have had him come down here. We are following
everything. I know Ted was working with the APC office, Rose
Zigenfus; with everybody. 1I've spent a lot of money to do
everything by the book the way it was supposed to have been done.
There is not one request that has not been met. 1I've paid
attorneys fees, engineering fees -—and I've done everything that
the Area Plan Commission has requested. In fact, we've gone out
of our way. I even volunteered to widen Heinlein Rd. to 24 ft.
just so we could meet these obligations."

Mr. Easley said, "The Commissioners (particularly Mr. Willner)
are expressing apprehensions of the people in the neighborhood as
to how soon they can expect to see the entrance off Heinlein."

Mr. Williams responded, "It will be in the summer; I have 18
months. The people that adjoin the property have actually bought
a lot from me. The Harrisons are tapping into the sewers, so I
don't know of anyone who is unhappy. There may be one or two
that are not happy -- but we're doing everything we possibly can
to meet our obligations."

Mr. Easley said "The people in the area practically filled this
hearing room several months ago when the property was up for
rezoning and when the subdivision was here for approval. They
had hoped to see a major effort made to construct the access road
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off of Heinlein and that is all Mr. Willner is saying. They
really had expected to see a major concentration of effort to
construct the road off Heinlein instead of building the little
entrance shelter up off of Petersburg Rd. -- and that is what he
is saying -- and I have to say that I heard some comments, also."

Mr. Williams commented, "I don't know what comments you heard,
because everything I have stated I can prove. All I know is that
I have met every requirement —- my attorney and engineer met --
and we have cooperated with every office down here. I know the
neighbors out there opposed this, but it was approved by the Area
Plan Commission above their objections. I wasn't happy with that
which was built right behind me -- but I built a fence and I
couldn't help that."”

Mr. Willner said, "The roadway plans are approved by this Board
—- this Board -- not Area Plan. You are not complying with what
this Board asked you to do -- you are not. We're simply asking
you to build that road first -- first."

Mr.Williams said, "I intend to build that road -- but you are
asking for it right now."”

Commissioner Cox said, "My question here is, why are we asking
these people here to build a road first when we accept and
approve other street plans that come before us and never even
question where they are going to start? I don't know what the
big problem here is. It just wasn't an access off Heinlein that
these people were upset about. It was the density that they were
planning out there and the duplexes and everything. We're
talking single family residence."

Mr. Willner said, "The subdivision ordinance says that your
subdivision must have a 50 ft. entrance period. That has never
been changed. I have never asked for a 16 ft., 17 ft. or 24 ft.
It's 50 ft. -- and the same for his subdivision. And the people
want him to use the 50 ft. that he has off Heinlein Rd. 1It's
very simple. If he doesn't want to use the 50 ft., then I am not
going to..."

Mr. Williams interjected, "We are going to use the 50 ft. -—- I'm
not saying that we're not going to —- but not right now because
the private road is there to be used. We couldn't use the road
off Heinlein. It was impossible -- there was mud. 1It's a corn
field -- you know that as well as I do. I live out there."

Commissioner Cox asked, "Why did EUTS recommend the extension at
all of this private drive back into there as part of the
subdivision?”

Mr. Williams responded, "They asked us to widen it to 24 ft."

Mrs. Cox said, "Why didn't they say, 'close your subdivision off
and don't use that'? That would have solved the problem."”

Mr. Williams said, "They said we needed two roads for emergency
vehicles (like the fire department, ambulances, etCe.)eeee"

Commissioner Willner said, "They don't mind if vehicular traffic
comes through there (automobiles) -- but they don't want big
trucks coming through there.”

Mr. Williams said, "There haven't been any big trucks going
through there; we haven't had hardly any trucks -- there has been
more work done on the lake across the street concreting the banks
the last two years than has been done on my property. The fire
station has trucks going up and down there all the time on
improvements. We haven't done anything that someone else hasn't
done -- in fact, we've done hardly anything in there. I don't
know why my plans haven't been approved. I've met every request
they made.”
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Commissioner Willner said, "My answer is no."

Commissioner Borries said, "I share his concern; I would want
clarification before we call for a vote on this. When do you
think you are going to put the road in?"

Mr. Williams said, "I hope to have them between July and August.
If I can't get these plans approved I'm going to have to stop,
because I am going ahead in good faith that these plans would be
approved. Jim has already been working and we've got Steve
Blankenberger in there -- and I intend to have that road in as
quickly as possible.”

Commissioner Borries asked, "We're not trying to single you out.
It seems as if every parcel of property has its own unique kinds
of situations. We're just trying to get a commitment..."

Mr. Williams interjected, "I understand; I'm trying to be fair.
I'll get that road in there as quickly as possible. 1I'll promise
to have it by the end of August if not sooner -- is that good -
enough?”

Commissioner Borries expressed thanks to Mr. Williams.

Commissioner Cox asked Mr. Williams the name of the subdivision
again.

Mr. Williams said it is McCutchan Estates I.

Mrs. Cox asked if these are the same plans that she has carried
to the last three meetings of the Board of Commissioners? She
didn't bring them today and now it comes up. She saw absolutely
nothing wrong with the plans when she reviewed them. She did
with the other set of plans (Greenbriar) -- she questioned the
sidewalks. But she found nothing wrong with the plans for
McCutchan Estates I. Therefore, she would move that the street
plans for McCutchan Estates I be approved, as submitted, with the
information provided by Mr. Williams that the entrance off of
Heinlein Rd. will be completed in August. A second to the motion
was provided by Commissioner Borries. Commissioner Willner
declined to vote.

Commissioner Borries said he hopes we're able to address
Commissioner Willner's concerns with the comments made by Mr.
Williams.

Commissioner Willner said that when that road is torn up, then he
will get the other one in.

Mrs. Cox said, "Well, it is his private road. Why are we going
to worry about his private road getting torn up? 1I can't
understand it, Bob." .

Commissioner Willner said, "It is not his 50 ft. private road
that is being torn up.”

Mrs. Cox said, "It is his other road off 0l1d Petersburg R4. and
he is going to have to improve it. I just don't understand. I'm
trying to see what you're saying, but I just don't understand the
logic.”

Commissioner Willner replied, "All he'd have to say is that he'd
do the other one first -- that's all he'd have to say; but he
won't do that, will he?"

Mrs. Cox asked, "What if they build the road and come in off 0ld
Petersburg?"

Mr. Willner replied, "If the vehicle traffic comes in off 01d
Petersburg Rd., that is fine."
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Mrs. Cox said "Just because they build off Heinlein, that doesn't
mean they have to use the Heinlein entrance, does it?"

Change Order/Heerdink Lane: The meeting continued with President
Borries asking Mr. Easley what else he has for the Board's
attention?

Mr. Easley presented Change Order No. 10 on Heerdink Lane. He
went out and negotiated with Koester Equipment, Inc. and the
State Project Engineer. We now have all the unit prices
established for the work that has to be done. We have a
gentlemen's agreement that when they get the sub grade graded, we
would like to put down the base and do the asphalt paving.
Koester said they would agree to let us do this. In order for
the project to move forward, we need to sign the Change Order.

By executing this we are, in effect, agreeing to pay for $190,272
worth of work. It is his recommendation that the Commissioners
sign the document and when they have the sub grade graded, then
the Commissioners, Bill Bethel and he will decide whether we want
to have that base put down and that asphalt in another manner.

If the Commissioners will recall, he had estimated the aggregate
for the base would cost about $9.00 plus $3.00 to put it down or
a total of $12.00, so we might save $1.95 per ton. We still have
the problem with their asphalt prices, but that matter can be
taken up at a later date.

Motion to approve the Change Order and Extra Work Agreement was
made by Commissioner Willner.

In response to query from Commissioner Cox, Mr. Easley explained
that when this was originally conceived, the county was going to
construct this half mile of road and he had estimated that we
could put down a crushed stone base and have it compacted for
$12.00 per ton. If we elected to tell the state not to do this,
we might save $1.95 per ton.

A second to Mr. Willner's motion to approve the Change Order and
sign the Extra Work Agreement was provided by Mrs. Cox. So
ordered.

Commissioner Borries asked if Mr. Easley has the money?

Mr. Easley said there is an account for that. It may be $10,000
short. He may have to transfer more money into the account --
but there is almost enough money in the account.

Mrs. Cox asked, "So the $64,750.40 is Change Order No. 102"

Mr. Easley responded that this is correct.

"B" Street Underpass: Commissioner Borries asked Mr. Easley if

he is going to keep the Board informed concerning his
conversations with the railroad, etc.?

Mr. Easley said he is. He has not officially received comments
from either SIGECO or the Board of Works —-- but he will keep the
Board advised.

RE: REQUEST TO USE VOTO-MATICS

The meeting resumed with President Borries reading the following
request letter:

May 6, 1987

County Commissioners Office
Administration Bldg., Room 305
Civic Center Complex
Evansville, IN 47708
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TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:

Our Student Council is preparing for our Spring General
Elections. As in the past several years, we requested by
phone the use of four portable VOTO-MATIC booths. I was
asked to submit this request in writing for approval at a
County Commissioners meeting.

Would it be possible to borrow FOUR booths to be used on
May 19, 10 and 21? I would be able to pick these up at the
County Commissioners Office on May 18 and return them
personally. The booths would be set up only during the
established times for voting. Our appointed Election Board
and I will be present during the time of voting. Therefore,
I feel certain that there would be no damage to the booths.
I will have a Certificate of Insurance from our Diocesan
Insurance Office regarding this matter.

We appreciate your cooperation in the past and thank
you for consideration of our present request. -

Sincerely,

Stephen J. Rode
Student Council Adviser

Motion to approve the request was made by Commissioner Cox, with
a second from Commissioner Willner. So ordered.

RE: BUILDING COMMISSION - ROGER LEHMAN

Mr. Lehman submitted the monthly report from the Building
Commission for April, 1987. Year to date there were 1,156
permits issued at a valuation of $22,843,567 and fees of
$61,677.25. We have written 100 more permits than we had this
time last year for the county -- and we are approximately
$500,000 ahead in valuation and approximately $200 less in permit
fees. So business hasn't slowed down yet. Houses in April did
decline from 92 to 56; the previous month had been keeping pace
but not exceeding last year.

Mr. Lehman asked if the Commissioners saw the letter at the last
meeting concerning the Highway 57 north problem? This concerned
Kay's Health Club. He will make copies for the Commissioners and
get same to them. (His secretary was sick last week.) But he
sent the letter to Mike Chandley, c/o Scales, Wissner and Krantz
in Boonville, concerning 6930 Highway 57 North (which is the old
Kay's Health Club). He had contact with them via phone a couple
of weeks ago and they assured him they would get something taken
care of. Nothing happened so he sent this letter. 1Inspection of
described property revealed the presence of trash, debris, weeds,
partially razed and delapidated structure. These conditions
violate Vanderburgh County Code of Ordinances. If immediate
remedial action is not taken, the case will be brought before the
Board of County Commissioners for disposition. Reinspection will
take place in fourteen (14) days. The letter was sent May lst,
so the reinspection will be made at the end of this week and he
will have another report at the next Commissioners meeting.

The Chair entertained questions. There were none.

RE: OLD BUSINESS

Contempt Order/Marion Biggerstaff Property: President Borries
said a Contempt Order was filed in Superior Court by the Board of
Zoning Appeals and Area Plan Commission of Vanderburgh County vs.
Marion Biggerstaff (Cause No. 84-CIV-397) on the matter of his
Union Township property and the continuing complaints versus a
Judgment that had at some point been given against him. (Copy of
Order herewith attached to the minutes.)
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Commissioner Cox said she thinks the hearing date has been set
for May 26th at 9:00 a.m. in Judge Dietsch's Chambers.

Bob Knight: President Borries said that on April 7th we wrote to
Bobby Knight congratulating him on his basketball team -- and we
got a letter back, as follows:

Dear Rick,

Thank you for sending the Resolution to us on this
year's Indiana Basketball Team. We appreciate very much
the thoughtfulness of you and the other people in
Vanderburgh County.

Sincerely yours,

Bobby Knight
Basketball Coach

It was also noted that today is Commissioner Borries' birthday. -

IDOH Meeting: Mr. Easley advised that Rose Zigenfus has asked
him to go to a meeting on Wednesday with the Indiana Department

- of Highways concerning the environmental on Eickhoff-Koressel Rd.
It will probably take all day to make the trip. With the
Commissioners' permission, he will be out of town on Wednesday.

It was the consensus of the Commissioners that Mr. Easley should
attend subject meeting.

RE: SCHEDULED MEETINGS

Thurs. May 14 4:15 p.m. EUTS Meeting

Thurs. May 14 4:00 p.m. Legal Aid Society
Annual Mtg. (Rm 303)

Thurs. May 14 12:00 Noon EMS Council Luncheon
Mtg. at Welborn
Hospital (Blue Room)

RE: CLAIMS

Jones & Wallace: Claim presented in the amount of $390.90 for
contractual litigation services. An itemized list of services is
attached to the claim. Motion to approve the claim for payment
was made by Commissioner Willner, with a second from Commissioner
Cox. So ordered.

RE: EMPLOYMENT CHANGES

Election Office (Appointments)

Clara Berry Dep. Clerk $4.85/Hr. Eff: 5/4/87

Election Office (Releases)

Gerald Wohlhueter Bal. Assem. $4.85/Hr., Eff: 5/7/87
Warren Thompson Bal. Assem. $5.70/8r. Eff: 5/7/87
Doris Cato Dep. Clerk $4.85/Hr. Eff: 5/6/87
Casey E. Randolph, Sr. Bal. Assem. $4.85/Hr. Eff: 5/6/87
John Lee Jones Bal. Assem. $4.85/Hr. Eff: 5/6/87
Carol Lee Primm Dep. Clerk $5.70/Hr Eff: 5/6/87
Mary Lee Bassemier Dep. Clerk $4.85/Hr. Eff: 5/6/87
Charlotte Shetler Dep. Clerk $4.85/Hr. Eff: 5/6/87

Sylvia T. Loviscek Dep. Clerk $4.85/Hr. Eff: 5/6/87
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Pigeon Township Trustee (Releases)

Ronald Crawford Clerk $14,540/Yr .Eff: 4/25/87
Treasurer (Releases)

David L. Wedding P.T. Security $10.00/Hr. Eff: 5/12/87
Treasurer (Appointments)

Bettye Joyce Miles Registrar $13,000/Yr.Eff: 5/11/87
Dave Wedding P.T. Security $10.00/Hr. Eff: 5/11/87

Burdette Park (Appointments)

Wm. Engelhardt, Jr. P.T.G.C. $4.35/Hr. Eff: 5/4/87
Michael Gerard P.T.G.C. $4.00/Hr. Eff: 5/11/87
Scott Buedel P.T.G.C. $4.00/Hr. Eff: 5/11/87

L3

There being no further business to come before the Board at this
time, President Borries declared the meeting adjourned at 3:50
p.m., with announcement that Special Drainage Meeting will be
held immediately subsequent to the Commissioners Meeting.

PRESENT : COMMISSIONERS COUNTY AUDITOR COUNTY ATTORNEY
R. J. Borries Sam Humphrey Curt John
R. L. Willner
S. J. Cox
COUNTY HIGHWAY COUNTY ENGINEER SHERIFF
Bill Bethel Andy Easley J. Fravel, Jr.
OTHER

Paul Harper/Perry Township Volunteer Fire Dept.
Elvis Douglas/Soil & Water Conservation Service
James Morley/Morley & Associates

Gary Williams/Developer - McCutchan Estates I
News Media

SECRETARY: Joanne A. Matthews

/ 4//’4/;/ /5%624

Richard J. Borrisyﬁ President

Rébert L. Willner, Vice President

Shirley Jean Cox, Member




MINUTES
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING \/
MAY 18, 1987

The Vanderburgh County Board of Commissioners met in session at
7:30 p.m. on Monday, May 18, 1987, in the Commissioners Hearing
Room, with President Rick Borries presiding.

The meeting was called to order by President Borries, who
extended a welcome to the crowd of approximately 125 persons and
introduced Commissioner Willner and himself. He said that
Commissioner Shirley Jean Cox will not be present for tonight's
meeting, as she is out of the City. President Borries apologized
for any inconvenience due to the overflowing meeting room, but
explained that another meeting is simultaneously in progress in
Council Chambers, which makes it impossible to move the
Commissioners Session to the larger hearing room.

Continuing, President Borries entertained a motion concerning
approval of the minutes of the meetings held May 4th and May
11th, noting that the Secretary had already noted an amendment on
Page 5 of the May 1llth minutes (to include Item #4 in Ordinance
Amending Speed Limits). Motion was made by Commissioner Willner
that the minutes of both meetings be approved, as engrossed by
the County Auditor (including the amendment to the May 1llth
minutes) and the reading of same be waived, with a second from
Commissioner Borries. So ordered.

RE: REZONING PETITIONS

President Borries said the evening meeting is held once a month
for the purpose of hearing rezoning petitions, to allow the
public to attend these in easier fashion than the afternoon
sessions held on the lst, 2nd, and 4th Mondays of the month.

The way the process works is that, on routine matter lst Reading,
the Commissioners will examine these petitions (he will read them
off and then he and Commissioner Willner will look at them and if
they wish to make any comments, they will do so). It will then
be forwarded to the Area Plan Commission and heard in their
meeting on the 2nd Reading. Area Plan meets every month on the
first Wednesday of the month. That would mean that on 2nd
Readings they would be heard on June 3rd. They would then be
forwarded back to this Commission for a 3rd or Final Reading.
Action can be taken or petitions (as some have been mentioned
this evening as published on his agenda) have either been
withdrawn or continued. To clarify that, the Ordinance says that
if a motion is continued, the County Commissioners shall conduct
a public hearing on the petition either at that meeting or within
90 days after the APC's recommendations. So if a person
continues it tonight, one way or another it has to be withdrawn
or heard 90 days from the time that the matter is acted upon at
the Area Plan Commission.

VC-11-87/Petitioner, 0ld National Bank (lst Reading): This
petition has been forwarded to the Town of Darmstadt. They have
a Town Board. It will be considered there and will then be
forwarded to Area Plan for the 2nd Reading.

VC-12-87/Petitioner, Virgil Pfingston (lst Reading): Common
known address is 4809 Tanglewood Drive. The property is
currently zoned R-1 and requested change is to R-3. Proposed
land use is a multi-family dwelling {(one building) near
intersection of Bergdolt Rd. and Tanglewood Drive. There being
no one present either to address the petition or remonstrate
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against same, a motion was entertained. Motion to approve
petition on lst Reading and forward to the Area Plan Commission
was made by Commissioner Willner, with a second from Commissioner
Borries. So ordered.

vC-13~-87/Petitioner, Reedco, Inc. (lst Reading): Common known
address is 2131 Commercial Court. Property is currently zoned
C-4 and requested change is to M-l. There being no one present
either to address the petition or remonstrate against same, a
motion was entertained. Motion to approve petition on lst
Reading and forward to the Area Plan Commission was made by
Commissioner Willner, with a second from Commissioner Borries.
So ordered.

VC-3-87/Petitioner, Harvey Klenck (3rd Reading): This petition
has been withdrawn, so no action will be taken.

VvC-5-87/Petitioner, Jeffrey S. Kempf (3rd Reading): Dave
Robinson, Attorney for Mr. Kempf, was recognized by the Chair.
He stated that one of the problems when this matter came before
the Area Plan Commission was the fact that the APC considered it~
speculative rezoning. Since that time, Mr. Kempf has now
obtained a tenant and some of the potential problems with the
real estate on Allen's Lane have been resolved. Attorney
Robinson said he would like to have a continuance in order to
have further evidence to present to a full meeting of the
Commissioners. By that time they should have all the potential
problems resolved and, hopefully, the petition could be approved
at that time.

Commissioner Borries said the petition would have to be heard
next month in order to fit within the guidelines of the
Ordinance. He then asked Commissioner Willner for his thoughts
re the request for the continuance.

Following a brief discussion between the Commissioners, President
Borries said the reason he and Commissioner Willner are concerned
about continuing this matter is that while they recognize Mr.
Robinson would like more time to consider this, there are also
probably some persons who have made plans this evening and
perhaps some personal sacrifices to attend this meeting. At this
late date, it places a hardship on them to allow this
continuance. He then asked if there are persons present who wish
to speak to this rezoning?

Attorney Robinson said his main problem is that he didn't realize
that Shirley Jean (Cox) wouldn't be here tonight until just
shortly before he walked into the meeting. He does have most of
the facts available, but he would like to clear a few matters up
before the next hearing, particularly since Commissioner Cox is
not here. Obviously, he could have called this afternoon had he
known she was not going to be here. But, again, he did not learn
this until shortly before he walked into the meeting.

Commissioner Borries said that without a full Board -- in
courtesy to Attorney Robinson --he would grant his request for a
continuance. This would mean that it would come to a Final or
3rd Reading on Monday, June 15th. As far as he knows,
Commissioner Cox would be in attendance at that time and that
would give the Full Board an opportunity to hear this rezoning
petition and act upon it at that time. He would want to
apologize to those persons who have made personal sacrifices to
come here this evening; but, also, out of respect and courtesy
for the Petitioner and the Attorney, if Commissioner Willner
agrees, the request for a continuance will be granted.
Commissioner Willner verbally agreed.

An unidentified individual in the audience asked, "It will not be
continued again after June, right? It has to be heard then?"

Commissioner Borries advised, "Yes, that is correct.”
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Pastor Carl Crowe of Harwood Baptist Church was recognized by the
Chair. He said that he will be on vacation on June 15th. But he
wants it known that the members of his church are against this
rezoning. He cannot personally be present, but perhaps some of
his church members can be present.

Commissioner Borries said that Pastor Crowe can submit a written
statement to that effect and it will certainly be entered into
the record at that time.

Pastor Crowe said he did want it known that the Church had voted
as a body to oppose this rezoning.

The meeting continued with President Borries advising Attorney
Robinson that his request for a continuance will be granted and
the matter will be scheduled for a 3rd or Final Reading on
Monday, June 15th, in the Commissioners Hearing Room at 7:30 p.m.

VC-6-87/Petitioner, Colonial Garden Center (3rd Reading): The
Chair recognized Attorney Mark Miller, who stated he represents _
Colonial Garden Center. This is a petition to change the zoning
from C-4 to R-1 for the purpose of developing a subdivision on
Outer Lincoln Avenue. The property is located behind McCarty's
Colonial Garden Center. This has gone before the APC several
times and it is back here after an agreed judgment in a case. He
does not anticipate any questions, but will be happy to respond
to same.

Commissioner Borries said that as pointed out by Attorney Miller,
this is a matter of legal settlement and, in effect, that
agreement ends up here for official action. He then asked if
there are persons who wish to speak to VC-6-87? There being no
response, a motion was entertained.

Motion was made by Commissioner Willner that VC-6-87 be approved
on 3rd Reading, with a second from Commissioner Borries.

President Borries then asked for a roll call vote: Commissioner
Willner, yes; Commissioner Borries, yes. President Borries said
the petition is approved.

VvC-7-87/Petitioner, Robert Brenner (3rd Reading): This rezoning
has been continued to June 15th at 7:30 p.m.

VC-8-87/Petitioner, John S. McCullough (3rd Reading): The Chair
recognized Mr. John S. McCullough, who stated he resides at 2300
E. Boonville-New Harmony Rd. They expressed their feelings at
the Area Plan Commission Meeting re the rezoning of this almost
four (4) acres from Agricultural to C-4 for possible usage as a
garden center. One of the problems brought up at that time was
that they would agree to sell the right-of-way for the
Boonville~New Harmony Rd. Extension at the agricultural rate and
Mrs. Fehn had no objections to that, whatsoever; further, it
would not hinder their situation.

President Borries said that Mrs. Barbara Cunningham, APC
Director, has indicated that Mr. McCullough has submitted a
Section 4. He asked if Mrs. Cunningham would like to explain
this.

Mrs. Cunningham said the APC had asked for a Section 4. They
asked EUTS to tell them where the Boonville-New Harmony Rd. will
extend and the right-of-way needed. Mr. McCullough has agreed to
sell the property to the County at agricultural prices, not at
C-4 prices.

Mr. McCullough said what they have in mind is basically using
only two (2) acres anyway out of the 3.4 acres.

Commissioner Borries asked that the record reflect that the
Commissioners wanted to know whether they needed an attorney's
opinion on that, but Mrs. Cunningham has said that it is clear
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and, as Mr. McCullough stated, he would be willing to grant the
right-of-way and that sale would be conducted at a much lower
price in terms of land that would be needed for this
Boonville-New Harmony Rd. intersection. The road is being
relocated because of the I-164 Project in this general area and
it will front out onto Green River Rd. once the road is
relocated. He then asked if anyone wishes to remonstrate at this
time? There being no response, a motion was entertained.

Motion was made by Commissioner Willner that VC-8-87 be approved
on 3rd Reading, stipulated to Area Plan's request with regard to
purchase of said right-of-way.

Mr. McCullough interjected, "I promise."

Commissioner Borries seconded the motion made by Commissioner
Willner and asked for a roll call vote. Commissioner Willner,
yes; Commissioner Borries, yes. President Borries declared the
petition approved, as stipulated.

VC-9-87/Petitioner, Thomas Duncan (3rd Reading): Attorney Keith
Wallace was recognized by the Chair. He said he is the attorney
representing the Petitioner, Thomas Duncan. They are asking the
Commissioners to rezone approximately a 31 acre parcel or what is
more commonly known as 5701 Oak Hill Rd. It is currently zoned
agricultural and R-1l. They are requesting a P.U.D. designation
—-- a Planned Unit Development -- as defined by the Comprehensive
Plan of the City of Evansville for 1985. He quoted....."The
purpose of a P.U.D. is to match the creative approach of the
building industry with unique land and housing demands of the
city and the county, while maintaining the necessary zoning
controls." The unique aspect of a P.U.D. is the fact that once
it is approved by this body, before any actual construction takes
place, it must go back before the Area Plan Commission to make
sure that it complies with all of the classifications and
restrictions placed on the P.U.D. as it is approved. Mr. Wallace
said that is a safety check which no other zoning classification
allows under the current zoning code.

This project (known as Oak Hill Estates) is an exciting and
fantastic development. The total development would be between
$20 and $25 million once you put in the houses, improvements to
drainage, sewers, the commercial and the condominiums. Based
upon a fairly standard technique (explained to him by Mr. Jim
Morley, who will be speaking later), if you take approximately a
third of that (between $7 and $8 million) as the cost of local
labor, you are talking approximately $7 to $8 million in local
labor; and at 2,000 hrs. per year per laborer, you're talking
approximately 350-400 man years of labor involved, which would be
jobs to our building industry.

All but 11% of the development is residential streets, lakes, and
other recreational uses. In the interest of conciseness, he is
going to address what he has known to be the three main areas of
concern to this type of development.

The first area he will approach is drainage and sewer. For that,
he would ask that Jim Morley, President of Jim Morley &

Associates, speak -— he is known for his expertise in the area of
drainage and sewers in the development of the City of Evansville.

Mr. Morley explained that what they have done is to create two
quite large lakes on the property in the area that is now quite
low; one of them to the very east side in an area around the hill
(there is a large hill through the center of the 81 acre site.
One is about 7 acres and the other about 10 acres -- and then
create the entrance boulevard off Oak Hill Rd. coming across this
lake, recreation facilities (tennis courts, etc.) along
designated lake and in designated area a picnic area and large
lake area with public walkway around. The condominium project
will be at the very southeast corner about one-half mile east of
Oak Hill Rd. sSome of the areas would be filled with excavation
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from the lake, so that at the completion of the project none of
it would be in the flood plain. As can be seen from the size of
the lake, it will hold a good deal of water.

The 1ift station for the sanitary sewers will be located in area
near Oak Hill Rd. and the discharge will be south. This is the
summary of the drainage and sewer construction.

In response to query, Mr. Morley said the system would be
adequate to make it possible to run gravity sewers into the lift
station.

Commissioner Borries asked how much of this property is currently
in the flood plain?

Mr. Morley responded that between 25-30% at the most. At the end
of the construction of the lakes, only the lakes themselves --
nothing would be in the flood plain. You would have 20 acres of
recreational site when the project is finished. Even then about.
20% of it would be reserved as lakes -- but somewhere around
25%to 30% is currently in the flood plain. The f£illing would -
occur in designated area up on Oak Hill Rd. from the lake.
Excavation and filling would occur at the southeast corner in the
area where the condominiums would go. The existing hill will not

be cut down -- all of the £ill will come from the excavation of
the lakes.
Commissioner Borries asked if the 1lift station referred to -- is

the 1lift station constructed by this developer or the City of
Evansville?

Mr. Morley responded, "By the developer.®

Mr. Borries asked, "That would be with the approval of the Sewer
Department? 1In certain areas where we have seen lift stations
constructed, we have also received some complaints that the
discharge has begun to cause problems and the lift stations have
not been adequate when they have been constructed."

Mr. Morley responded, "Right; I think that new lift stations are
getting a closer review than they did previously. This would not
create any significant problems. This is a large development, so
you wouldn't have any problem with septic from a real small
development. The sewer that you dump to is very large."”

The Chair entertained questions. There were none.

Attorney Wallace continued, saying that the 93 residences and the
70 condominiums obviously create another question that perhaps
the folks present tonight are interested in -- and that is
traffic.

He will submit to the Commissioners a letter dated May 4th from
Dave Savage Engineering, signed by Dave Savage (who, most of you
know, used to work for EUTS and has great expertise in the area
of traffic analysis, design and flow). For the benefit of all
here, he will read the letter, as follows:

Dear Mr. Wallace:

At your request I have examined referenced proposed
development concerning traffic impacts on Oak Hill Rd.

Since existing traffic counts on Oak Hill vary significantly
north and south of St. George Rd., I looked at impacts in
both of these areas. The proposed site is served by S.R.
57, Whetstone, Millersburg, and Heckel Roads from the north
and east; Oak Hill Rd. from the south and east; Lynch Rd.
from the south and west; and St. George Rd. from the west.
This will help distribute traffic generated by the
development to various centralized intersections, thereby
avoiding major impacts any any one location. Since existing
traffic volumes on Oak Hill are generally low except during
daily peak hours, I have restricted my analysis to these
periods.
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(Mr. Wallace was interrupted by loud laughter from the audience
and President Borries called for order, stating the Board wants
to encourage the audience to please act courteously -- as the
Commissioners want to give everyone ample opportunity to express
himself or herself -- so he would appreciate their cooperation in
granting Attorney Wallace an opportunity to speak.)

Mr. Wallace proceeded, "The most recent traffic counts at Oak
Hill north and south of St. George indicate a daily traffic
volume of 4,016 and 7,362, respectfully. Based on existing
terrain and pavement conditions, the maximum practical hourly
capacity is approximately 1,740 vehicles per hour. Based on
the information provided and the site plan showing the number
of houses, residences, commercial square footage, etc., I
definitely would not expect the proposed development to
increase traffic on Oak Hill Rd. beyond its maximum peak hour
capacity.

If you have any questions or require further information on .
this matter, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Very truly yours,
David L. Savage

Mr. Wallace said that in further discussions with Mr. Savage, he
indicated to him that, in fact, the traffic would never exceed
70% of the capacity according to the design, specifications,
width, etc., during a peak hour, including traffic generated by
this development.

Commissioner Borries asked whether Mr. Wallace has any idea as to
how recent those statistics might have been in relation to the
EUTS report?

Mr. Wallace said they are the current EUTS statistics.

Mrs. Cunningham said that report was done for this particular
meeting.

Mr. Borries asked, "Then their average count is 7,362 vehicles
per day —-- is that correct?

Mrs. Cunningham said, "The proposed development would generate an
average of approximately 1,300 trips per day."

Mr. Borries asked, "In addition to the 7,3622"

Attorney Wallace said, "What the numbers are -- EUTS has 7,362
traffic count south of St. George; north of St. George Rd; they
have 4,016 and if you put in the 1,300 trips per day generated by
the entire development, Dave Savage is saying that according to
the way the road is built according to State specifications,
County, etc., the traffic will never exceed 70% of capacity
during peak rush hour traffic."™ He understands that people who
live out there and have lived out there for several years know
there has been an increase in development of houses, etc., out
there -- and they feel like it is much busier than it used to be
-- and he is sure that it is. But what Dave Savage, as an
engineer, is saying is that it will not go to peak capacity
according to the State and County statistics and the manual that
they use as experts in designing and developing roads. He knows
the Commissioners are very familiar with Mr. Savage and his
reliability, having served the City and the County for some time.

Finally, of obvious concern are the proposed commercial uses that
will go into this development. To that end, the developer and
petitioner voluntarily limited the commercial area when the
petition was filed to use groups allowed in C-2 or less zoning.
That is, usually when a petition is filed as a P.U.D., anything
allowed in a commercial means anything up to a C-4. However,
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this developer voluntarily limited the commercial area to use
groups allowed in C-2 or less. In addition, when Mr. Duncan (the
petitioner) was out speaking with abutting property owners,
including the church, he learned of other specific concerns of
the neighbors in so far as permitting uses in certain use groups
that were of concern to the neighbors. As a result of those
meetings, Mr. Duncan had him draw up a written commitment (the
original was turned into the APC at the last meeting, executed
and ready for reporting) as allowed under Indiana Code 36-7-4 and
the petitioner voluntarily agrees not to allow the following uses
on the property under that Statute: Arcade, theater, dance hall,
archery range, bowling alley, pool or billiard room, laundromat,
party house, or a bar without a restaurant. What this is saying
is that what is commonly known as a restrictive covenant running
with the land (and this is enforceable by anyone who lives within
one—quarter mile of the outside abutting property owner). This
can be recorded, it is enforceable in court, and its duration is
20 years from date of approval. Obviously, it can be reinforced
at that time depending upon the condition of the area and the
facilities in the area and their desires. .
Two of the four commercial lots have specific plans and he asked
if Mrs. Cunningham will hand the Commissioners a copy of the
written commitment?

Mrs. Cunningham said she gave the County Attorney a copy,but did
not provide the Commissioners with one. She does, however, have
an extra copy for the Commissioners to share.

Mr. Wallace then directed the Commissioners' attention to a
letter from Welborn Clinic to Mr. Tom Duncan. Mr. Duncan had
approached Welborn Clinic with regard to the proposed development
and they are interested in putting a medical facility (whether it
be a family practice, outreach of Welborn Clinic, or a type of
minor emergency center). This letter was sent to Mr. Duncan:

Dear Mr. Duncan:

Pursuant to the April 13th meeting of the Board of Trustees
of the Welborn Clinic, please consider this to be our 'Letter
of Intent' to negotiate with you in the development of a
Family Practice/Medical Emergency Center upon property to be
included within Planned Unit Development known as Oak Hill
Estates.

To further summarize our intent, we will be performing
necessary analyses and feasibility studies of the proposed
site and additionally determining all other implications
relevant to the construction of the center of that location.
Upon completion of the investigation of the relevant factors,
it will be our intent to consider a formal agreement with
you or your related parties for the successful finalization
of a business relationship.

Very truly yours,

John C. Huus, Medical Director
Welborn Clinic”

Mr. Wallace said he enters this into the record to establish that
they do have specific plans already for two of the four lots and
they think this will be a needed and useful facility, as many of
the people here today will tell the Commissioners that their
concern is getting down in Morgan Avenue and Green River Rd. or
Fares Avenue or wherever else -- and the time it takes.

Obviously a medical facility in this area would be a much needed
and useful facility.

The developer plans to establish a European type food emporium,
which would be high in food items, specializing in cheese, bakery
and certain kinds of meats, etc., that basically would be on a
come-in-and-shop-and-take-with-you basis.
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The other two lots (which could be one or two lots) -- they have
already had contact and negotiation with a local financial
institution. They are not at liberty at this time to say which
institution -- they have not committed themselves; they have
expressed that they are interested in speaking with the developer
and the developer's partners, who are members of our community.
They believe that a financial institution would also be an
attribute to the area.

This area is a growing area. As many of the folks present will
tell you, there has been an increase in housing out there and
housing creates needs for other types of facilities. He would
direct the Commissioners' attention to Page 29 of the
Comprehensive Plan of Evansville & Vanderburgh County done by the
APC dated 1985: This area is Unit 216, which is denominated as
growth and expansion area. Under Employment for 1980, under
Ratail Trade there is 0; under Service there are 12 designated
jobs. Under the year 2000 employment, under Retail Trade there
is a designation of 1 (which is acknowledging a Retail Trade in
Unit 216 and there are none now) and under Service it goes from
12 to 22 jobs, of which several would be service jobs and
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

In conclusion, this Planned Unit Development offers a great deal
to these north side residents -- more housing of a quality
nature; the sewers and drainage have been addressed by Mr.
Morley, and it specifically will take all this property out of
the flood plain, as well as improve the drainage in the P.U.D.,
itself, and bring sewers from a distance to serve this P.U.D., as
well as others along the way; the traffic report from Mr. Savage
indicates that yes, it will increase traffic, but as any property
owner (whether it be a residential developer, single home owner
or a Planned Unit Developer) is entitled to what we hope is a
reasonable use of his property and that is just that. Mr.
Wallace said he would be happy to entertain questions from the
Commissioners at this time.

Commissioner Borries said he has a question for Mrs. Cunningham,
in terms of the Comprehensive Plan in this area. Would she want
to comment about that?

Mrs. Cunningham said she can comment on the Planning Unit 216
development zone. That zone shows 49 projected in Government and
Institutions (which is Oak Hill School - that is what that is).
And it projects in the year 2000 that there probably will be 49
in that category. It speaks of 12 in Service; that is an area of
multi-church growth. Generally with churches there are ministers
and generally child care centers and she believes that is what
the increase in Service was intended to be. In the year 2000,
they really have no knowledge, except there was a church that
applied for a Special Use in that area, so it was projected in
that area to have an increase in Service -- probably
church-related activities. As far as one in Retail, there is
probably an office somewhere and she believes there is one in the
area.

Attorney Wallace said he appreciates her comments, but he is
going from having read the Planned Unit Development in the
Comprehensive Plan and there was nothing in there that dictated
(that he was aware of) that they thought any jobs would be in the
church-related area. Just as she said, 49 in Government and
Institutions for the year 2000, he assumes that what the
Comprehensive Plan is is a Policy Guide, but there is no
certaintyeececese

Mrs. Cunningham interjected, "That is what it is -- a Policy
Guide -- and I'm telling you that for those of us who wrote it,
this is what it was intended to be.

Attorney Wallace said, "I only had the benefit of reading the
Plan and that is what every developer and every person who comes
up here has the benefit of.”
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Commissioner Borries thanked Mr. Wallace for his comments. He
then asked if there are persons present who wish to speak to this
rezoning (VC-9-87). For the record and, again, because there is
a large audience, President Borries requested that individuals be
as brief as possible and avoid repeating perhaps what other
persons will say -—- and to please give name and address for the
record.

The Chair recognized Mr. M. L. Boultinghouse,who stated he
resides at 3512 Schmitt Lane (he's lived there 34 years). He
asked if it would be out of order for him to ask all those who
object to this P.U.D. rezoning to please stand and remain
standing while he makes his brief presentation? Commissioner
Borries granted permission for those in opposition to stand.
(Between 80-100 residents stood.)

Mr. Boultinghouse said that with all the commercial areas within
easy driving time, it seems very inappropriate to deviate from
the Comprehensive Plan which sets out that the Oak Hill area
serve residential growth until the year 2000. "We, the people of
the Oak Hill area, respectfully request that you deny the request
for rezoning of this property R-1 and A to P.U.D./C~2. The
intentions and promises offered by applicant seem hardly likely
to be of any value when one would trace the actions demonstrated
at Bull Island when, as a matter of record, he flaunted most
contracts and laws regulating such demonstrations. We people of
Oak Hill Rd. are not against good residential development. I'm
sure the problems of traffic, including this St. George Rd. which
at the west end of Whirlpool is not a public place -- it goes
through private property -- the traffic and sewage and drainage
will be adequately dealt with by the various departments who
handle these things. Once again, please do not allow this
applicant the opportunity to use this loose P.U.D./C-2 rezoning
to rape the Oak Hill residential area with commercial rezoning.
Thank you."

President Borries thanked Mr. Boultinghouse for his comments and
asked that the record show that a Petition signed by several
persons in the area was submitted to the Commissioners.

The Chair then recognized Bobbie Schmitt. She said she resides
at 5820 Oak Hill Rd. She questioned the European restaurant,
saying she doesn't think the residents know about this. She said
she does not object to the houses, to the condos; but there are
two main entrances and there will be two main exits coming out --
that means four exits proposed on Oak Hill Rd. This will be just
that much more of a traffic hazard to watch —-- plus they have
Schmitt Lane in front of them. So there will be Schmitt Lane, an
exit, two main entrances and two exits between Schmitt Lane and
St. George Rd. -- and that is a lot. They also have a problem
with buses -- people go through the bus arms -- and they will
have a side exit, which means they will have three (3) lanes,
which will present more of a problem for their children,

Mrs. Edwin Fehd was then recognized by the Chair. She said she
and her husband reside at 5401 Oak Hill Rd. They are just 250
ft. from this proposed development. "We are not opposed to any
type of single family development on this property. But we are
definitely opposed to any commercial, multi-housing, or
condominiums in any way, shape or form. Should this happen, this
immediately depreciates our property and all surrounding property
-— and I am sure many of the property owners who are here tonight
would back me on this. Another major factor is the traffic
problem this creates, in spite of what Mr. Savage said.

Honestly, at times we can't even get our of our own driveway --
and there are many who will agree with this. We also have eight
(8) churches in our area, so we have traffic on weekends, as
well. We built our home out there in 1951 and we watched the
area grow as a very nice, respectable neighborhood. So, let's
keep it that way. Thank you."
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The Chair recognized Mr. Robert Bond, who stated he lives at 3005
St. George Rd. First of all, he has to question the traffic
counts. It is very dangerous at times to even try to get your
paper. He wonders if the figures quoted were a five day or a
seven day count -- there is not that much traffic on weekends,
but peak periods are terrible. It is really dangerous. They had
a little girl get hit last week (not their's fortunately). There
is one good thing in this proposal and that is the fact that they
do have a hospital handy -- as you may need it. Another thing,
drainage is a problem. There is a 20-acre subdivision right
across the street. Drainage is a real problem; he has lived
there eight years and he knows. And it is going to be a lot
worse if this proposed rezoning goes through -- lake or not. It
will be worse because you will be picking up more water; he is
going to have 80 houses on 20 acres —-- and this means more

water., If his figures are correct, there will be something like
10 acres commercial. You can put a bunch of commercial on 10
acres -- someting like North Park. If you're only going to pick
up 1,300 per day on the traffic count on this ten acres with all
the residential, he doesn't see where the commercial would be
profitable if this is all we're going to be picking up. It seems$
he'd have to be thinking of a lot more than that in the future.
With regard to the C-2 zoning, if he were going to have a project
like this -- he's start out in C-2, because he knows down the
road he could change it to C-4 or whatever.

The Chair then recognized Pastor Syl Carter of the Trinity Church
of the Nazarene (directly across the street from the proposed
commercial area). They have a problem now with all kinds of
literature in their yard; they have to pick it up every weekend
-—- beer bottles, McDonald hamburger wrappers, etc. -- and if they
get a drive-in fast food service over there with gas pumps, it
will create a horrible problem for them. All of his congregation
voted and signed a petition that they are against putting this
in. They welcome the housing. He's done a lot of building
himself and has built a lot of churches -- and they welcome the
housing and would be glad to have it. But they just don't want
the commercial out there. As stated before, if this is passed,
what is going to keep them from coming in later on and building
other commercial in the area. Would there be any way to control
that? Thus, he and his congregation are against the commercial
rezoning and the water problem it would create. He has seen
water up in the church parking lot when the rains came. Mr.

Bowers (yhen he built) took pictures -- and he has seen water
cover the wall part at the Oak Hill Presbyterian Church. And he
has seen three feet of water in the corn field -- so there is a

horrible water problem already. They would just like to see
everything done right and they are against having this upgraded
to commercial.

Mr. Lewis Smith was recognized by the Chair. He said he resides
at 2813 Eastbrooke, which is a subdivision right off of Bergdorf.
They have a water problem there whenever they have bad storms,
because their basements have a pumping system which they have to
pump up into the sewer. If that sewer is going into Bergdorf,
this will create a bigger problem for them down the pike. He has
been in his residence for over nine years and this is creating
problems that they don't need. With regard to the traffic, you
come out there in the morning and in the afternoons; you have
T.J. Maax and all the factories in the area using those roads.

So he thinks there is a bigger traffic problem than people
realize.

The Chair then recognized Mr. Edward Howard. He said he lives at
5917 Oak Hill Rd., just a few hundred feet north of the planned
development. "I am, by profession, a librarian, which means I
very much am concerned with words and their precise definitions.
I see no difference really in what is proposed here tonight (even
though it is called a P.U.D.) than what I would term "spot
zoning". And "spot zoning" is no more than a commercial
beachhead; that is, initial development that leads on to further
development. This concerns me as much as it has the previous



COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Page 11
May 18, 1987

speakers, in that I am not so concerned about the ten (10) acres
that might be developed initially (with the very finest kinds of
innocuous commercial developments outlined here tonight) as I am
by the growth -- the kind of spreading cancer throughout that
neighborhood as it turns into a bonafide commercial development
along Oak Hill Rd. Thank you."

Mr. Roger Kratz approached the podium and stated he lives on
Lakeland Drive. He said he did not prepare a text or anything,
but he thinks what everybody is here for is that, "Most of us
live there because we don't want to live in a crowded
neighborhood and that is why we chose to live there. I think
that while the commercial proposal made by Mr. Wallace sounds
good, I think all he really has is a commitment from the hospital
to negotiate -- I don't think there is any guarantee that he will
have them. But I think we are guaranteed a high density of
housing in an area where we really don't want it. For myself and
a lot of people like myself who have families out there, what
we're objecting to is a lot of traffic out there. I know what
the traffic report said, but I really don't think it is that .
accurate. I think what I want to say here is that we just don't
want that type of development in our neighborhood. As far as
what is planned, I think if we had something concrete and knew
exactly what might happen, there would be more positive
sentiment. But at this point, for myself and most of the people
I've talked to, there isn't enough justification to change the
zoning."”

Attorney Wallace said he would like to take a moment or two to
address some of the points brought up by the remonstrators. One
of the things he hears that is the consensus of all the folks is
that they like the area they live in. To those who were there
thirty years ago, there is too much traffic. And those who have
been there ten years now think there is too much traffic. He
thinks that is inevitable when you're on the edge of a developing
area that there be more traffic. And who is to say who is going
to be the last house out there before they are not going to allow
any?-- Or, the last development-- whether it be commercial. As
stated by Mrs. Cunningham, the traffic counts were very recent
counts and David Savage is a very qualified engineer ang,
although he knows that people sometimes think this road is too
busy, he is saying that according to the rules and regulations
there is room for more traffic on that road. He knows this
upsets some people, but the way to do it is to change the rules
and regulations insofar as top capacity, but don't let us go by
the rules and then say the capacity isn't there. To facilitate
the traffic, there are de-accel lanes which obviously will help
people get in and out of this development. The facilities are on
a 180 ft. setback, which will certainly secure no unsightly
development on Oak Hill Rd. that might or might not disturb some
people. But to clarify again that this is not spot rezoning, the
idea of a P.U.D. is that once you go in and have a 180 ft.
setback on your plan, when you come back for your building permit
you're going to have to go before the Area Plan Commission and
make sure you are abiding by those requirements. So these are
built-in protections. To address the question of some folks that
that the commercial will go in and that will be it, the
developers are willing to bond and commit Phase I and Phase II
together, which initially is 34 houses, to include the westerly
drainage lake and streets in Phase I and Phase II at the same
time. As far as the interest of the folks out there, obviously
homeowners and condominium owners who would be out there (as well
as the people who have the commercial facilities) are not here to
all stand up. But he thinks they should get some concern. 1In
fact, he has a petition (the original was handed in at Area Plan
Commission) -- it is attached to Mr. Savage's letter and the
Welborn letter -- which has approximately 21 to 22 signatures --
and they have only addressed the people in the immediate area.
They did not go three or four blocks away (to Melody Hills, Green
River Estates and other neighborhoods a good distance away ) --
these are all people who live immediately in the area -- and
there are approximately 10 of 21 abutting property owners'
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signatures on the petition, which shows there is fair interest in
a development of this type. He said the Commissioners will also
note that Olivet Presbyterian Church designated their approval.
As far as some of the concerns of the people re drainage across
the street, etc., those are general concerns for them to have.
But as Mr. Morley has so well stated, this development is going
to help, because it is going to have drainage lakes; it is going
to retain its own water -- and discharge in normal flow. One of
the concerns re traffic is that any development will bring
traffic. Some of the folks have said they would not mind the
residential development but, obviously, every house that goes out
there adds trips to the area, too. So it is sometimes hard to
delineate sometimes what folks are saying. They are saying they
want houses but they don't want traffic. Houses create traffic.
It is just on the edge of town and people are concerned about
traffic. They understand that and this is why they did it as a
P.U.D. instead of coming in on Oak Hill and asking them to zone
this or that -- they have put it all together.

In conclusion, Attorney Wallace said they do understand the
concerns of the residents and they have tried to address them by -
limiting the zoning from the beginning, by giving a written
commitment; by having detailed sewer and drainage plan; and by
having Mr. Savage address this. He could very easily have come
back with a letter that said that this road won't handle that
type of facility -- and they would have been in a little pickle.
But he came back with a letter that said they were o.k. It is
their intent and desire to develop something that will be an
asset to this area and they do not think it will affect property
values (although that is not necessarily a valid consideration,
they do not think it will). They believe this will be an
attribute and something the people in the area will truly enjoy.
They hope they have made it clear from the facts presented in the
record that they have that development.

Commissioner Borries explained that the Commissioners asked Mr.
Wallace to give his rebuttal at this time. If there are others
who wish to speak, he'd want Mr. Wallace to have a chance to
respond -- and if others wish to make comments, he would like
them to be as brief as possible,

Mr. John Hoffman approached the podium, identified himself, and
said he lives at 3500 Bexley Court (formerly at 3500 Schmitt Lane
until their son was killed on his bicycle at Ward Rd. and St.
George Rd. some 25 years ago). The traffic has not improved and
a little girl was just hit on a bicycle. Oak Hill Rd. is no
place for anybody on a bike or motorcycle anymore. It is just
too narrow a road. Secondly, talking about the drainage —-- the
people complaining about the drainage on the west side of Oak
Hill Rd., that drainage goes through the ditch that runs through
the middle of this property. If they cut this off with lakes,
development, etc., where is the water that the Minister and the
other people were talking about -- where is that going? Thirdly,
he understands that there is another 30 to 40 acres under option,
which is right next to this property, which will be the next

thing on the Commissioners' agenda -- and it goes right up to the
back of Bexley Court. So we're talking about another 40 or 50
acres -- that will be the next thing to be rezoned. You're

talking about traffic? You're going to have it.

Mr. Joe Kirby of 6200 Lakeland Drive said he has comments.
First, Mr. Wallace said that the people say they want houses.
He's putting words in their mouths. The people didn't say that
-- they said that we're not against houses. They didn't say,
"Hey, we want more houses out here. "Another thing, at no time
did he bring up the depth of the lakes, which I believe it was
said at the last meeting was about 5 £t. I don't know how you
consider that lakes. Another thing, they talk about the traffic
and what it will and won't do and the developer will do this and
that. From what I've seen driving that road every day to and
from work, I think at the same time that they should consider
changing it from "Oak Hill" to "Oak Kill" road.
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Mr. Ed Fehd said he lives at 5401 Oak Hill Rd. right next to this
property. Attorney Wallace made a remark about how many people
signed and agreed to sign —— after they found the true picture --
there are a number of them who went ahead and signed the petition
because they did not know the true facts of what was going on.

Elizabeth Hills of 3524 Schmitt Lane said that Mr. wallace was
talking about people who had lived there for 30 years find Oak
Hill to be a traffic hazard -~ she and her husband have lived
there for only eight months and it is a very dangerous road.
There are no curbs on the side of the road to allow people to
speed out into traffic like there are on other major
thoroughfares, and they find it a very dangerous road to be on.
She thinks it is much more than volume of traffic -- it is the
road conditions, themselves.

Mr. Ed Howard said he would like to direct a question to Mr.
Morley. "What is the difference between a lake and a pond?"

Mr. Morley responded that it depends upon which part of the
country you are in. He apologized, saying he did not mean to be
facetious. At no time did he ever say this lake was only 5 ft.
deep. He will re-state what he said at the last meeting. The
lake will have a minimum depth of 5 ft. Minimum depth.

Mr. Howard said his question was not facetious -- he sincerely
would like to know the difference between a pond and a lake.

Attorney Wallace interjected that,"Historically, we have called
them lakes, ponds, detention areas -- the purpose of this
facility would be to hold rainwater or any kind of surface water
and allow it to flow properly without flooding the development.
Obviously, that is the purpose and it would be built to whatever
specifications the County Engineers require to meet those needs.
And they will work with Mr. Morley (who has had vast experience
in this) to insure that -- and that is what it will be. If it is
less than 5 ft. and you want to call it a pond, fine. If it is
more than 5 ft. and you want to call it a lake, fine; it is
simply a terminology at this point to designate a detention area
for surface waters during a storm until such time as it can flow
off through proper drainage channels.”

Pastor Carter said, "Our property stands to be flooded out more
than anyone else's. I have seen water in our parking lot -- and
we have pictures to prove that. That is a horrible problem
there. If we get a two or three inch rain and it floods my
church, who is going to be responsible? "

Attorney Wallace said, "As I am sure Mr. Morley can re-state, the
purpose of the retention area is to drain surface water and it
will be built according to any kind of county specifications
necessary to handle whatever drainage they think will flow into
the lake. The county will have the last say on this. Mr. Morley
will work with them -- or the building permit will not be issued.
If you have that concern, when and if this beautiful and helpful
project is approved, you can check with the county and they can
make sure that the retention lake will handle the water until it
can flow off into proper channels."

Pastor Carter, "But if our church is flooded, will you be
responsible? Will you sign that you will be responsible if the
water floods our church to replace furniture, air conditioner,
carpet, clean up the mess, etc.?"

President Borries asked that the meeting be restored to order.

Attorney wWallace stated, "They do not have an option on that
property."

Mr. Borries asked, "Who does not have an option?"
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Attorney Wallace responded, "An allegation was made by someone
that my client has an option on property to the south and plans
to do more building. As the librarian said, words are dangerous
-- and it was stated that we have the option on it. We do not
and anything that is not for this project is not for this
Commission to decide.

In conclusion, Attorney Wallace said he feels they have addressed
drainage, sewers, traffic -- they understand and appreciate the
concerns —— that is the reason they are going in as a P.U.D.,
which offers the one unique aspect of having to come back before
Plan Commission before any building is done to make sure that the
drainage and sewers and de-accel lanes for traffic purposes are
in place.

Mr. Morris Boultinghouse asked if the P.U.D. development in the
offing here takes into consideration the action of Past
Commissioners pertaining to Schmitt Lane and Oak Hill Rd. to the
fullest extent?

Commissioner Borries asked if Mr. Boultinghouse would want to -
explain what he means?

Mr. Boultinghouse said there are many entries back to the year
1952 of various exceptions that the Commissioners have made
concerning Schmitt Lane (the width of the road and length of the
road) and he is wondering if they will be adhered to in this
project?

Commissioner Borries said, "I don't know at this time whether I
can comment on Schmitt Lane, because I would not have that
information in front of me. I can only say that Schmitt Lane is
not part of this proposal.”

Commissioner Willner said he is trying to weigh the good and the
bad and finances are bothering him. Would Attorney Wallace care
to explain? 1If, in fact, the rezoning is approved, do we have
sufficient finances to see this project through -- at least in
the Phases he stated?

Attorney Wallace said, "Yes; I cannot provide proof in writing,
but we have spoken with the banks and have a financial commitment
and whatever work we do we will put Phase I and Phase II
together, which will insure the residential area...the commercial
and the first 34 houses.”

Mrs. Cunningham said they changed the first plan to include Phase
I to be all the commercial and the first 34 houses -- so, she
believes that is what he is speaking to. So he is talking about
Phase I between June of 1987 and December 1988 -- they plan to do
all the commercial lots and 34 single family units.

Attorney Wallace said, "Which would include the initial drainage
lakes, streets, sewers, etc. Obviously, their requirement of
bonding would make necessary the financial commitment to the
development.”

Commissioner Willner said, "Final question; I asked you if you
would design your inlet to correspond with St. George Rd. 1Is
that a possibility? Or, have you completely ruled that out?

Attorney Wallace said he reached Mr. Morley at 5:00 p.m. this
afternoon to see what he thought about that.

Mr. Morley said, "The section line is right in the center of St.

George Rd., so it would have to be offset a little bit. It would
be possible -- if the Commission would accept a little offset --

but unless they were able to acquire some of the property to the

south (30 ft. or something along there) then it couldn't line up

exactly. If they could get 30 ft., then it could line up.

President Borries said he would call for a vote at this time on.
the project.
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Motion was made by Commissioner Willner that VC-9-87 be approved
on 3rd Reading, with a second from Commissioner Borries.

President Borries then asked for a roll call vote: Commissioner
Willner?

Commissioner Willner responded, "Like I say, I've been trying to
weigh the good parts and the bad parts. I, personally, think
that this development would help the water and drainage problems.
I know you don't agree with that. But ten (10) years ago we
faced the same thing on the east side; it was no more development
or we put the detention lakes in -- and it has worked. I am here
to tell you that it does work and it will work in this area,

too. The sewers are o.k., too. I don't have a great big problem
with the commercial area, but I would prefer to know what went in
there. On the other side, I think the traffic is going to be a
problem. I think the commercial zoning will spread -- and I do
believe that this is "spot zoning". Therefore, I am going to
vote 'no'." .
Commissioner Borries said, "I would want to compliment all of you
for your comments and politeness in attending this session. The
room is stuffy and we apologize for that. I want to compliment
Mr. Wallace. As I said, I believe space is getting scarce in
Vanderburgh County and we have to look very carefully at each
development as it takes place. My difficulty is not with
housing, but rather again the commercial area that oftimes are
areas that turn over quickly and we begin to lose what we feel
would be the aesthetics and quality of those developments. As a
result, and because we have to consider this in a total package,
I will also vote 'no' at this time."

President Borries declared a five (5) minute recess.

VC-10-87/Petitioner, W. C. Bussing, Jr. (3rd Reading): President
Borries said Petitioner is W. C. Bussing, Jr.

The Chair recognized Mr. Jim Morley, who said he represents the
developer of a P.U.D. called Harbor's Edge. It is to be located
on a 10 acre site that located between Eagle Ditch and the
Evansville Water Filtration Plant. The site is on the river side
of the levee and it has been filled in years past through certain
dredging operations of Inland Marina and now has an area that
will provide this 10 acres of property completely above the 100
year flood zone of the Ohio River. The property would be
accessed by a main road that would enter at the top of the levee
right at the crest of the hill so that there will be good
visibility in both directions. There is no limitation of access
due to flooding, since all access is from the Evansville side and
any flooding of that road (as you know) comes farther on towards
Kentucky from Inland Marina.

The plan calls for some 110 condominium units and 60 single
family homes. The P.U.D. concept is so that the 60 single family
homes (which line the project on the river and on the harbor)
will own the property on which the house sits. They will own the
yard between them and the river, as well as the parking area
behind their garages on out to the street. So they will be
individually owned properties.

The utilities will all be there (gas, electric, sewer). A lift
station will be constructed to convey the sewage down to the
nearest sewer line. The property is in a location which is
somewhat south and west of the Evansville Treatment Plant, which
will mean that for the most part, while it is not normally this
Treatment Plant that has odor problems, the location of the site
is such that the prevailing winds are in the other direction so
it is highly unlikely that that would cause any relevant problems
at this particular site. Mr. Morley said he would be glad to
answer any questions.
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Commissioner Borries queried Mr. Morley concerning the 110
condos, asking if the residents will own the property?

Mr. Morley said, "what we call single-family lots (zero lot line
homes) which are 30 ft. wide by 100 ft. long are all single
family owned lots. They will individually build their structures
and they will own the ground on which the structure sits. When
you go to the other units, you get into condominium ownership,
where you own inside the walls of the building. An Association
is responsible for roof maintenance and exterior maintenance. On
the others, the individual owners are responsible for that and it
gives them more freedom of choice in decorating the interior,
etc.

Commissioner Borries asked which phase would be done first?

Mr. Morley said the single-family homes will be developed first.
They will start at the river's edge and work inward to higher
levels each time. The first row along the river is all
one-story. Back of that will be two-story units. Mr. Bussing is
present tonight if the Board has any particular questions re the
phasing of the operation that he (Morley) may not be able to
answer.,

Commissioner Borries said, "We would indicate here that this is a
down zoning in the sense of the W-1 (which is an interesting
rezoning). We don't have many W-1l's come by here (Waterfront
Industrial). This will be a P.U.D.; however, he would want to
stress that this P.U.D. is different in that it contains no
commercial development. It is a residential P.U.D. The Chair
entertained comments or questions. There being no one present to
speak to the petition or remonstrate against same, a motion was
entertained.

Motion was made by Commissioner Willner that VC-10-87 be
approved, as submitted on 3rd Reading, with a second from
Commissioner Borries.

Commissioner Borries then asked for a roll call vote:
Commissioner Willner, yes; Commissioner Borries, yes. President
Borries declared the petition approved.

RE: TRAVEL REQUEST - AREA PLAN COMMISSION

Mrs. Cunningham said she has a request to travel on Thursday, May
28th, to Indianapolis for an Indiana Planning Association
meeting. She is Awards Chairman for the meeting and she needs to
be there to determine the awards. The trip would not entail any
room costs. She is not sure whether it will be mileage or
whether, if they have the new car in time, she will take it --
whichever.

Motion to approve the request was made by Commissioner Willner,
with a second from Commissioner Borries. So ordered.

RE: COUNTY ATTORNEY

President Borries announced that Tim Hubert is present tonight
(from the law firm of Bowers, Harrison, Kent & Miller). He then
asked if Mr. Hubert has anything to report?

Mr. Huber said he has nothing to report at this time.

RE: COUNTY HIGHWAY - BILL BETHEL

Weekly Work Report/County Garage: Mr. Bethel submitted copies of
the Weekly Work Report for Employees at the County Garage for
period May 11 thru May 15, 1987.........report received and
filed. Attached to the Work Report was the following Work
Schedule:
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Gradall: Park St., Campbell Rd., Red Bank Rd.

Paver: Telephone Rd., Wedeking, 0ld Boonville Highway

Patch Crew: Boonville-New Harmony, Marx Rd., Tree Top Lane,
St. George Rd. and Lynn Rd.

Grader: Telephone Rd., Wedeking, 0l1d Boonville Highway
and Fisher Rd.

Mower: St. Joe Ave., Schenk, Orchard, Little Schmuck,
Nurrenbern, Boonville-New Harmony Rd.

Trash: Lynn Rd., Green River Rd., S. Weinbach and
Bayou Creek

Rocked: Happe and Seminary Rd.

Weekly Work Report/Bridge Crew: Also submitted for the same -

period was the Weekly Work Report for the Bridge Crew.....report
received and filed.

- Cut grass on St. Joe RAd.

- Cut across St. Joe Rd. to replace culvert
- Replaced culvert on Goebel Lane

- Replaced culvert on Koring Rd.

- Cut weeds around pipe at 8914 Darmstadt Rd.
- Built drop box on Dieffenbch Rd.

- Worked in yard at Vanderburgh County Highway Dept.
digging up gas tank.

- Cut trees in bottom overhanging bridge.

Weekly Absentee Reports: Also submitted by Mr. Bethel for the
same period were the Weekly Absentee Reports for the Bridge Crew.
and Employees at the County Garag€.........reports received and
filed.

The Chair entertained questions of Mr. Bethel.

Accident on Darmstadt Rd.: Commissioner Borries said that six
years ago this Commission requested Mr. Bethel to look at the
installation of a guard rail on the western side of Darmstadt Rd.
(about 500 ft. past the City limits). We had this person who had
had their house hit at least four (4) times. We went out there
and the Sheriff did a speed study, we did a site study, and we
looked at everything there. There is something about that
stretch -- one word to sum it up would be "speed" -- so we
installed some guard rail. He understands that it got baptized
rather well over the weekend.

Mr. Bethel said that on Saturday night, May 16th, at
approximately 10:30 p.m., a company-owned truck hit a guard rail
across from 7201 Darmstadt Rd., resulting in damage of
approximately 40 ft. of guard rail. He then presented
photographs of the damaged guard rail. Mr. Bethel said the
Sheriff was called to the scene of the accident. The driver was
under the influence of alcohol. After hitting the guard rail, he
drove as far as Hilltop Inn, where his truck died -- and he
abandoned the truck, leaving on foot. The Sheriff arrived on the
scene and had the truck towed in. The Sheriff told James Peerman
(who lived next door to the scene of the accident) that the truck
smelled like a brewery. There were full and empty beer cans left
at the scene. He said he does not have the Sheriff's report, but
he will get it.
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Commissioner Willner asked Mr. Bethel to get that report to our
insurance carrier. Mr. Bethel said he will do this in the
morning. Commissioner Willner said Mr. Bethel might also give
the insurance carrier an estimate of the damage. Mr. Bethel said
they are replacing that guard rail today. There is no dangerous
curve or hill....

Commissioner Borries interjected, "Somehow when they leave the
City -- maybe because of the light changes or whatever -- they
tend to speed up.

Commissioner Willner noted that the vehicle was traveling south,
however.

Mr. Bethel said you can get some idea of the speed the vehicle
was traveling from the length of guard rail that was damaged --
he really hit it hard -- that guard rail is heavy stuff.

RE: COUNTY HIGHWAY ENGINEER - ANDY EASLEY

Progress Reports: Mr. Easley said he has Progress Reports to

submit: One from Bernardin, Lochmueller on the Boonville-New

Harmony Rd. and Lynch Rd. Extension Design Work. The other is
from United Consulting Engineers on Eickhoff Rd.

Claim/Bernardin, Lochmueller & Associates: Claim in the amount
of $13,926.49 for Design Work on Lynch Rd. Extension from Oak
Hill Rd. to Burkhardt Rd. He has reviewed the claim and finds it
in order. Motion to approve claim was made by Commissioner
Willner, with a second from Commissioner Borries. So ordered.

Commissioner Borries asked if Mr. Easley would want to comment on
the right-of-way? We have approval to move the extension road
south -- is that correct -- to escape the proposed Fox Pointe
Subdivision?

.Mr. Easley said he was in Indianapolis last Wednesday. At that
time he was given a copy of a letter that John Isenbarger has
received from the Federal Highway Administration. He forgot to
get to the Xerox machine to make a copy for the Commissioners.
However, the letter says:

" Reference is given to your letter which requested our
concurrence to adjust the alignment of the western portion
of the subject project to avoid costly right-of-way
acquisition. We have reviewed the request and concur with
the adjustment. Our acceptance of the adjustment is based
on the County's plan to acquire a 26 acre parcel of land
adjacent to Pigeon Creek and use it as a mitigation measure
for the alignment shift. We believe that the taking of the
hardwood forest as required by the project will be offset by
the preservation of the replacement hardwood forest and have
enclosed a signed, revised record of decision for the
project. Revised ROD replaces the original ROD, which was
signed July 23, 1986."

The County has verbally acknowledged énd accepted the
acquisition of the replacement hardwood is not eligible for
Federal Aid participation. We need to have the County
prepare a formal acknowledgment of the eligibility of Federal
funds for the replacement hardwood forest at their earliest
convenience."

Mr. Easley said, "So they have approved the shift."

Commissioner Borries asked if we have appointed an appraiser and
. a buyer?

Mr. Lindenschmidt said we need a second appraiser.

Mr. Easley said that Mr. Lindenschmidt is correct; we need a
second appraiser on Fox Pointe.




COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Page 19
May 18, 1987

Commissioner Borries asked, "I think we need to move quickly on
this, don't you, Bob, to get this matter of right-of-way resolved
before somebody changes their mind?"

Commissioner Willner agreed, and then questioned why we need a
second appraiser?

Mr. Lindenschmidt said that Rose Zigenfus told him that we had to
have two appraisers.

Mr. Easley said he thinks we're supposed to follow Federal
guidelines for obtaining the right-of-way, even though we are
going to pay for it ourselves. And, apparently Rose said it
requires two appraisers.

After further brief discussion, it was the consensus that Mr.
Easley should check further before we hire two appraisers.
Commissioner Willner said that could be a $1,000.00 job there.
Commissioner Borries said this was his question, also. He -
doesn't understand why we have to have two appraisers.

Mr. Easley asked if we had two appraisers on Burkhardt?

Commissioner Borries said we did not. We've never had two
appraisers on anything.

Commissioner Willner noted that we will have to do the same thing
for the Boonville-New Harmony Extension as soon as it is ready.

Again, the Commissioners urged that Messrs. Lindenschmidt and
Easley check further with Rose Zigenfus.

Mr. Lindenschmidt asked that in the event two appraisers are
required, do the Commissioners want to go ahead and name a second
appraiser? Or, wait a week?

It was the consensus that the Commissioners will hold off naming
a second appraiser until it is determined whether a second
appraiser is needed.

Commissioner Willner said the first thing that comes to his mind
is whether we could use some of our own forces? He then
asked if we have enough money in that account?

Mr. Easley responded in the affirmative.

Mr. Willner asked, "One appraiser has been notified to start
(Victor Funke) and one right-of-way buyer (Ken Hanson) has been
notified?

Mr. Easley said he has not had any conversation with the
right-of-way buyer.

Commissioner Willner said we need to put him on notice.

Commissioner Borries said he has one other thought on Lynch Rd.
It is apparent to him that the way the State funding looks and
the way that this project is coming out, that the I-164 project
is going to be a reality before Lynch Rd. He would want to ask
Mr. Easley for some clarification as to where or if we're going
to get that grade separation?

Commissioner Willner said, "It is a toss up".

Commissioner Borries said, "The way the State is, they are
hem~hawing around -- and we're doing a lot of this on our own
here."

Commissioner Willner said that he met with the State, Andy and
Rose last week.

Commissioner Borries asked if they discussed the I-164 project at
allz
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Commissioner Willner responded, "Yes; we brought up the
Interchange and it is coming out of a different pot."

Commissioner Borries said, "I understand; but are they going to
build it at that point?"

Commissioner Willner replied, "It is no guarantee yet; but they
say the project is going to go. They talk about down the road
five or six years anyhow , because they still talk about lack of
money for Federal Aid Urban. Federal Aid Urban is wiped out as
far as they are concerned. There is some money in Federal Aid
Secondary. That means that the part of Burkhardt into Warrick
County is a go. At least, this was his understanding.

Commissioner Borries said, "It's strange, but we're on the same
wave length there. But, again, it just raises that question -- I
would want more information ...."

Commissioner Willner said, "You must think that the very essence
of I-164 has caused us to use a lot of money we hadn't planned onf
using......South Green River Rd., Heerdink Lane, etc. This has
done irreparable harm to our funds. Unless County Council sees
fit to allocate some Local Option Income Tax monies -- we don't
have the money."

Commissioner Borries said, Another one is Fuquay Rd. —— a lot of
residents are concerned about Fuquay Rd., so we're going to have
to look at that.

Commissioner Willner said, "The problem is changing every month.
Three or four months ago we got the bad news that they're not
going to help us replenish our money spent for preliminary
engineering. So everything we have heard this past year has
depleted our funds -- so we might have enough money to proceed
with Lynch Rd. -- but we need to get this piece of property
purchased.”

Commissioner Borries said he agrees; he just wanted some
clarification. It looks to him that if they have funding, that
they are going to be doing a lot of work on the northern leg of
it this year. 1In fact, they have some grade separations as far
down as Fuquay Rd. on the southern leg now. And, a lot of Morgan
Avenue is done.

Claim/United Consulting Engineers: Claim in the amount of
$7,475.00 for engineering services on North Green River Rd.
Again, he has reviewed the claim and finds it in order. Motion
to approve claim was made by Commissioner Willner, with a second
from Commissioner Borries. So ordered.

Commissioner Borries noted that the engineer who handled this
said that had he known what the traffic was out there, he would
have upped his ante -- because he thought he took his life in his
own hands.

In response to query as to when this work is to be finished, Mr.
Willner said he talked to them on Thursday of last week and they
were about to wrap up their on-site work.

Commissioner Borries said someone was out there today doing some
work. He was coming from the north to look at a couple of
rezonings and someone was doing some surveying just north of the
bridge.

Boonville-New Harmony Rd.: Commissioner Borries asked if we're
going to have to have a hearing on the Boonville-New Harmony Rd4d.?

Mr. Easley said he has requested that the State waive the hearing
and he thinks they concur that we have done a sufficient amount
of what the one farmer asked us to do. We shifted a culvert and
gave them two new field entrances -— and apparently the Hearing
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Officer (or whoever has to schedule it) agreed that we had done a
sufficient amount -- considering they were only interested in a
couple of small items.

Commissioner Borries commented that he would think then that we
would begin there rather quickly.

"B" Street Underpass: Commissioner Willner queried Mr. Easley
concerning the status of the "B" Street Underpass?

Mr. Easley said we need to approve the preliminary plans. He has
not yet received comments from either SIGECO or the Board of
Works. He will contact them tomorrow to determine whether they
have any written comments they want incorporated into the design.

Commissioner Willner said, "We need to stay with that."

Commissioner Borries said that, for the record, he would have to
say that he certainly opposes any closing of Claremont at this
point. He can't go for that; that would drastically change the
whole scope of the project -- so we need some clarification as té
what the railroad is going to do on that.

Commissioner Willner said he called Continental Grain and told
them, "No" -- he told them that over our dead bodies they would
close Claremont. He noted that the railroad can't close it. The
road would have to be closed by City government. They'd have to
abandon it and that is not going to happen.

RE: ACCEPTANCE OF CHECK

President Borries submitted check from the Evansville-Vanderburgh
School Corporation in the amount of $1.00 for rent for West
Heights School.

Motion to accept check and endorse same for deposit into County
General Fund was made by Commissioner Willner, with a second from
Commissioner Borries. So ordered.

RE: TRAVEL REQUEST - COUNTY ASSESSOR

President Borries said County Assessor Jim Angermeier is
requesting permission to attend the 52nd National Conference of
the Association of Counties (NACO), in Marion County, Indiana on
July 11-14. He is asking that the county pay for his
reservations and mileage. (He has been asked to serve on the
committee by the Association.)

Commissioner Borries said he would be willing to approve the
request if there is money in the account. But he is wondering if
there are other officials who will be wanting to attend -- and
what the Board should do about it. He may be out of the City and
the State at that time -- but this is probably as close as the
National Conference will ever be. Should the Board survey to see
if others are interested? Or, get the requests on a case-by-case
basis?

Motion was made by Commissioner Willner that Mr. Angermeier's
request be approved, with a second from Commissioner Borries.
So ordered.

RE: MONTHLY REPORT - CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT

President Borries presented the Monthly Report from the Clerk of
the Circuit Court for period ending April 1987......report
received and filed.

RE: CLAIMS

Bowers, Harrison, Kent & Miller: Claim in the amount of $143.00
presented for Labor General/Sheriff's Department (Evans & Reed
cases). Motion to approve claim was made by Commissioner
Willner, with a second from Commissioner Borries. So ordered.
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RE: REQUEST TO GO ON COUNCIL CALL - COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

It was noted by President Borries that the Commissioners need to
go on Council Call to replenish Acct. 130-361 (Legal Services).
It is very difficult to project how much will be needed for this
account. But the County Attorney is involved in litigation on
numerous cases (as mentioned in recent Executive Session) and we
already have a claim that exceeds the balance in the account.

Following brief discussion, it was noted that the County Attorney
is to provide the Commissioners with a projected dollar figure as
to how much money will be needed to cover projected litigation
expenses.

Motion was made by Commissioner Willner that the Commissioners go
on Council Call for additional appropriation in Acct. 130-361 in

an amount to be provided by the County Attorney. The legal staff
has to prepare cases (there are several on behalf of the Sheriff;
the Volpe case is probably another; the Assessor's case -- there_
are several); otherwise, we'd be in default.

RE: HOLIDAY CLOSING

President Borries announced that all County Offices will be
closed on Monday, May 25th, for the Memorial Holiday.

RE: SCHEDULED MEETINGS

Tuesday May 26 2:30 p.m. Commissioners Meeting &
Drainage Board Meeting

RE: EMPLOYMENT CHANGES

Election Office (Releases)

Sandie Deig Supervisor $6.00/Hr. Eff: 5/8/87

Voter's Registration (Appointments)

Casey E. Randolph, Jr. Deputy $90.00/Day Eff: 5/5/87

Robt. W. Tilford Deputy $90.00/pay Eff: 5/5/87
Lucille Musgrave Deputy $90.00/Day Eff: 5/5/87
Charlene Appman Deputy $90.00/Day Eff: 5/5/87
Gloria Evans Deputy $90.00/Day Eff: 5/5/87
Robt. K. Mays T. Crew...$30.00/Day Eff: 5/5/87
Jonathon F. Gugin T, Crew $30.00/Day Eff: 5/5/87

Voter's Registration (Releases)

Casey E. Randolph, Jr. Deputy $90.00/Day Eff: 5/6/87

Robt. W. Tilford Deputy $90.00/Day Eff: 5/6/87
Lucille Musgrave Deputy $90.00/Day Eff: 5/6/87
Charlene Appman Deputy $90.00/Day Eff: 5/6/87
Gloria Evans Deputy $90.00/Day Eff: 5/6/87
Robt. K. Mays T. Crew $30.00/Day Eff: 5/6/87
Jonathon F. Gugin T. Crew $30.00/Day Eff: 5/6/87

County Highway (Releases)

James H. Howell Laborer $8.10/Hr. Eff: 5/15/87

Circuit Court (Appointments)

Russell P. Sumner PTCS $5.00/Hr. Eff: 5/4/87
Cynthia S. Jones PT Intern $3.35/Hr. Eff: 4/27/87
M. Margaret Lloyd..e.es....PT Intern $4.00/Hr. Eff: 5/4/87
Larry E. Vowels PTSG $5.00/Hr. Eff: 5/2/87
Paul N. Aarstad PTSG $5.00/Hr. Eff: 4/16/87

Circuit Court (Releases)
Jon K. Aarstad PTSG $5.00/Hr. Eff: 4/16/87
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Superior Court (Appointments)

Jeri Warner Clk. Asst. $13,663/Yr. Eff: 5/11/87

Superior Court (Releases)

Robin Craig PT Intern $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/8/87

Board of Review (Appointments)

Marilyn Flittner Clerk $35.00/Day Eff: 5//18/87

County Treasurer (Appointments)

Georgiana Barris Part Time $35.00/Day Eff: 5/4/87

County Auditor (Releases)

Tammy Stephens Posting Clk. $13,440/Yr. Eff: 5/7/87 -

Clerk of Circuit & Superior Courts (Appointments)

Deborah A. Hunter Clerk $536.59/Pay Eff: 5/11/87
Susan J. Heberer Dep. Clk. $514.95/Pay Eff: 5/11/87
Tracey Statz Dep/ Clk. $536.59/pay Eff: 5/11/87

Clerk of Circuit & Superior Courts (Releases)

Jeri Warner Clerk $536.59/Pay Eff: 5/11/87
There being no further busines to come before the Board at this
time, President Borries declared the meeting adjourned at 9:50

p.m.

PRESENT: COMMISSIONERS COUNTY AUDITOR COUNTY ATTORNEY
R. J. Borries Cindy Mayo, Tim Hubert, Rep.
R. L. Willner Chief Deputy

S. J. Cox (Absent)

COUNTY HIGHWAY COUNTY ENGINEER AREA PLAN

Bill Bethel Andy Easley B. Cunningham
OTHER

Jeffrey Kempf

Dave Robinson, Atty.
Mark Miller, Atty.
John S. McCullough
James Morley

Keith Wallace, Atty.
Thomas Duncan

M. L. Boultinghouse
Bobbie Schmitt

Mr. & Mrs. Edwin Fehd
Robert Bond

Sylvanus Carter, Pastor/Trinity Church of Nazarene
Lewis Smith

Edward Howard

Roger Kratz

John Hoffman

Joe Kirby

Elizabeth Hills

W. C. Bussing, Jr.
News Media
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MINUTES
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING
MAY 26, 1987

The Vanderburgh County Board of Commissioners met in session at
2:30 p.m. on Tuesday, May 26, 1987, in the Commissioners Hearing
Room, with Vice President Robert Willner presiding, since
President Rick Borries had been delayed. He noted, however, that
Commissioner Borries is expected to arrive while the meeting is
in progress.

RE: CONTRACT RE MANAGEMENT OF HILLCREST-WASHINGTON HOME

Commissioner Willner said County Attorney David Miller is back in
his office reading the contract between the County and the Mental
Health Association regarding management of the
Hillcrest-Washington Children's Home. The reason he asked
Attorney Miller to read the agreement verbatim is because he and
Commissioner Cox just received the contract a few minutes ago and
have not yet had an opportunity to read it. Attorney Miller will
review it thoroughly and advise whether said contract is in
proper order, etc.

RE: AUTHORIZATION TO OPEN PROPOSALS ON DESIGN OF GREEN RIVER
ROAD SOUTH

The Chair entertained a motion to authorize Jim Lindenschmidt to
open the proposals received on design of Green River Road South,
since Attorney Miller is otherwise occupied. Motion to this
effect was made by Commissioner Cox, with a second from
Commissioner Willner. So ordered.

RE: COUNTY HIGHWAY - BILL BETHEL

Work Report/County Garage: Mr. Bethel submitted the following
Work Report for Employees at the County Garage for period May 18
thru May 22, 1987........report received and filed.

Gradall: Darmstadt Rd. and Baehl Rd.

Patch Crew: Red Bank Rd., Mesker Park Dr., Campbell and Walnut,
Allen Lane, Mohr Rd. and 0ld Henderson Rd.

Paved: Burkhardt Rd. and Wedeking
Mowed &
Mo-Trim Darmstadt Rd., 0ld Princeton Rd., Millersburg,

Green River Rd., St. Joe Ave., Red Bank Rd.,
Nurrenbern, Broadway, Felstead, Heinlein, 0ld
Petersburg, Kansas Rd., Boonville-New Harmony,
Browning Rd. and St. Joe Median

Grader: Wedeking
Work Report/Bridge Crew: Also submitted for the same period was

the Work Report for the Bridge Crew.......report received and
filed.

- Installed a culvert on Darmstadt ahd Mohr Rd.

- Repaired guard rails at 7206 Darmstadt Rd. and Hitch-
Peters

- Replaced culvert on Campbell Rd. & Walnut and cut weeds
on Boonville-New Harmony Rd.
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- Repaired concrete channels on Heckel Rd. & cut weeds
- Cut weeds on Pollack Avenue
Absentee Reports: Also submitted for the same period were the

Weekly Absentee Reports for Employees at the County Garage and
the Bridge Crew........reports received and filed.

In response to query from Commissioner Willner, Mr. Bethel said
they are working on Heinlein Rd. today. 0ld Boonville Highway
and Telephone Rd. are finished. They paved Burhardt Rd. from
Highway 62 to Boonville-New Harmony Rd.

Commissioner Willner said he was out at McCutchan Place
Subdivision and that is a mess.

Commissioner Cox said we have nothing to do with the developer's
private drive.

Commissioner Willner noted there are a lot of people on that
other than the developer.

RE: BURDETTE PARK — FINANCIAL REPORT

Commissioner Willner presented the following Financial Report
which had been submitted by Mark Tuley, Manager/Burdette Park:

1987 STARTING BUDGET

1987 Budgeted $456,318.00
1986 Encumbered by Contract 66,368.84
1987 Additional Appropriation 14,000.00

Total $536,686.84

Expenditures & Balance 1/1/87 to 4/30/87

Total Expenditures $206,765.95
Total Balance $329,920.89

Income 1/1/87 to 4/30/87

Pool $ -0-
Rink 12,596.01
Rentals 22,274.00
Misc. 1,371.55
Total $ 36,241.56
4/30/87

Total Expenditures $206,765.95
Total Income - 36,241.56
Deficit Sub-Total 170,524.39
Less Capital Improvements - 55,836.34
Total Deficit $114,688.05

Commissioner Willner said Burdette had a very good weekend. The
water slide and batting cages were busy. The lighting has done
wonders for the batting cages -- and should help the entire park.
Mr. Bethel interjected that they did a nice job on the lighting
and he and Commissioner Willner agreed that this is something of
which we can be proud.

RE: PIC/LEO AGREEMENT MODIFICATION

The meeting proceeded with Commissioner Willner reading the
following letter from the Private Industry Council of Southwest
Indiana:
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May 14, 1987
To: Local Elected Officials

Please find enclosed a proposed modification of the Service
Delivery Area Agreement between Elected Officials and the
Private Industry Council of Southwest Indiana. The purpose
of the modification is to incorporate into the document the
following changes that have recently been discussed and
approved by the Private Industry Council.

Section II - Beginning July 1, 1987, it is recommended that
the Private Industry Council become the grant recipient. The
City of Evansville had previously been charged with that
responsibility. The change resulted in a mutual agreement
between PIC and the City of Evansville based on financial
liability.

Section IX - It is recommended that the wording for removal
of board members be changed to include acknowledgment for
attendance of both PIC Business and PIC Committee meetings. -
Attendance at the business meetings is still greatly
emphasized.

If this modification meets with your approval, please sign
and return the document to Jeffrey L. Amos, Supervisor of
Planning and Management Systems by June 12, 1987,

In the case of County Commissioners, the signatures of all
the Commissioners are needed.

If you have any questions, or if I can be of any assistance
concerning the agreement, please feel free to call.

Ann Penfield
Acting Executive Director

It was subsequently determined that action on this matter will be
deferred until after Commissioner Borries arrives.

RE: TRAVEL REQUESTS

Commissioner Willner stated that he has several requests, as
follows:

1) County Assessor -- Jim Angermeier is requesting mileage
and two days per diem for trip to Anderson County (to
view computer system) and to Indianapolis for the NECO
Conference on May 26 and 27. (Lodging to be provided by
family member).

Motion to approve the request was made by Commissioner Cox with a
second from Commissioner Willner. So ordered.

2) Township Assessors —-- (Bob Dorsey, Al Folz and Bob
Harris) are requesting permission for themselves and
two deputies from each office to attend instructional
meetings in Indianapolis on June 22, 23 and 24.

Motion to approve the foregoing requests was made by Commissioner
Cox, with a second from Commissioner Willner. So ordered.

3) Area Plan Commission -- Mrs. Barbara Cunningham is
requesting permission to attend the 1987 Indiana Planning
Association Convention June 10-12 in Columbus, IN. As
secretary of this organization, she is required to
attend. In response to query from Commissioner Cox.
Commissioner Willner checked and advised that the APC
has no funds in their account for this; the travel
expense will have to come from the Commissioners' Travel
Account, which currently has a $4,819.19 balance.
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Motion to approve the request was made by Commissioner Cox, with
a second from Commissioner Willner. So ordered.

It was noted by Mrs. Cox that the Commissioners will need to keep
an eye on travel expenses, as there will be fall meetings which
newly elected officials will be required to attend.

RE: RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR LYNCH ROAD & "B" STREET UNDERPASS

Commissioner Cox asked if Andy Easley is in town this week? She
said her notes indicate that the Commissioners were to name a
right-of-way buyer for the Lynch Rd. Extension project. And he
was to advise the Commissioners further re "B" Street Underpass
Project.

Commissioner Willner said Mr. Easley is in town and should be in
the meeting shortly.

RE: SCHEDULED MEETINGS

Wednesday May 27 2:00 p.m. Council Personnel .
Committee Mtg.

Wednesday May 28 2:30 p.m. Council Finance
Committee Mtg.

Wednesday June 3 2:30 p.m. County Council Mtg.

RE: EMPLOYMENT CHANGES

Pigeon Township Assessor (Appointments)

Kraig M. Nance Ext. Help $35.00/Day 6/1/87

Prosecutor (Releases)

Timothy Klingler Dep. Pros. $25,000/Yr. Eff: 5/27/87
Steve Owens Dep. Pros. $23,810/Yr. Eff: 5/27/87
Michael J. Danks Dep. Pros. $18,900/Yr. Eff: 5/25/87
Christian M. Lenn Dep. Pros. $27,000/Yr. Eff: 5/25/87
Daniel DeArmond Dep. Pros. $21,500/Yr. Eff: 5/25/87
Debra Jo Day P.Secretary $15,000/Yr. Eff: 5/25/87

Prosecutor (Appointments)

Steve Owens Dep. Pros. $25,045/Yr. Eff: 5/27/87
Michael J Danks Dep. Pros. $20,000/Yr. Eff: 5/25/87
Christian M. Lenn Dep. Pros. $28,540/Yr. Eff: 5/25/87
Daniel DeArmond Dep. Pros. $23,000/Yr. Eff: 5/27/87
Debra Jo Day P. Secretary $16,317/Yr. Eff: 5/25/87

RE: COUNTY ATTORNEY RE HILLCREST-WASHINGTON HOME

County Attorney Miller entered the meeting room at 2:50 p.m. and
said that they have been working with Counsel for the
Southwestern Indiana Mental Health Foundation during the entire
month of May and have arrived at a written agreement that
involves all of the requirements of the bid and the various
concerns the Commissioners have expressed. He has provided the
Commissioners with a draft of the agreement that is a result of a
number of exchanges and comments of information between his
office and Mr. Evans, the attorney for Southwestern Indiana
Mental Health Foundation, Inc. The document arrived in his
office this morning and was brought to his attention at noon
today. He has read it in its entirety and it appears that with
one needed change (which is being done right now and will be
brought over here for insertion) it appears to be totally
satisfactory subject to these comments.

On Page 1 at the bottom where the language reads "NOW,
THEREFORE,' he has asked Mr. Evans and he has agreed to include
the following language after the word 'herein':
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NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and
agreements contained herein and in consideration of the
statements and representations set forth in the Bid of Manager,
all of which are incorporated into this Agreement by this
reference...". In other words, the bid that Southwestern Indiana
Mental Health Foundation, Inc. gave to us, all the language and
representations incorporated into that bid are a part of our
contract with them and we are entitled to rely on those
documents.

Attorney Miller said he believes that the compensation amounts
set forth in Paragraph II are correct. They are made subject,
however, to the annual funding of the Vanderburgh County Council
and that language appears later in the agreement.

The scope of the work is very extensively described beginning
with Paragraph IV. This was a difficult job because nobody ever
tried to do this before. Our agreement with the Department of
Public Welfare was all verbal (as far as he knows). Paragraph IV
was the result of some substantial discussion. He will not say .
"give and take" because there was no evident bargaining. We
didn't bargain one thing in return for another. It was simply an
effort to cover everything that everyone wanted to do -- and he
must say that the people at Southwestern Indiana Mental Health
Foundation have been extremely cooperative and have shown very
good faith in attempting to set forth here everything that is
expected of them.

Continuing, Attorney Miller said he wanted to point out that
beginning on Page 16 there is a kind of condition set forth that
the County will on or before December 31, 1987, perform certain
capital improvements in the structure, including the correction
of leaking roofs and installation of zonal heating and air
conditioning. In order to do that, this contract provides that
if the revenues received by Southwestern Indiana exceeds the
expenses incurred by them during the 1987 operation (and that is
to be determined by audited statement) -- but if Southwestern
Indiana is able to perform these services for an amount less than
the County pays, the County will be paid back all such overage to
assist in the payment for the capital improvements. If the
County does not see its way clear to do that, Southwestern
Indiana will commit itself to maintain all of the grounds and
improvements after December 31, 1987, except that the County will
be required to maintain the roof and exterior and all heating and
air conditioning equipment and plumbing and to repair any
interior damage caused by the roof leaks, freezing or bursting of
pipes. If the County made the suggested corrections on or before
December 31, 1987, the maintenance obligation on the building and
grounds will be that of Southwestern Indiana Mental Health
Foundation, Inc. So there is some real incentive there for the
county to find the funds to perform these needed improvements.

Page 18 sets forth the insurance coverage that Southwestern
Mental Health Foundation, Inc. will provide for the operation of
the facility and the County will be named as an additional
insured on automobile liability with limits of $1,000,000.00, and
bodily injury on the grounds with limits of $1,000,000.00 and
property damage $1,000,000.00 per occurrence and professional
liability with limit of $100,000.00 each loss and $300,000.00
aggregate; Umbrella Liability with limit of $5,000,000.00. This
is better coverage than the County can get itself.

Attorney Miller said he would call the Commissioners' attention
to the fact that on Page 20,sub-section D, the County assumes
continuing responsibility for providing fire and other casualty
insurance for the buildings, etc. We have insurance in place.
It is our structure; it is our property; and the agreement says
that we must maintain that insurance.
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Beginning on Page 22, there is indemnification by Southwestern
Indiana Mental Health Foundation, Inc. of the County for any and
all activities conducted both in the operation of the
Hillcrest-Washington Home and any purchases or acquisitions made
in the course of the operation.

Likewise on Page 23, the County indemnifies Southwestern Indiana
Mental Health Foundation from any claims that the County causes
to be created for the cost and expenses incurred by the County.

Finally, Attorney Miller said he would point out that the
Commissioners will look in vain in this document for a default
provision. There was no discussion of a default provision in the
bid. There was no question or answer concerning any portion of
the public hearing. It is hardly to be anticipated that the
County will not pay the expenses they have agreed to pay. They
may have difficulty raising the money sometimes, but the County
does pay its bills. That would be the only concern of
Southwestern Indiana Mental Health Poundation, Inc. On the other
hand, our concern would be that Southwestern Indiana maintain
quality service and perform the services contemplated by this -
document. If a breach would occur that the County government
would consider significant enough to warrant termination or
significant enough to pose a danger to any of the children (and
this we simply don't anticipate) an emergency action for a
declaratory relief and the termination of this contract is
available to us and would be the appropriate remedy. So and he
and Mr. Evans agreed that in the event a dispute would arise, the
appropriate place to have it dealt with on an emergency basis
would be in the County Courts and that is what would have to
happen anyway.

The Chair entertained questions.

Attorney Miller said he recommends the agreement be signed, with
the understanding that the revised first page will be inserted.

It was determined that the Commissioners will delay signing the
contract until such time as the revised Page 1 is delivered to
Attorney Miller and Commissioner Borries arrives.

Attorney Miller said there is one other matter with respect to
this agreement and he thinks it appropriate that it be mentioned
at this meeting. It has been pointed out to us that there are
two current employees at the Hillcrest-Washington Home who are
within months of becoming qualified for PERF benefits. This
arises as a result of the Statute. There is a third individual
(none of these people have been named) who is a little more than
a year away from vesting. Southwestern Indiana Mental Health
Foundation will, of course, hire its own personnel, but they
indicated initially a willingness to maintain in place the two
employees who are within a few months of vesting, if we can work
out a way to keep them in the public employee sector for that
period of time, the indication being that they probably will be
kept on indefinitely after that -- but at least for that period.
It would be his recommendation that if Southwestern Indiana
Mental Health is willing to use these people, that they should be
maintained or continued as county employees and the county would
contract their services (in a separate very short document) out
to Southwestern Indiana Mental Health Foundation. Southwestern
Indiana would pay the county the amount required to pay these
individuals' salaries and the county would pay salaries direct to
these people for the time required.

Following brief discussion, it was determined that County
Attorney Miller should check on this further and no decision will
be made until such time as the Commissioners know how many years
or months the employees need. There are only three anywhere near
the PERF vesting period. It is his understanding that one of the
three is in excess of a year. They're not sure they want to go
that far out -~ but there are at least two they felt they could
reach some agreement on.
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Commissioner Willner said he thought the county was allowed to
waiveiceceeooe

Attorney Miller said he will check this out. Assuming that a
waiver is not possible, is there indication by the Commission
that they would want to engage in that kind of labor agreement?

Commissioner Cox said, "I have no problem with that.”

Commissioner Willner said again that he would like to hold up any
decision regarding this until such time as we find out how many
years and/or months the employees need for vesting.

Commissioner Cox asked, "Are the Southwestern Indiana Mental
Health Foundation people not eligible for PERF?

Attorney Miller said they have their own plan.

Clement Case: Attorney Miller said he had intended to write a
nice letter about one of their litigation successes. But the .
county has successfully extricated itself from the claim of
Janette Clement. Mrs. Clement's husband was the man who was
killed as the result of a high speed chase involving a minor
named David Wiley, a resident of Henderson, Kentucky. He was
driving a car owned by his mother and had no license. The
Kentucky police started chasing him and chased him across the
Evansville-Henderson bridge. At that time, the Vanderburgh
County authorities took up the chase. Young Wiley went all the
way through town on Highway 41 and rear-ended Mr. Clement in
front of Whirlpool. As a result, the county was sued and they
have been successful in obtaining a dismissal of the case.

RE: PROPOSALS ON DESIGN OF SOUTH GREEN RIVER RD.

The Chair asked Mr. Lindenschmidt for a report on proposals
received for the design of South Green River Rd.

Mr. Lindenschmidt reported that eight (8) proposals were
received, as follows:

Donan Engineering, Inc. (Jasper, IN)

Morley & Associates (Evansville IN)

Floyd E. Burroughs, Inc. (Indianapolis IN)

Fink, Roberts & Petrie (Indianapolis, IN)

United Consulting Engineers (Indianapolis, IN)
Veach, Nicholson, Griggs Associates (Evansville, IN)
Three I Engineering (Evansville, IN)

Sebree, Craig & McKneight, Inc. (Indianapolis, IN)

It was noted by Mr. Lindenschmidt that the proposals were
supposed to have been in by 2:00 p.m. yesterday. The bid from
Three I Engineering came in at 9:15 a.m. today.

The Chair entertained a motion. Motion was made by Commissioner
Cox that the proposals be taken under advisement for a period of
two weeks, with a second from Commissioner Willner. So ordered.

In response to query from Commissioner Cox, Mr. Lindenschmidt
said EUTS indicated they did not have a date set for reviewing
these. Commissioner Willner said a date will be set up for
reviewing these.

RE: APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Commissioner Borries entered the meeting. The Chair entertained
a motion concerning approval of the minutes of the previous
meeting. Motion was made by Commissioner Borries that the
minutes of the meeting held May 18, 1987 be approved as engrossed
by the County Auditor and the reading of same be waived. A
second to the motion was provided by Commissioner Willner. So
ordered.
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RE: BUILDING COMMISSION

Landfill Operation/Red Bank Rd.: With regard to the landfill
operation out on Red Bank Road (which was still burning as of
yesterday), Mr. Lehman reported that the State had ordered the
landfill closed and they were issuing formal orders to that
effect. He will provide the Commissioners with a copy.

RKay's Health Club: He had written the law firm in Boonville on
May lst concerning violations of Ordinance by Kay's Health Club.
He has received a response. They have cut the weeds since his
letter was sent and indicated that is all they are going to do.
The usual procedure would be to issue citation for Ordinance
Violation and they could take bids on clearing the property which
includes raising any structures. They had started tearing down
and then stopped because someone else didn't want it torn down.
The structure is not safe, as the roof is collapsed -- so it is a
definite hazard.

Commissioner Willner requested that Mr. Lehman make pictures and _
give the Board his recommendations, as well as asking the owner
to be here next Monday morning.

Mr. Lehman noted that this would be one day short of the two week
notice requirement. Thus, the hearing concerning this matter
should be held at 2:30 p.m. on June 8th.

Plumbing Test: Mr. Lehman said one other item concerns the fact
that he has been working with the State on getting the plumbing
test administered down in this area. The State has agreed to
come down and administer the plumbing test on June 8th if we can
provide the room.

Commissioner Willner instructed Mr. Lehman to contact Vanderburgh
Auditorium and arrange to conduct the test on the Auditorium
stage. He has the Commissioners' permission to use the
Auditorium for this purpose.

RE: COUNTY ENGINEER - ANDY EASLEY

Claim/Veach, Nicholson, Griggs Associates: Claim in the amount
of $1,320.00 for field survey in conjunction with the Orchard Rd.
Bridge project.

Motion to approve the claim for payment was made by Commissioner
Cox, with a second from Commissioner Borries. So ordered.

Boonville-New Harmony Road Extension: Mr. Easley presented copy
of letter sent to the Indiana Department of Highways on May 11,
1987 re the Boonville-New Harmony Rd. Extension, as follows:

May 11, 1987

Hearings Examiner

Indiana Department of Highways
Room 1105 State Office Building
100 N. Senate Avenue
Indianapolis, IN 46204-2241

Attn: Ms. .Teresa Parker-Breach
Dear Ms. Breach:

I met with Wilbert & Isabel Fehd on April 8, 1987, in
response to their request for a public hearing. We discussed
various subjects pertaining to the Boonville-New Harmony

Road project. These items are explained in detail in the
attached minutes of the meeting. Our consulting firm
(Bernardin, Lochmueller & Associates, Inc.) responded to the
Fehd's comments in the attached letter dated April 22, 1987.
Changes were made to the design to accommodate the Fehd's
concerns. All the issues discussed during my meeting with
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the Fehds were appropriately addressed and responded to.

At this point, the Fehds have refused to withdraw their
request for a public hearing. I feel that every reasonable
effort has been made by myself and by our consultant to
respond to the Fehd's concerns. No complaints have been
voiced by any other residents affected by the project. I
respectfully request that you waive the public hearing and
close the hearing record at this time, so that we may
complete design plans for the project.

If you have further questions or need more information,
please feel free to contact me at (812) 426-5211 or Tom
Bernardin at (812) 426-1737.

Sincerely,

Andy Easley
Vanderburgh County Engineer

He briefed the Commissioners last week that he had requested
waiver of public hearing. The IDOH has verbally agreed to waive
same, and a letter to this effect is to follow.

Easement/0ld Princeton Rd.: Mr. Easley reported that he has now
obtained the easement for the 0l1ld Princeton R4 curve. The
Strott's have signed it and had it notarized. He would like for
the Board of Commissioners to accept it today. This was obtained
for the amount of $6,000.00. Motion to sign the easement
signifying acceptance was made by Commissioner Borries, with a
second from Commissioner Cox. So ordered.

In response to query from Commissioner Willner, Mr. Easley said
this money is coming out of the bridge fund and the check has
already been cut.

The matter of crop damage was brought up. Mr. Easley said he
guesses there is about one quarter acre of crop in there and he
said we were talking about a crop that was probably worth $300.00
per acre. He said that if we were that close, he was sure we'd
find some way to compensate them for same. So he may be coming
back to the Commissioners to approve some $75.00 or $100.00
additional for the crop damage.

Street Plans/Oak View Place & Green River Estates: Mr. Easley
said he had put copies of street plans for Oak View Place & Green
River Estates on the Commissioners' desks the latter part of last
week. These are to be concrete streets; these are flat grades
and the streets have rolled curbs and gutters. The developers
would like to get their plats recorded. Their bond amounts have
been approved. He believes they can go ahead and record their
plats if they have put up their money. Mrs. Cunningham entered
the meeting room and verified that the developers can go ahead
and record their plats if they have paid their money. However,
it was determined by the Board that the matter of approval of
street plans for these two subdivisions will be deferred for one
week, as the Commissioners have not had an opportunity to review
same.

"B" Street Underpass: To date, he has nothing in writing either
from the Board of Works or SIGECO insofar as their comments. He
needs to get these to the Consultant. They have another 120 days
to complete the plans. He has received this morning an estimate
from the consultant signed by someone in Little Rock on
relocating that fibre optic cable and it is a very sad estimate
—-— he's very sorry to say. He thinks it may necessitate taking a
trip to St.Louis. Apparently they are very reluctant to let our
un-named contractor suspend the cable or work around it. They are
afraid a crane may fall over and sever it and nobody has told him
what it is worth an hour. He is going to talk to the people who
are familiar with what it cost to work with the fiber optic cable
to see if he can find some holes in the estimate of $130,000. He
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doesn't know whether we are in a position to insist that they let
us have the contractor get insurance for that and keep it
supported in place. He also understands that the railroad owns
25% of this cable, because they are going to use it for their own
communications. This has never come up before. In the meantime,
the design work can proceed as soon as we get comments from the
Board of Works and SIGECO. They just put that fibre optic cable
into service last October.

Right~-of-Way Purchase for Lynch Rd.: With regard to right-of-way
purchase for Lynch Rd., Mr. Easley said it is his understanding
that we have to have a review appraiser. All he does is to
review the first appraiser. The Board has indicated that Ken
Hansen is acceptable to them?

Mrs. Cox said he is the right-of-way buyer. We've used Bob Goff
before.

Mr. Easley said Mrs. Cox is correct.

In response to query from Commissioner Willner, Mr. Easley said
the review appraiser just looks at it and checks the computations
and they look at comparable valuations. Actually, he doesn't
have to spend much time on it.

Motion was made by Commissioner Cox that Mr. Bob Goff be named
the review appraiser for the Lynch Rd. project, with a second
from Commissioner Borries. So ordered.

RE: "B" STREET UNDERPASS

Mrs. Cox asked if we have a firm answer concerning the Claremont
Crossing?

Mr. Easley said this did not come up in the conversation....

Mrs. Cox interrupted, "Andy, we need a firm answer from the
railroad and for this "B" Street project to go ahead as it is, we
need a clear understanding. If we don't -- and that has to be
closed -- then we're certainly going to have to look at a
different design. The further we go, ccceese

Mr. Easley responded, "I'll contact them and tell them that under
no circumstances do we want that Claremont crossing closed.

Commissioner Willner said "The railroad can't close that
crossing; I don't now why we want their approval...."

Commissioner Cox interrupted "Now, Bob, you must understand —-- we
have to have the railroad's permission to do this underpass,
o.k.? And that is what I am concerned about -- the trade-off.
When the Ray Becker and Old Stinson viaduct was demolished there
were trade-off agreements made between the existing property
owners in order for that project to go forward. I just do not
want us to get caught in this kind of a situation. That is true,
there is a street going across there now -- but it is still
railroad right-of-way —-- and we have to have their permission to
build this underpass and that is my concern; that we get a
straight answer that, "Yes, we can go ahead and build the "B"
Street Underpass the way it is designed and current Claremont
Crossing will remain viable and open as is."

Mr. Easley said he will contact the railroad.

Commissioner Willner said, "I don't know that we need their
permission. They can't close it.

Commissioner Cox said again, "We have to have the railroad's
permission to build this underpass.”
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Lynch Rd. Right-of-Way: In response to query concerning the
right-of-way for Lynch Rd. project, Mr. Easley said he talked
with Mrs. Ryan and leveled with her, told her about our
negotiations and what we were doing. She knows it has value as
far as borrow pit site and she indicated originally that she
thought she would like to make it available to the contractor and
then if we can enter into something after it has been used as a
borrow pit site or before or whatever —-- she said she'd get back
with him in about two weeks.

Commissioner Willner requested that Mr. Easley keep the Board
informed concerning this matter.

RE: CLAIMS

Bowers, Harrison Kent & Miller: Claim presented in the amount of
$315.50 for expert witness fees and expenses (one half the
cost)in connection with Elizabeth May deposition from Michael
Mahoney of Chicago, IL. He is an expert in the area of viewing
jail conditions, etc. Motion to approve claim for payment was
made by Commissioner Borries, with a second from Commissioner -
Cox. So ordered.

RE: HILLCREST-WASHINGTON AGREEMENT

Motion to approve agreement (subject to comments by County
Attorney David Miller and the revised first page being inserted)
between the County and the Southwestern Indiana Mental Health
Foundation, Inc. was made by Commissioner Borries, with a second
from Commissioner Cox. So ordered. It was noted by County
Attorney Miller that the revised Page 1 will read after the word
'Herein' and before the comma --"And in consideration of the
statements and representations set forth in the bid of the
manager, all of which are incorporated into this agreement by
reference.”

RE: AGREEMENT WITH PRIVATE INDUSTRY COUNCIL

Motion to approve the agreement between Vanderburgh County and
the Private Industry Council was made by Commissioner Borries,
with a second from Commissioner Cox. So ordered.

RE: UNION TOWNSHIP/MARION BIGGERSTAFF PROPERTY

The Chair recognized Mrs. Barbara Cunningham, who reported that a
hearing concerning the Marion Biggerstaff property in Union
Township was held in Judge Terry Dietsch's chambers this

morning. The Court has given him until 8:45 a.m. on June llth to
clear up everything. He can retain all properties considered
agricultural; but anything not connected with agricultural use
must go inside the building. So, in essence, the old school is
being used as a barn. He treats it as an agricultural project.
Mrs. Cunningham said they will be out there before 8:45 a.m. on
June llth to see what happens.

Commissioner Borries said the Board appreciates the APC's work on
this matter. Did Mr. Biggerstaff say anything about what is
inside? He can verify that there were things inside that were
not for agricultural use -- geese, chickens, water heaters, etc,

Mrs. Cunningham said they hope to move the animals outside.
Right now the animals are inside while he is putting up a new
fence. He said he has materials to rebuild the school and make
improvements on the interior. He told the Judge this morning
that nothing was inside except the materials he is going to use
to restore the school.

Mrs. Cunningham said the APC did notify the Bergdorfs concerning
the scheduled hearing this morning. They were not at the
hearing; it was held in the Judge's Chambers. But the Judge did
direct the APC attorney (Dennis Vowells) to go out and explain
the Court's decision to the people who were there.
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Mrs. Cox asked if the Bergdorfs were present this morning?

Ms. Cunningham said quite a few people were there -- but not in
the Judge's Chambers.

Commissioner Willner said it has come to the Commissioners'
attention that Clifford Elliott, brother of Councilman Harold
Elliott, passed away last evening. Prior to adjournment, he
asked for a moment of silence.

There being no further business to come before the Board at this
time, Commissioner Willner declared the meeting adjourned at 3:45

p.M.
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MINUTES
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING
JUNE 1, 1987

The Vanderburgh County Board of Commissioners met in session at
2:30 p.m. on Monday, June 1, 1987, in the Commissioners Hearing
Room, with President Rick Borries presiding.

Since it was the first meeting of the month, the meeting was
opened by Deputy Sheriff Ken Mitz, who declared the Commissioners
in session pursuant to adjournment.

President Borries called the meeting to order at 2:40 p.m. and
extended a welcome to those present. He subsequently entertained
a motion concerning approval of the minutes of the previous
meeting.

Motion was made by Commissioner Willner that the minutes of the
meeting held on May 26, 1987, be approved as engrossed by the
County Auditor and the reading of same be waived, with a second
from Commissioner Cox. So ordered.

RE: POOR RELIEF APPEAL -~ PIGEON TOWNSHIP

Pamela Trainer (Jack)/100 Harriett Street (Evansville): It was
noted by President Borries that the name of applicant on appeal
is Jack Trainer, but application is signed by his wife, Pamela
Trainer. There was some question as to whether the Board could
act on this matter under the circumstances. However, after
conferring with County Attorney Curt John and Pigeon Trustee
representative (Ruth Anslinger) and obtaining clarification, it
was determined that it would be appropriate for the Board to
review the matter, having altered the name on front of subject
application to "Pamela Trainer"™ (in accordance with permission
from both the County Attorney and the Pigeon Trustee's
representative). Mrs. Trainer is the individual who came in for
the denial. Mr. Trainer is currently in jail.

The Chair recognized Mrs. Trainer and asked that she state the
nature of her request.

Mrs. Trainer identified herself and said she resides at 100
Harriett Street. She is requesting assistance to pay her rent as
she has no income. In response to query from Commissioner
Borries, Mrs. Trainer said rent is due for two months (May and
June). She hopes that by next month she has a job. Rent is
$195.00 per month.

The Chair entertained questions,.

Commissioner Cox asked if Mrs. Trainer has received assistance
previously?

Mrs. Trainer responded, "Not from the Pigeon Township Trustee's
office.”

Mrs. Cox asked, "Why was your request denied?"

Mrs. Trainer replied, "Because the apartment I live in belongs to
my mother-in-law. She has a house and she rents the upstairs
apartment. I live completely separate -— I have my own door to
enter and leave, etc."

Commissioner Borries asked how many apartments are in the
dwelling?
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Mrs. Trainer said there are two: one downstairs and one
upstairs. The mother-in-law lives in the downstairs apartment.

In response to query from Commissioner Willner concerning denial,
Commissioner Borries cited portion of Pigeon Trustee's guidelines
which prohibits paying rent to landlord related to those persons
renting or buying on contract.

The Chair then recognized Ruth Anslinger of the Pigeon Trustee's
Office and asked for her comments.

Ms. Anslinger said Mrs. Trainer was on ADC prior to marrying Jack
Trainer; therefore, they never had to give her rent assistance.
Mrs. Trainer came in the Trustee's Office April 9th requesting
rent assistance and her caseworker also contacted the Trustee's
office. Ms. Anslinger told her there was no way they could pay
her rent because they cannot pay rent to relatives in accordance
with Item #15 in the Poor Relief Assistance Guidelines for the
Pigeon Trustee's Office. ‘

Commissioner Willner asked how much the rent is per month?

Ms. Anslinger said it is $195.00 per month with utilities
furnished.

Commissioner Borries queried Ms. Anslinger, "You say there are no
children involved at this time?"

Mrs. Anslinger verified that this is correct. Further comments
revealed that at one time, Mrs. Trainer had children with her -~
but as of the 9th of April they are no longer with her. Children
are ages 5 and 2 (boy and girl, respectively). One child now
lives with grandparents and the other is in a foster home. The
Trainers have only been married since January. The Pigeon
Trustee's Office has had a file on Mr. Trainer for some time --
but nothing real active. He has not had gainful employment for
quite some time. His file goes back to 1972,

Mrs. Cox asked Mrs. Trainer how she has been paying her rent?
Mrs. Trainer said she paid it out of her State Welfare check.

Ms. Anslinger said that at one time Mrs. Trainer was getting
$256.00 ADC and then it was cut to $196.00. Now she doesn't get
anything since she does not have the children. They were also on
food stamps.

The Chair entertained questions.

Commissioner Cox said, "For purposes of clarification regarding
Item #15 about not paying any relatives rent for applicants --
and you have in parenthesis it says 'State and something else
standards' -- is this State Law that you can't do that?"

Ms. Anslinger said, "Evidently so, because these Notices of
Action are made up and then approved by an attorney."

Commissioner Willner said, "Evidently there is a lot more to this
case than we are hearing today. It sounds very interesting and
I'd like to understand it better. But has she been seeing an
attorney from Legal Aid or something? Undoubtedly, these people
need help and something needs to be done. 1I'll make a motion to
deny the appeal today, but I would like for you (Mrs. Anslinger)
to contact the Legal Aid Attorney and see what is going on and
how we might help these people. I see no reason to say she has
to leave this apartment and go get somewhere else where she has
to pay rent —- that is ridiculous. But there is something that
is not being said here -- and we probably don't have enough time
to go into it today. I would like for the Pigeon Township
Trustee's Office to check with the Attorney and see how we can
straighten this thing up -- if possible.”
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Mrs. Cox provided a second to the motion for denial. So ordered.

Commissioner Borries commented, "Apparently you will have to seek
legal advice; and, as Commissioner Willner has pointed out here,
according to what we can do and ask questions for clarification
here -- without getting into confidentiality or privacy questions
in a public meeting that may relate to this situation -- Mrs.
Trainer may want to seek legal advice at this point and ask
assistance in order to get assistance. What we're saying is, we
cannot find at this time where the Trustee has violated statutes
that have been adopted by the Trustee and the Trustee's Board.
So, you must seek that legal assistance. Thank you.”

RE: UNION TOWNSHIP UNDERPASS - SHIRLEY JAMES

The meeting proceeded with President Borries recognizing Mrs.
Shirley James of the West Side Improvement Association.

Mrs. James said, "Commissioners, at a recent meeting of the West
Side Improvement Association's Board of Directors, the members
voted to take the following stance regarding the Union Township -
Underpass:

It has always been the opinion of our organization that B
Street is not the best location for the underpass for the
reasons stated below:

1) The water table and unstable soil conditions would make
the construction of an underpass in this area very
expensive to build and maintain.

2) People living in the outer parts of Union Township will
not get rapid fire protection services and this service
would be more impaired if the Claremont Avenue access
was closed by CSX.

3) Traffic moving on Barker would create problems and would
necessitate additional signal lights.

4) Whereas a B Street access may help some industries,
closing the Claremont access would be a definite
impediment to other commercial interests.

In lieu of the above, W.I.A. still supports the construction
of an overpass on Nurrenbern Road if the grade specifications
can be constructed to meet State standards. In the event B
Street is the final choice, we feel it would be imperative
that all homes on the street be purchased. After reviewing
the plans, it was obvious that the residents' quality of life
would definitely be impaired by the construction of the
underpass so close to their homes. Also, it would be
necessary to keep the Claremont Avenue access open.

Now, one of the things in regard to Item #1 (Water Table and
Unstable Soil Conditions) -- we did have the problem with
the fire house there and the West Side Improvement
Association has been working a lot in Howell Park area; and
every time we did any digging or what have you, we came up
against some very strange soil problems and I would imagine
that that whole area is pretty much the same -- and that is
what that was based upon.

Also, we have had several calls in regard to the point we
made about the residents' quality of life. We have had
several calls from neighbors wherein they complained that
for one month they would be unable to reach their homes;

that some of the people were elderly and had emphysema, etc.,
and then when we saw the parking -- we decided to take this
stand. Thanks! Mr. Lowe, our Transportation Chairman, made
another observation. May he speak at this moment?"
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Mr. Lawrence Lowe was recognized by the Chair. He said,, "I was
wondering on this underpass situation if anyone had considered
what kind of hazard the detour route is going to create? You
have a lot of big trucks going to that area and there is no way
that they can get around there unless they go down Barker to
Broadway, Red Bank Rd. and Red Bank to Nurrenbern Rd. and across
-~ back in behind the L&N Station. Or, from the west, they would
go Broadway to Nurrenbern and around past Burdette Park and
around there. Now, there's a lot of heavy trucks that travel
that area while that has to be closed off while they are putting
in the underpass. And what have we got - ten (10) ton bridges on
those two streets? Red Bank Rd. and Nurrenbern Rd.? What are
you going to do with 80 ton trucks? Who is going to pay for the
damage that those trucks are going to make while they are making
the detour? Where is that money coming from? Do you have any
answers for that?"”

Commissioner Borries replied, "Well, I will when you are finished
-— I will try to get some answers for you."

Mr. Lowe said, "I'd kind of like to know where the money is
coming from to repair those roads, because what are you going to
do to keep those trucks off those 10 ton bridges?'

Commissioner Willner interjected, "Mr. President, I need some
clarification. I really don't know what you are talking about,
Sir."

Mr. Lowe responded "The detour....”

Commissioner Willner said, "What detour? Tell me, what detour?”®

Mr. Lowe said, "0.K. How are you going to get the underpass

without having any detour -- which Mr. Easley said -- or the
gentleman who was here at the last meeting you had -- that
Broadway was going to have to be closed for a detour -- and you'd

have a detour? Now, where is the detour? If you're closing
Claremont over there, there is only one way around that railroad
track."

Commissioner Willner said, "That's another point. Who said
anything about closing Claremont?”

Mr. Lowe responded, "They didl"
Commissioner Willner asked, "Who?"

Mr. Lowe responded, "Mr. Easley did -- and the man who was here
the other day who showed up -- and he said Claremont would have
to be closed and there would be a detour."

Commissioner Willner said, "No such thing. I don't know where
you are coming up with what you are doing. 1It's fine if you want
to continue that -- but what you are saying is absolutely not
true.”

Mr. Lowe asked, "How are you going to get the underpass cut in
there without cutting traffic off of Broadway?"

Mr. Willner responded, "They will come in Broadway, just like
they are doing now."

Mr. Lowe asked, "How are they going to get across it while they
are working?"”

Commissioner Willner said, "They are not going to close that
traffic. As far as I know it is not going to be closed at all."

Mr. Lowe said, "They stated the other day that Broadway had to be
closed over there while they were doing that work."
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Commissioner Cox interjected, "I think he did make that statement
and also stated that there would be a temporary relocation of
Broadway to the east of the present Broadway to allow for that.
But Broadway deadends up there by the Super Inn."

Mr. Lowe interrupted, "But where it goes across underneath the
railroad tracks -- and they come out on Broadway —-- are they
going to be able to use that all the time?"

Commissioner Willner responded, "Absolutely."

Mr. Lowe asked, "Well, how are they going to get the trucks
around their equipment that they are using?"®

Mr. Willner responded, "Because they are going to make a
temporary -- they are not going over 20 ft. --

Mr. Lowe interrupted, "Well, that they didn't explain the other
day."

Commissioner Willner said, "I don't mind that you people come up”
here and make your wishes known. That is what this thing is all
about. But why don't you get your facts straight before you
come? You said the same thing the other night and I didn't know
anymore what you were talking about than the man in the moon."

Mr. Lowe said, "He stood right here and told us and showed us the
chart and said that we'd have to detour on Broadway. That is
what he said.”

Mr. Willner said, "That's right -- it's a run-around.”

Mr. Lowe said, "Nobody said anything about a run-around.”

Commissioner Willner said, "That is what a detour is, isn't it?

Mr. Lowe said, "Not exactly; not exactly. You could detour other
ways besides a run-around.”

Mrs. James started to speak....

Commissioner Willner said, "One other thing -- let me finish,
please. The second thing you're saying is that we're not going
to let people get to their homes. 1Isn't that what you are
saying? You know that is not correct.”

Mr. Lowe, "I didn't say anything about them not getting to their
homes."

Commissioner Willner asked, "What did you say?"
Mr. Lowe said, "I said there was a detour.”
Mrs. James interrupted, "I said that several people made

complaints to us that during the time of construction they would
have to park elsewhere because they wouldn't be able to get to

the front of their homes. That was our understanding -- and if
we are in error, I apologize. But, also, if we are
misunderstanding something -- but it is our understanding that

there are discussions taking place that the Claremont access is
going to perhaps be closed. Now we had Mr. Easley to a meeting
back some time ago -- before the plans were set forth and before
the surveying was done -- to ask about it and ask about all the
options. At that time there was some discussion that the
Claremont Avenue access eventually -- may -- be closed. Since
your last hearing, that rumor has come back to us and a couple of
people from industry have indicated to us (from commercial
interests) that this would be a problem for them —-- if the
Claremont Avenue access were closed. So I don't know —- is the
closing of Claremont Avenue access being considered?"
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Commissioner Willner asked, "Can you give me some basis? Who
said Claremont access was going to be closed? Who started the
rumor and why?"

Mrs. James responded, "Well,.ccccee."

Commissioner Willner interrupted, "Now wait a minute, Shirley; I
listened to you, please show me the same courtesy."

Mrs. James interjected, "You asked me."
Commissioner Willner said, "I am going to continue to asKeeoeo”
Mrs. James said, "I submit to you, Mr. Willner."”

Commissioner Willner asked, "In the first place, "Who decides
whether Claremont is going to stay open or close?"

Mrs. James said, "That is what I am asking you gentlemen. I
understood that there is the potential of that happening and it
has been discussed by several people -- and, turning to Mr.
Easley, she said, 'Mr. Easley, you discussed it at our meeting
some time ago.' I don't remember the exact things -- it has just
been discussed and then we have had several people calling us and
asking if Claremont Avenue access is going to be closed? The
Perry Township Fire Department would find it a real problem if
the Claremont access were to be closed. I don't know whether it
is definite -- but it has been rumored. But we want to make a
little statement here that we would find it difficult if the
Claremont Avenue access were closed. Now, we are not going to
make problems for you at this point in time. We just are making
a statement that we did not make previously, because we felt that
the majority of the residents wanted to see that B Street thing
in -- and we understood that they had a petition. We now
understand that there is the potential that the petition is not
legal -- so, under those circumstances we thought we'd make our
points now and we are not going to be contentious or anything, we
don't have any desire to be contentious. It is just simply that
we do want to express a desire to keep the Claremont Avenue
access open if there is any possibility of it being closed and we
do feel after looking at the plan that some of these people are
going to have the property in the front (those yards are very
small) -- some of their yards will definitely be cut down
somewhat —-- and they may have a lesser quality of life. So, we
do think that possibly you might consider purchasing their homes,
if you do take the B street route."

-

Commissioner Borries asked Commissioner Cox if she has comments?

Mrs. Cox responded, "I don't have any comments. I've heard the
same thing that Mrs. James has brought up here and I did ask at
the last meeting -- and Andy is here now —- if he could give us
some assurance or some agreement from the railroad that Claremont
would stay open if B Street is built? I think this would allay a
lot of fears that people have -- and that is what I have been
asking for and I've gotten no answer up until today. We may have

an answer today -— and I hope we do. Another thing, this has
been clouded and I know people think we've been planning on this
for a long time -- and we have. But it is awfully hard for

people to take a stand and people to take a position when they
really don't know what is going on. And I have sympathy for a
lot of those people on B Street who tried to find out what the
plan was going to be and couldn't. I mean, what they were told
was adjusted from 'We're going to take all the homes' to 'No, I
don't think we'll take but a few' -- and then 'I don't think
we're going to take any' -- and there was really no definite
proposal until the plan was submitted for a public hearing. And
that is what public hearings are for -- to get input from the
residents. They were here and they expressed their concerns. My
big point here -- and they were told -- because I was at the
meeting,, Bob, when they were told that while the construction
was going on they could park down on Barker Avenue and walk to
their homes. That is in our meeting minutes."



COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Page 7
June 1, 1987

Mrs. James said, "And each of them that called us told us that
and that is why we're here.”

Mrs. Cox continued, "So they were told that. I was here and I
heard that. But the thing that concerns me about them living
there during the construction period is that when the new Mead
Johnson office building was built and they were driving those
pilings, the boom and noise from driving those pilings I could
hear at my home on Red Bank Rd. I know these people are going to
be put in a very uncomfortable situation in more ways than one --
and I think we really need to look at that situation of buying
their homes. If that is where we are going to put it, let's buy
their homes; let's do it right. If Claremont is not going to be
open, we're going to have to revise those plans and make B Street
wider to carry the traffic. Right now it will not carry the
traffic. It is not designed like the Ray Becker Parkway —-- not
the width. In order to make good decisions, we need to have the
answers."”

Commissioner Borries said, "Well, I believe we all want the same~
thing. I wish from time to time that the emotionalism and
perhaps the outlook would improve to the extent that we could

feel comfortable here with everything. But I, for one -- in our
system of government we have lots of players (about 170,000
players -- citizens who live in this county) and we are going to

be careful. There have been problems with either the Becker
Parkway or at least with this whole situation in Union Township
ever since the viaduct and the whole situation came down a long
time ago. So, we are going to be careful and certainly want to
assure you (the representatives of the West Side Improvement
Association) that your concerns will be heard and that we will
proceed carefully on this. I would want to point out that the
people of Union Township (or persons and people that I met with)
did not feel that Nurrenbern Rd. was going to be helping them.

We did not talk about an overpass at Nurrenbern, we talked about
an underpass. There is another problem with construction in that
area; not only because of flooding, but also because Union
Township is not considered part of the urbanized area it means
that if any construction is going to take place in that area
we're not going to be able to qualify for one dime of Federal or
State funding in relation to the whole construction phase. That
all has to be be done strictly out of local cumulative bridge
funds. So we have been looking for other areas (particularly in
the urbanized area) where, in Perry Township, for example, the
various alternatives such as B Street, Barker Avenue and others
were looked at and one of the things we might want to consider as
we are proceeding is the possibility of some Federal or State
funding in the urbanized area. We cannot get it on Nurrenbern
Rd.; it simply has to come out of local money. Union Township is
not an urbanized area. So that is another point that I think
needs to be made in that situation. I think we are going to
proceed cautiously to avoid any mistakes that would occur. I
don't see how Claremont Avenue could ever be closed without the
City of Evansville agreeing to vacate that. I don't see how that
could happen regardless of whatever the railroad plans. We have

never seen anything in writing -- and I will ask Andy Easley to
comment at this point -- but we've only heard perhaps what you
have heard -- nothing in writing as to what the railroad has done

there. Again, certainly the City of Evansville would have a
major decision as I would see it to vacate Claremont Avenue. I
feel the same way here —-- that we want to do this right. We are
going to look at it from all the avenues we possibly can to make
sure that we can do it in a way that will help the people in the
area. So I think we need to proceed from that standpoint. I,
for one, would not be willing to commit unless we know thoroughly
what we are doing. We have to look at the traffic -- we
understand all of that. But, again, I do want to stress the
point that the Union Township situation is going to mean an awful
lot of money in an area that is rural and not urbanized. We're
willing to make that point and make that commitment. But, again
that is not what the people of the Union Township area felt they
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needed at the time. That is why they were asking us to look at
other alternatives —-- and we did not talk about an overpass but,
rather, an underpass at Nurrenbern Rd. to get into that. We
appreciate your concerns here and we want to work with you. But
there is no rush here. The losers would be the people involved.
We want to do what is best for the area. We also want to realize
that we have financial constraints, as well. I will assure you
that there is no move afoot to do anything here that is
clandestine or something that is in any way going to be injurious
to the people of the area. We appreciate your concerns and we're
going to proceed in a very careful fashion so that the problems
of the Becker Parkway are not going to be compounded by whatever
we do here."”

Mrs. James commented, "Mr. Borries, we're not making any
suggestions that...."

Mr. Borries interjected, "Well, any emotionalism, Mrs. James; at
times these things come on. But we're all thick-skinned. I just
want to assure you that for the record, there is no move afoot
here to do anything that would not be beneficial to the people of
the west side and, in particular, Union Township."

Mrs. James said, "Well, we did not suggest that. Anyway, may I
ask one question? Who has the final say -- is it County Council
or City Council -- who has the final say regarding the funding?
This is confusing to me. But it was my understanding that County
Council would have the final say."

Commissioner Borries responded, "In regards to funding, the
County Council would have the final say. However, before the
project itself moves forward, it would be this Commission as the
Executive Body that would have to give the approval, subject to
the funding. Again, as I would see it, the funding is a major
thing and what we would want to look at is to modify our TIP to
put it inside the urbanized area to see if we could qualify for
State or Federal funding -- before we did that. Again, we cannot
do that on Nurrenbern Rd4."

Mrs. James said, "At one time, the initial group that started the
drive for the underpass was a group out on Schmuck Rd. which is
outer township -- and they were the ones that started the initial
course of action and we felt they were going to be the ones who
would have the least access to fire equipment. But when they
came to one of our meetings, they indicated that one house was
literally burned down while they were waiting for trains to cross
and the fire department to get there."

Commissioner Borries said, "Well, residents have told us that it

was not only the fire -- regardless of whatever response time --
they still often would face that possibility as far out as they
live -- but they were primarily concerned about emergency

services and felt through the emergency ALS providers (Alexander
Ambulance Service) that that was a much better route than any
other route that they saw at the time. So they were most
concerned (if they had to prioritize things) that as rapidly as
things burn, they were more concerned about the ALS service
delivery than they were at this point about the fire. But that
was discussed and brought up as a concern in a meeting which,
again, is something we want to look at and of which we were
aware. Andy, would you liKe to make comments at this time?"

Mr. Easley said, "I'd like to comment on a couple of statements
that were made. I don't recall discussing Claremont with the
West Side Improvement Association. Claremont was brought up
during a discussion in a meeting our engineers had with CSX

engineers at their headquarters down on Broadway -- and I said I
was sure the Commissioners and the Board of Works would not be in
favor of any discussion re closing of Claremont -- and that is

all I said. I think the minutes will reflect that -- and I gave
you all a copy of the minutes. I didn't even want that to get to
anybody else except the Commissioners and our engineers. Hayes,
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Seay, Mattern & Mattern have submitted the preliminary plans to
CSX and I will pursue trying to get some kind of commitment from
them that they are not going to ask that Claremont be closed.
But it will probably take several weeks for this to come back
officially -~ and we will all probably expect them to propose
it. It was never brought up in any preliminary discussions
between my office and the railroad. The comment about the detour
on Broadway is, I think, just a misunderstanding. Yes, there
will be a detour. The road is going to be shifted about 25 ft.
to the east on SIGECO's property. It will probably never be
closed -- it will always be open. I may have said that during
the construction of the road in front of the houses on B Street,

when you go to excavate and construct a new pavement -- maybe
they can do it half at a time -- but I see problems in allowing
people to park in front of their houses -- but maybe it can be

done. There will be 18 ft. of pavement; but you really can't go
in there and park at right angles or park parallel without
backing out a block -- and I think it can be done much faster if
they get in there, dig it, and let them back on it in a 10 day
period. But we will have to write the specs and see what your
wishes are and see what is feasible. When they build a new road”
in front of a house or sometimes a sewer, you do have to walk for
a short period of time. If there are no questions, that is all I
have to say."

The Chair entertained questions of Mr. Easley. There being none,
Commissioner Borries said, "We thank you very much for your
concern in this matter and personally want to assure you that we
are not in any kind of a rush situation here where we are going
to take steps to endanger anyone or seriously restrict their
quality of life without looking at the whole project and what is
going on. The need has been there and that is why we proceeded
with this project -- because we thought it was going to be a good
thing and help solve a problem that had been created previously
for the people of Union Township -- and that is the way we want
to proceed. But we certainly don't want to harm or endanger or
create other problems until we have it worked out -- and we want
to assure you of that. Thank you for your interest and for
coming,.”

RE: VANDERBURGH AUDITORIUM - KIM BIT3Z

Plastic Telephone Book covers: Mr. Bitz passed around one of the
new plastic telephone book covers which contains an advertisement
re Vanderburgh Auditorium. He said this was paid for out of the

Convention Bureau funding program in behalf of the Auditorium.

Request to Go on July Council Call: Mr. Bitz submitted request
to go on July Council Call in the amount of $1,040.00 for
clothing allowance. The amount put in the budget last year was
same amount requested for the prior year and this was put in the
budget before the contract with the Teamsters was negotiated. He
needs this amount of money to make up the balance in that account
for the rest of the year.

Motion to approve the request, as presented, was made by
Commissioner Cox, with a second from Commissioner Willner. So
ordered.

It was noted by Mr. Bitz that the Auditorium continues to show an
increase in revenue ($3,062.20 increase from January - May over
last year). They also continue to show additional savings in the
area of utilities.

Sewer Problems: Mr. Bitz presented the Commissioners with the
following memorandum:

June 1, 1987

TO: County Commissioners
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Dear Commissioners:

This Saturday's downpour of rain has prompted me to
write to you concerning a problem we have with sewer drainage
around the facility. Whenever we have a heavy rain such as
the one on this Saturday, the sewer on the Walnut Street side
of the building backs up, flooding the street. As a result
of this sewer not being able to handle the water flow
(sometimes on even moderate rains) the toilets in the Walnut
Lobby and Green Room, the water fountain in the Walnut Lobby,
and the sinks and floor drains in the kitchen, and the
toilets across from the kitchen all back up and overflow.
This creates a terrible mess and a most unpleasant odor. The
sewer department has been notified in the past and, to my
knowledge, they have done everything they can to insure the
sewer lines are open.

I have discussed this problem with the Advisory Board
President, and it is a recommendation that the Commissioners
write a letter to the appropriate city officials asking that _
this storm sewer's capacity to handle the volume of water it
receives be examined and that if replacement is needed, that
it be incorporated in the city's future storm sewer plans as
soon as possible. Thank you for your assistance in this
matter.

Sincerely,
Kim Patrick Bitz

cc: Commissioners
Advisory Board

It was the consensus of the Commissioners that the letter be
written to the appropriate city officials, as requested.

Naturalization Ceremonies:

Mr. Bitz then presented the following

letter from Judge Gene Brooks of the U. S. District
Court/Southern District of Indiana:

~J

May 4, 1987

Mr. Kim Bitz, Manager

Vanderburgh Auditorium

715 Locust Street
Evansville IN 47708

Re: BHolding Naturalization Ceremonies
in Auditorium

Dear Mr. Bitz:

Mr. James Greenfield, my courtroom deputy, has advised

me that he has discussed with you the availability of the

auditorium in holding our naturalization ceremonies on
September 17, 1987.

Normally, such ceremonies are held in the courtroom,

but because of the celebration of the 200th year of the

signing of the Constitution, we felt it appropriate to
secure a larger room in order that more of the public could

witness the swearing in of some fifty new citizens.

The event is being sponsored by the local Bar

Association, the VFW, DAR, and the American Legion. We
wpuld appreciate being afforded an exempt status with

regard to rental payment, if this is possible, and con-
firming the availability of the space on September 17,
1987.

Thank you for your cooperation.
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Yours truly,

Gene E.Brooks
Chief Judge

cc: Immigration and Naturalization Service
The Chair entertained a motion.

Motion was made by Commissioner Willner that the request be
approved, with a second from Commissioner Cox. So ordered.

It was noted by Commissioner Borries that the Commissioners will
respond to Judge Brooks' request.

RE: COUNTY ATTORNEY - CURT JOHN

Agreement between Commissioners & Mrs. Connie Davis: Attorney
Curt John said the only matter of business he has to bring before
the Board today is the agreement between the Commissioners and _
Mrs. Connie Davis regarding her recommendations re the operations
of Hillcrest-Washington Home. The Commissioners retained her as
a Consultant and adopted the Resolution several meetings ago
authorizing this Board to enter into said agreement. Mrs. Davis
has already signed the agreement. It is his recommendation that
the Commissioners execute the agreement and attach a copy to the
blue claim, prior to presenting for payment.

Commissioner Borries said that the agreement would take place and
could be moved in this fashion now that Mrs. Davis is no longer
an employee of Vanderburgh County. This sum ($4,500.00) would
suffice from the standpoint of the loss of income she incurred
while serving as Acting Director of Hillcrest-Washington Home and
also would be much less than the County Council had appropriated
in the consulting account for Hillcrest Home at the time the
matter was discussed. She did prepare not only specifications,
but worked in great detail re the staffing of the home as well as
the recommendations that were given to the Board of Commissioners
on various occasions for their study as they looked at the
direction of the home. As of today, it is now under contract --
being operated by the Southwestern Mental Health Center.

The Chair entertained comments, questions, or a motion.
Motion to approve and sign the agreement and that a blue claim be
prepgreq and signed by the Commissioners end—that—the

éaid this would finalize any agreement that the Commissioﬁers had
with the Council. So ordered.

RE: COUNTY HIGHWAY - BILL BETHEL

Weekly Work Report/County Garage: Mr. Bethel submitted copies of
the Weekly Work Report for employees at the County Garage for
period of May 25 thru May 29, 1987.......report received and
filed.

Attached to the Work Report was the following Work Schedule:

Gradall: Oak Hill, Eastview and Peerless
Paved: Heinlein, Wedeking and Walnut
Mower: Lynn Rd., Pollack, Mill Rd., Mesker Park,

#6 School Rd., Upper Mt. Vernon Rd., Kansas Rd.,
0ld state Rd., Diefenbach and Boehne Camp Rd.

Patched: Tree Top Lane, Koring Rd., Little Schaefer RAd.,
Darmstadt, Springdale, Cunningham, 6730 0ld State
Rd., St. George Rd. and Green River Rd.
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Tree Crew: 7500 Outer Lincoln Avenue and Folz Rd.

Weekly Work Report/Bridge Crew: Also submitted for the same
period was the Weekly Work Report for the Bridge Crew, as
followS.......report received and filed.

- Repaired guard rail on Calf Lane.

- Cut weeds on Kentucky Avenue, Christ Rd., Oak Hill Rd.
and St. George Rd.

- Cut weeds and repaired Ohio Street Bridge and cut weeds
on 014 State Rd.

- Repaired culvert on Green River Rd.
Weekly Absentee Reports: Also submitted for the same period were

the Weekly Absentee Reports for both employees at the County
Garage and the Bridge Crew.......reports received and filed.

-

Letter from Oak Hill Church of Christ: Mr. Bethel proceeded by
reading the following letter, which he received last week:

‘Recently some of your men cleaned out a ditch and installed
a driveway culvert and repaired some drainage pipes in the
property of the Oak Hill Church of Christ. This was done at
the request of Cecil Sills, an employee of the County.

My purpose in writing this is to express sincere appreciation
to the workers and anyone else who deserves our thanks. Your
men were courteous and efficient in carrying out their
duties. On behalf of the entire congregation, I sincerely
thank you.

H

Bobby Wedding, Minister

Request for VCR Camera/Recorder: Mr. Bethel said that as the
work report shows, they had the gradall out on Peerless Rd. They
cut down some fields on a curve. They had the full cooperation
of SIGECO on this project. He took before and after photos and
he wants to share those with the Commissioners.

Continuing, Mr. Bethel said Sears & Roebuck is selling out in the
North Park area. He has a discount card there for 10% discount
on anything they have. They have a VCR camera that was $1,300.00
and they now have it marked down to $800.00, and the price will
be dropped again today. He can get his 10% discount on that --
which he would do for the County Garage. He can get a VCR unit
to play back through for approximately $250.00 right now and that
price will probably be dropped again today. He has a T.V. he can
bring to show VCR tapes and he can get by with that. This would
be a very good thing for records. 1In fact, he has a VCR tape of
Andy Easley going over the Pigeon Creek Log Jam and he thinks the
Commissioners would like to see it; it is very clear.

Commissioner Cox asked if Mr. Bethel has the funds?

He responded that he can transfer them around some way; he has
nothing set up for this, but he can get it out of office supplies
account.

Commissioner Borries said that for instructional value, he would
think that Jerry Schenk would also be interested in conducting
various training sessions (as he does anyway) for Mr. Bethel's
crew.

Mr. Bethel said that as he told Mr. Willner, when they went to
the road school, just about all of it is done on video tape; they
talked to some of those engineers and they said they would rent
the tapes to Mr. Bethel and send them down here. It does have a
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lot of good purposes. With the reduced prices at Sears, if we're
going to get the camera, etc., now would be the time to get it.

Motion that the County Highway Superintendent be authorized to
purchase with available funds a VCR camera and recorder was made
by Commissioner Cox, with a second from Commissioner Willner. So
ordered.

Olmstead Road Situation: Commissioner Borries said he had talked
with Mr. Bethel earlier (and Andy Easley may be aware) re some
residents who had called about the Olmstead Road situation.

These residents lived on the eastern part of 0ld Boonville
Highway in Vanderburgh County, which has now been cut off by the
construction on I-164. They were unaware that Olmstead Road was
going to be closed and they are still unsure as to any lengths of
time that it will be closed. They are concerned because,
obviously, it is a nice area -- not much traffic on it now. But
for emergency purposes (fire emergency vehicles, etc., and their
own safety in getting there). They wanted to express their
concerns about the closing of Olmstead Rd. Mr. Borries said he
drove out there Saturday and he can sure understand that if you ~
are going east on Morgan Avenue (which becomes S.R. 66),to get to
their place now, you have to turn on Telephone Rd. -- and that is
a heck of a turn-back (left) which means there is not a real
blister (he didn't notice a blister when he turned). He was
worried about the traffic behind him and whether he was signaling
correctly. But in driving to Olmstead it looked as though the
State Highway or whoever the construction firm was had just put a
dirt barrier there (probably for the use of heavy construction
vehicles going over the road).

Mr. Bethel interjected, "This is actually how I see Olmstead --
heavy construction equipment going across the road.”

Mr. Borries continued, "It looked to me as though the pavement
was o.k. It looked like the structure over Olmstead is now
finished, so they were questioning why they had closed Olmstead
Rd. For the record, he wanted to bring the matter up to see if
we can get some clarification because he can understand their
concerns. The other way, you'd end up by Stevenson Station.

Mr. Bethel said you could come in through Telephone Rd. (We
paved that.) Pointing to the map, he said people could come in
there, and from there back this way you could come straight out
-- to Burkhardt Rd. But from there if you had to go back, you've
got to go all the way back Olmstead and go toward Chandler, IN.
They had that blocked off under that overpass at Olmstead. He
drove over that yesterday and you can get under it; while you're
not supposed to, people are going under the overpass and it is
bad with all those nice homes and everything back there. He
doesn't understand -- but maybe Andy can tell us why they blocked
off Olmstead Rd. Why did they just take dirt and block it off?

Mr. Borries said all he can see there is the movement of
construction vehicles across the road. It looks like a small
dirt mound.

Mr. Easley said they are taking crawler tractors across it and
that is to protect the pavement.

Mr. Borries said he is just wondering how long they are going to
have it closed? These people called the Sheriff's Department and
the Sheriff's Department referred them to the Commissioners. He
just wasn't aware that they had closed off Olmstead Rd.

Commissioner Cox asked, "Usually they notify us when they do --
don't they?"

Mr. Bethel said, "If I'm not mistaken, I think we did get a
notice that they were going to close that road."
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Commissioner Borries said, "I guess the question is -— if they
are going to close it, is there some way we can alternate this
for the safety of the people? Do they have to have both of them
closed at the same time? It looks to me as though 0ld Boonville
is going to be closed a long time."

Mr. Easley asked, "Is Olmstead permanently closed? It doesn't go
over or under the road, does it?"

Mr. Borries replied, "It goes under the structure. The structure
has already been completed; the beams aren't finished, but the
structure itself...."

Mr. Easley said, "I had a conversation with the engineer out
there and evidently something was in the way. He said that if
they moved it out of the way they could get through. And he said
they would try to get it open shortly. That was about a month
and a half ago. This is the first I've heard about it since
then."

Mr. Bethel said, "We'll call them and have an answer tomorrow."

Commissioner Willner said, "Write them a letter and tell them we
must have that road open period."

Mr. Borries asked, "It is not supposed to be closed permanently,
is it?"

Mr. Easley said, "It is an overpasS...."”

Mr. Borries said, "They are going to have to set the base of the
structure with the concrete on the top yet."

Mr. Bethel said, "It is already set."”

Mr. Willner asked, "That bridge is already done, isn't it, Andy?
The beams have been over Olmstead for two months."

There was some question as to whether or not the deck had been
poured. Mr. Easley pointed out that if it has not, they can pour
the deck from above.

Commissioner Borries asked that Mr. Easley write a letter
expressing our concern and see if there is some way this can be
opened as quickly as possible. Again, also reinforce the aspect
that they communicate with us. Margie is very good -- and our
office is always very good -- that if we have road closings the
media is very cooperative from time to time. It is either in
print or you will hear on the radio what roads are closed -- for
the convenience of the motorists. It is a little embarrassing
when you get calls and you've had no communication at all. Had
we known the road was going to be closed, we could have
communicated with those people and they are concerned that it
might be a permanent kind of thing.

RE: COUNTY ENGINEER ~ ANDY EASLEY

"B" Street Underpass: Mr. Easley presented a copy of a letter
from Hayes, Seay, Mattern & Mattern, wherein they forwarded the
preliminary plans to the CSX Engineer of Bridges. This
summarizes what they received and contains a few other comments.

Claim/United Consulting Engineers: Claim presented in the amount
of $16,170.00 for work on Green River Rd. during month of May.
Mr. Easley said the claims is in accordance with their
engineering agreement and it is his recommendation that it be
paid.
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Motion to approve the claim for payment was made by Commissioner
Willner, with a second from Commissioner Cox. So ordered. Mrs.
Cox said she notes they are now 80% complete. We gave them some
extra money in order to do some things. Do we have this much
money in the account?

Mr. Easley replied in the affirmative, saying we have a
considerable amount of money in the account.

Concrete Culvert System/Rollet Lane: Mr. Easley said he guesses
he has never brought a requisition to the Commissioners for the
concrete culvert system on Rollet Lane. We have the right-of-way
for the channel change and he has agreement from Mr. Lutz and his
neighbor (Mr. Gatewood) that they will grant a temporary
run—around over that driveway (that Mrs. Cox suggested he try to
get). Mr. Gatewood has not yet signed the agreement; but he is
confident enough he will sign it that he thinks we should now
order the system. He still needs a couple of quotes on who is
going to erect them. But he would like the Commissioners'
permission to order the 32 lineal feet of precast concrete
culvert at $500.00 per ft. 1In response to query from
Commissioner Willner, Mr. Easley said delivery should be within
no more than four weeks. Unless they find someone else who can
supply it, he suspects it will come from Louisville. This will
all be done in accordance with the State Board of Accounts
guidelines re purchasing.

Commissioner Willner asked who is going to install it?

Mr. Easley responded that he does not yet know who is going to
install it. He will try to have that answer for the Board within
a week.

Mr. Willner said, "I would just like to know before we order
these parts.”

Mr. Easley said, "It won't be shipped until we tell them to ship
it, because we have to get the foundations in. He just wants to
go ahead and order them so they will start the manufacture of
same.,"

Motion to authorize Mr. Easley to proceed with ordering the
culvert system was made by Commissioner Willner, with a second
from Commissioner Cox. So ordered.

Commissioner Cox asked if we're going to be taking any dirt out
of there?

Mr. Easley said we are scooting the channel possibly 15 ft. to
the south and there will probably be some dirt to be hauled away.

Mrs. Cox asked if the gentleman on Red Bank Rd. who experienced

the fire in his area (whatever it is -- she doesn't want to call
it a landfill) -- could we have an understanding from this Board
that the dirt fill be hauled there?

Commissioners Borries and Willner verbally indicated their
agreement.

Street Plans/Green River Estates & Oak View Place: Mr. Easley
asked whether the Commissioners have had an opportunity to review
the street plans for Green River Estates & Oak View Place? They
would like to have these approved so they can proceed with the
construction of the streets. He doesn't think it is necessary to
have them approved to get their plat recorded, but he thinks Mrs.
Cunningham likes to know that the plans meet with the
Commissioners' approval.

Commissioner Cox said that with regard to Green River Estates,
Section 'C', it says in the upper lefthand corner that "Storm
Drainage Plans have been approved by Vanderburgh County Drainage
Board on May 27, 1986". We did give approval to the conceptual
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design; but the final approval -- she thought this Board directed
Mr. Fuqguay to come back to the Board with a final set of plans in
several weeks. She has not seen the final drainage plans.
Someone has marked on the street plans that they were approved
May 27, 1986.

Mr. Easley asked if the milars go to the Drainage Board or to his
office? His office has been getting the conceptual design from
Bill Jeffers, Chief Deputy Surveyor, and checking it against what
is submitted.

Mrs. Cox asked if they have submitted final drainage plans and
whether they have been checked?

Mr. Easley responded in the affirmative.
Mrs. Cox asked if they were checked by the Surveyor's Office?

Mr. Easley replied, "No; the Surveyor's Office handed us the
conceptual design and asked us to compare it to the improvement
plans that came in."

Mrs. Cox said, "So they have not submitted their drainage plans
as requested by the Board?"

Commissioner Borries asked that approval of the street plans be
deferred for one more week while some clarification is obtained,
if that is the wish of the Board.

In response to query from Commissioner Willner, Commissioner Cox
said the Board has never seen the final drainage plans for either
subdivision. She believes Commissioner Willner is the one who
instructed both developers to come back to the Board with the
final drainage plans. At least, this is what she has in her
notes. With regard to Green River Estates (and Mr. Willner will
recall this) Commissioner Willner was very concerned about it.
Remember the lawsuit before she and Commissioner Borries came on
the Commission about the mud spilling out on Green River Rd.?
Commissioner Willner said he wanted to make sure that that water
was going to be trapped there and had a culvert and not spill out
on the road? We have not seen those plans.

Commissioner Willner said Mrs. Cox is right -- there was a
million dollar lawsuit.

Mrs. Cox said the Board has not seen the drainage plans - and a
lot of times you can't see what is there on the street plans.

RE: COUNTY TREASURER — MONTHLY INTEREST REPORT

President Borries presented the Monthly Interest Report through
June 1, 1987, which had been submitted by the County
Treasurer......report received and filed. (Copy attached
hereto.)

RE: TRAVEL REQUESTS

County Clerk/Helen Kuebler: Request to attend State Board of
Accounts Meeting in Indianapolis on June 16, 1987. This concerns
the New Single Fee Bill 1163 which goes into effect July 1, 1987.

Motion to approve the request was made by Commissioner Willner,
with a second from Commissioner Cox. So ordered.

Union Twp. Assessor: Request to attend the Indiana Assessor's
Association Instructional Seminar on June 22-24 in Indianapolis.

Motion to approve the request was made by Commissioner Cox, with
a second from Commissioner Willner. So ordered.

Armstrong Twp. Assessor: Request to attend the Indiana
Assessor's Association Instructional Seminar on June 22-24 in
Indianapolis.
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Motion to approve the request was made by Commissioner Cox, with
a second from Commissioner Willner. So ordered.

RE: CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE

Wm. J. & Hazel Koewler & Plaza, Inc.: Bierstube June 19, 20, 25,
26, 27 and July 2, 3, and 4. Rain dates are July 10 and 11l.
(Courthouse Lawn).

Y.M.C.A./Evansville: Thunder Run Classic on June 27, 1987.

RE: OLD BUSINESS

Pulse Computer Systems, Inc./Request to go on Council Call:

The meeting continued with President Borries reading the
following letter from Pulse, Inc.:

June 1, 12987

Rick Borries, President
Vanderburgh County Commissioners
Civic Center Complex

Evansville, IN 47708

Dear Rick,

As you know, in October 1986, it became apparent that, due to
the increased demand being placed on the computer system from
new applications and greater utilization by various
departments, upgrading action by March 1987 was imperative.
P.C.S. implemented several short-run temporary solutions, but
the situation is definitely critical at this point in time.
We strongly recommend an immediate decision concerning the
system upgrades.

You will f£ind enclosed a copy of the system upgrade
information packet sent to the individual members of the
City/County Data Processing Review Board on May 4, 1987. The
cost figures in Attachment #1 have been recalculated to
reflect monthly expenditure over an eighteen (18) month term
as opposed to a nineteen (19) month term in the initial
correspondence.

In closing, I wish to reiterate that the system is capable of
further expansion upon completion of the currently proposed

upgrades.
Thank you.
Sincerely,
James A, Gager
Vice President
President Borries said the figures they had given to him -- we

are now in terms of our user fee 66% of the total capacity of the
mainframe and the main hardware. Our cost for the remainder of
this year (and this includes additional disk capability, disk
controller, etc.) would be $23,142.00.. Getting clarification
from Jim Gager this morning, this gets us through the rest of the
contract we would have with Pulse, subject to whatever "wants" to
be done at that time. But we would be able to add additional
functions and there have been many things added onto it. It is
just the inevitability of growth. For the remainder of the year
then, we would have to ask Council for $23,142.00. This is
everything that we would need. We would also have to reflect an
additional amount of money as we budget for 1988, But this would
get us through this year. We simply are going to have to do this
if we want to expand. As he points out, you could end up with a
huge mainframe and nothing on it, but you would be paying for
that
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kind of thing literally. So now we are at a point where we have
to add on -- and this would get us through the remainder of the
contract.

Mr. Borries said he did not get this directly, but Sam Humphrey
(County Audiitor) had been on it, and there is other
correspondence. We've expanded; we've survived at this point.
What is ahead we will have to look at in the future. At this
time, he does need the Board's consideration concerning this
request or we won't be able to do anything else -- and it might
be critical with the reassessment. For us to do this, we'd have
to get on July Council Call and request their approval.

Motion was made by Commissioner Cox that the Commissioners go on
Council Call in the amount of $23,142.00 to meet the commitment
for expanded programs with Pulse Computer Systems, Inc., with a
second from Commissioner Willner. (He noted, however, that prior
to Council Call date he would like to conduct further study.)
Commissioner Borries said there is a Data Processing Review Board
that is functional -- Leslie Blenner, Sara Cooper, Fred Dormeier,
Harold Elliott, Sam Humphrey, Betty Lou Jarboe, Helen Kuebler,
Frank McDonald, William Jones, Jerry Niehaus, and Robert Pigman.
County Auditor Sam Humphrey said we are in the process of hiring
an in-house omnibus-man to overlook programming and interfacing.

Commissioner Willner said he would like to give the
above-mentioned committee that recommendation.

Commissioner Borries said the committee is meeting. Our contract
with Pulse expires on December 31, 1988 and we certainly can
probably get a list of all the added functions that have been put
on in the area of rapid change. Like everything, we are just
going to have to see what is ahead; whether we need to buy;
whether we need to continue to lease or what.

Commissioner Cox said, "When we signed that contract with them,
we said this is what we want. They gave us a contract based on
what we said we wanted at that time. But our needs and wants
have changed and they have added on to accommodate some of these
things. Area Plan is on there -- they came on in what --
December 1986? I didn't know Area plan was on the computer. And
they are, with four things. What they are doing now is to adjust
the contract to reflect these increased uses. Pat Tuley is on
there, too."

Auditor Humphrey said, "We're going to ask for $275.00 additional
programming probably next month."

Commissioner Willner said, "What is the accrual system going to
do to our computer? I tell you, there are a million and one
questions I want to ask. That is why I want this committee to go
ahead andeece."

Commissioner Borries said, "The accrual system won't be affected
by this, Bob. I don't think we'll get it operational that fast
—-- by the remainder of the contract.”

Auditor Humphrey said the accrual system will affect only a small
segment of the programming —— and it will give us more accurate,
concise reports.

Commissioner Borries asked if the program that the Treasurer's
Office is on comes through this whole system?

Mr. Humphrey verified that it does.

Commissioner Borries said, "That is impressive; you've got
everything right there."

Commissioner Willner asked, "What about the reassessment?"
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Commissioner Borries said that is all going to be handled under
the neweeeos."”

Auditor Humphrey interjected, "But, hopefully, that can be
interfaced. Whatever hardware you buy to handle that should be
addressed. But right now I'm going to ask for $275.00 for a
simple program change. The purpose of it is to specifically
identify all of the inputs that go into my office -- so if we
have an error show up, I know exactly where it came from., As it
is now, we've got township people; we have our transfer people,
etc. When we correct an error, we don't know who is responsible
and we're trying to tie it down. We've had a series of things,
which ended with a termination today -- where I have a pile of
errors -- and we try to balance our account with the Treasurer's
Office on our assessments.”

Commissioner Borries said, "Anytime you have rapid growth and
change you're going to have lots of problems and I just hope we
can solve them and look ahead to the future on this. But this
system has grown by leaps and bounds and at this point I think we
have at least improved our services in many areas -- the Courts, .
the Sheriff, the Clerk, etc.

Nonetheless, the $23,142 is the amount we need to go on Council
Call for in July and there will be other amounts to be added when
preparing the 1988 budget requests."”

Green River Rd. South Proposals: Commissioner Cox asked whether
the Board has received any recommendations concerning the
proposals received on Green River Rd. South, which were opened
last week?

President Borries said he has nothing.

In response to query from Commissioner Borries, Mr. Easley said
EUTS has the proposals and he has not seen them.

Mrs. Cox asked, "Why is EUTS doing all this? I go to see my
daughter for three days and don't get back for a meeting and —- I
don't understand this. I thought the County Commissioners were
the ones who are supposed tOeee.."

Mr. Easley said, "I think EUTS ran the advertisement that we're
interested in getting proposals and the proposals came to the
Commissioners; but apparently they were collected and given to
EUTS.

Commissioner Borries said, "They were —-- for their
recommendations.”

Commissioner Willner noted, "This Board had never even said we
were going to do the project. I think we signed the TIP program
one time and it was on there.,"

Commissioner Borries and Mr. Easley said that it is on the TIP
program. Mr. Easley said it is his understanding that Rose
Zigenfus got the City to agree that the County would be the lead
agency. It is a 50-50 project.

Commissioner Borries said he did talk with Rose about that, just
like on Covert Avenue -- and there was one other one that
bordered the city-county limits and he felt we ought to go ahead
and be the lead agency on this.

Commissioner Cox said "Well, I'm glad we're moving on it."

Mr. Easley said, "Apparently the access that I-164 has to South
Green River Rd. -- it needs to get in the program.”

Commissioner Borries explained, "So that is where we are with it
-- it's just a procedure but we've not made any decision to award
a contract or anything. But we do need a report."
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Lynch Rd. Project: Comissioner Cox asked whether we have
received an answer from Mrs. Ryan concerning the replacement
hardwood forest on the Lynch Rd.project?

Mr. Easley said it has only been about ten days since he talked
with her. She had promised to get back to him within two weeks.

Mrs. Cox said she believed she mentioned at the last meeting that
the State did accept this different route. Do we have plans
drawn showing the route they accepted? Do we have the contour
maps, etc.of that now?

Mr. Easley said, "We plotted it on a transparency of the aerial
photographs, showing the centerline on the sectionline as the
easterly prolongation of the centerline of Lynch Rd. That is
what everybody has been dealing with and they have approved that
concept.”

Mrs. Cox asked, "Does Mr. Funke have that? 1Is it still going to_
take 170 ft. out of that subdivision?"

Mr. Easley said he didn't bring the file; but it has the legal
description that our consultants (Bernardin, Lochmuller) have
studied. They have looked at the planometric maps -- which are
the maps that have the contour lines on them -- and we are coming
off that hill on Oak Hill Rd., and they have projected that it
will take 170 ft. out of that subdivision. He said he will go
get his map to verify this if Mrs. Cox would like.

Mrs. Cox asked, "You do not have any new maps? You just made an
overlay to send up to the State?

Mr. Easley responded, "We made the overlay. We did not send the
legal description and sketch prepared by Bernardin, Lochmueller.
They made that for me at my request and they said we could
proceed and they can get by for Lynch Rd. off of that Fox Pointe
Subdivision with that parcel."

Mrs. Cox said "Well, we want to make sure Mr. Funke can get by.
He has a meeting set up at 9:30 Friday morning. In between now
and then, can you please check with him to make sure?”

Mr. Easley said, "I personally put it in an envelope and marked
it for Vic Funke and he picked it up from my office.”

Mrs. Cox said, "Just make sure it is the right one, because there
was some question as to whether he did or did not have the right
one."

Mr.'Easley said, "He has the one that Tom Bernardin gave me."

0ld State Rd. Railroad Bridge/Washout: Commissioner Cox said the
railroad bridge out on 0ld State Rd. has some washouts around

it. She received a call from a property owner and he was very
concerned. He said that while they are doing that work out there
that there really needs to be a culvert put .cec..

Mr. Easley said he is smiling because they heard about this. The
man called him and he asked him to call Lee Stucki and check to
see whether the county really needed to have the ditch piped. He
asked if Mr. Bethel wants to comment on this?

Mr. Bethel said the man has to buy the pipe and the county will
install it.

Commissioner Willner said that is the way it has always been.

Mr. Bethel said they are working on that right now.
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RE: SCHEDULED MEETINGS

Wed. June 3 2:30 p.m. County Council Mtg.
Wed. June 3 6:00 p.m. Area Plan Meeting

RE: PUBLIC AUCTION - COUNTY-OWNED SURPLUS EQUIPMENT

It was announced by President Borries that a Public Auction of
County-Owned Surplus Equipment will be held on Saturday June 6th,
beginning at 10:00 a.m. at St. Joe Avenue & Mill Rd. Curran
Miller will conduct the auction.

RE: CLAIMS

Larry Faulkenburg: Claim in the amount of $102.00 for Permit Fee
Refund (7089V).

Motion to approve the claim for payment was made by Commissioner
Willner, with a second from Commissioner Cox. So ordered.

Ralph A. Easley, Jr.: Claim in the amount of $85.00 for travel
expense to attend meeting in Indianapolis on May 13th with IDOH
representatives (along with Rose Zigenfus) concerning
Eickhoff-Koressel Rd. project.

Commissioner Cox said this was never discussed in a public
meeting and Mr. Easley never asked permission to travel in a
public meeting.

Commissioners Willner and Borries said, however, that it was
discussed and Mr. Easley did request permission and it was
granted. (Discussion and permission to travel is reflected in
Commissioners' minutes of May 11, 1987.)

Mrs. Cox apologized.

Motion to approve the claim was made by Commissioner Willner,
with a second from Commissioner Cox. So ordered.

RE: LYNCH RD. PROJECT

Discussion continued on the Lynch Rd. project and Fox Pointe
Subdivision. Mr. Easley had retrieved the overlay/map from his
office.

Commissioner Willner asked if Guthrie May is still going to be
able to get two rows of homes in there?

Mr. Easley said the planner had parallel lines on the map and
they even widened the parallel lines a bit -- and drew them
parallel to the sectionlines.

Commissioner Willner asked if Mr. Easley knows what Guthrie May
is going to do now?

Mr. Easley said he does not know. Neither Sam Biggerstaff nor
Don Blume have indicated what they are going to do.

Mr. Willner said they have too many houses for that.....

Mr. Easley said he was hoping they would cut the depth of the
lots down and still not lose any lots.

Commissioner Willner said there are too many there anyhow.
Commissioner Cox said, "Now, wait a minute. We've seen them come
in with 180 on them that weren't much bigger than this. You know
how much the frontage was that we just approved for Bussing's
project down on the riverfront? Did you look at those lot sizes?

Commissioner Borries said, "Those are zero lot lines...."
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Mrs. Cox said, "That doesn't make any difference. At least these
are 60 ft. I don't think those were over 20 or 30 ft. Anyway,
Guthrie May will have to redesign the whole thing and let's hope
it comes out prettier then."

In response to query from Commissioner Borries as to why they are
losing 170 ft. in the subdivision, Mr. Easley said the fill. BHe
explained that they are coming off this high hill and we have to
have a vertical curve to meet design speed requirements and it
will take one great big fill here -- because it goes up too fast
and they can't just follow the ski jump.

Commissioner Borries said "If we need it, we need to buy it now.
And, Guthrie May will have to submit some revised plans for Fox
Pointe."

Mrs. Cox reiterated, "They will have to."

RE: EMPLOYMENT CHANGES

County Auditor (Releases)

Terri Pace Transfer Clerk $13,440/Yr. Eff: 5/29/87

County Board of Review (Appointments)

Carol Haas Clerk $35.00/Day Eff: 5/26/87
Paul V. Batts Lay Member $45.00/Day Eff: 6/1/87

County Recorder (Releases)

Marjorie C. Keeney Asst. Bkkpr. $13,440/Yr. Eff: 6/5/87

County Recorder (Appointments)

Mary R. Dorsett Asst. Bkkpr. $13,440/Yr. Eff: 6/8/87

Clerk of Circuit & Superior Courts (Releases)

Sandra J. Rust Dep. Clerk $6.00/Hr. Eff: 6/1/87
Doris Schroeder On LOA, unable to return) Eff: 6/5/87
Tracey Lynn Statz Dep. Clerk $514.94/Pay Eff: 5/29/87
Karen Jo Conley M&T Dep. Cl. $514.94/Pay Eff: 5/29/87

Clerk of Circuit & Superior Courts (Appointments)

Kendra Martin Dep. Clerk $6.00/Hr. Eff: 6/1/87
Sandra J. Rust Dep. Clerk $514.94/Pay Eff: 6/1/87
Tracey Lynn Statz M&T Dep. Clk. $514.94/Pay Eff: 6/1/87

Knight Township Assessor (Appointments)

Anna Marie Umbach Deputy $35.00/Day Eff: 5/27/87

Weights & Measures (Releases)

Gary Anderson Deputy $35.00/Day Eff: 5/29/87

Weights & Measures (Appointments)

Gary Anderson Deputy $13,000/Yr. Eff: 6/1/87

Circuit Court (Releases)

Melvin MacGregor P/T Bailiff $5.00/Hr. Eff: 5/8/87
Paul N. Aarstad P/T Intern $4.00/Hr. Eff: 5/1/87

Circuit Court (Appointments)

Jonathan Parkhurst Intern $4.00/Hr. Eff: 5/11/87
Jeffrey T. Shoulders 1Intern $4.00/Hr. Eff: 5/11/87
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Burdette Park (Releases)

Barbara Bain PTGC $4.00/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Mary Kinsey PTGC $4.00/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Shawn Stanley PTGC $4.00/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
John Bippus PTGC $4.00/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Cliff Harth PTGC $4.00/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Perry Gostley Rink Guard $5.00/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Mike Gerard PTGC $4.00/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Burdette Park (Appointments)

Barbara Bain PTGC $4.00/Hr. Eff: 5/21/87
Mary Kinsey PTGC $4.00/Hr. Eff: 5/18/87
Shawn Stanley PTGC $4.00/Br. Eff: 5/18/87
John Bippus PTGC $4.00/Hr. Eff: 5/17/87
Jeffrey Ludwig Slide $3.35/Br. Eff: 5/23/87
Daniel Julian Slide $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Tad Powless Slide $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Beth Hermann Slide (FT) $3.50/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Angela Burmeister Slide $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Denise Strange Slide (FT) $3.50/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Beth Howerton Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Larry Jourdan Slide $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Kevin Seidehamel Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Jill McNaughton Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Maria Anderson Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Ali Minton Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Kendra Stinson Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Kelly Siekmann Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Michael Pruitt Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Doug Kieffner Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Barbara Owens Reg. Guard $3.60/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Matthew Caton Reg. Guard $3.60/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Jennifer Talley Reg. Guard $3.60/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Randy Seidehamel Reg. Guard $3.60/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Amy Helfrik Reg. Guard $3.60/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Sarah Embry Slide $3.35/Hr. Effs 5/23/87
Christy Eickhoff Cashier $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Andrea Thomas Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Shari Mosberger Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Benjamin McCarthy Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Crissy Hancock Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Don Gregory Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Laura Givens Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Effs 5/23/87
Jeff Braun Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Karla Hormuth Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Robert Kirk Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Shauntrece Crider Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Jeffrey Richardt Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Michelle Almon Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Shannon Neidig Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Kelli McElroy Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Jennifer Charles Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Robin Temme Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Joeli Staley Reg. Guard $3.60/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Dona Barton Reg. Guard $3.60/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Elizabeth Borries + Reg Guard $3.60/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Bob Hayes Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Brian Dooley Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/21/87
Stanton Angermeier Ext. Guarf $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Brooke Ranes Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Carol Owens Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Cliff Harth PTGC $4.00/Hr. Eff: 5/16/87
Bryan Austill PTGC $4.00/Hr. Eff: 5/10/87
Cliff Harth Reg. Guarfd $3.60/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Perry Gostley Pool Mgr. $48.00/Day Eff: 5/23/87
Mike Gerard Asst. P.M. $40,00/Day Eff: 5/23/87
Mike Powless Pool Head Guard $37.00/Day Eff: 5/23/87
Greg Topper Asst. PHG $35.00/Day Eff: 5/23/87
Joeli Staley PTGC $4.00/Hr. Eff: 5/17/87
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Burdette Park (Appointments cont'd.)

Dona Barton PTGC $4.00/Hr. Eff: 5/17/87
Elizabeth Borries PTGC $4.00/Hr. Eff: 5/16/87
Bob Hayes PTGC $4.00/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Barbara Bain Slide $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Mary Kinsey Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Shawn Stanley Reg. Guard $3.60/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
John Bippus Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Ken Vielands Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 5/21/87
Karen Williams Reg. Cash. $3.75/Hr. Eff: 5/21/87
Tobin Riney PTGC $3.50/Hr. Eff: 5/23/87
Angela Lawrence Rink Cashier $4.00/Hr. Eff: 5/15/87

During the meeting, Gail Brocksmith of C.A.P.E. was recognized by
the Chair. 1In response to query as to whether she had anything
to bring before the Board, Ms. Brocksmith stated that she was
just attending the session in C.A.P.E.'s behalf to determine
whether there was anything on today's agenda of which they should
be aware. She will periodically attend meetings for this
purpose.

President Borries extended a welcome and encouraged Ms.
Brocksmith not to hesitate to ask questions if there is ever
anything which needs clarification.

There being no further business to come before the Board at this
time, President Borries declared the meeting adjourned at 4:45
p.m.

PRESENT: COMMISSIONERS COUNTY AUDITOR COUNTY ATTORNEY
R. J. Borries Sam Humphrey C. John
R. L. Willner
S. J. Cox

COUNTY HIGHWAY COUNTY ENGINEER AUDITORIUM

Bill Bethel Andy Easley Kim Bitz
OTHER

Ruth Anslinger/Pigeon Twp. Trustee's Office
Pamela Trainer/Poor Relief Applicant

Mrs. Shirley James/West Side Improvement Assn.
Lawrence Lowe/West Side Improvement Assn.

Gail Brocksmith/C.A.P.E.
News Media

SECRETARY: Joanne A, Matthews

“dd [ P

R7cRar§ J. Borries, resigent

Robert L. Willner, Vice President

__SMArley Jean ber



MINUTES
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETIN
. JUNE 8, 1987 o

The Vanderburgh County Board of Commissioners met in session at
2:30 p.m. on Monday, June 8, 1987, in the Commissioners' Hearing
Room with President Rick Borries presiding.

The meeting was called to order by President Borries, who
subsequently welcomed Messrs. William Korb and Harold Frost to
the meeting. He said they are here to discuss the confusion
regarding Lynn/Len & Becker Rd. This matter will be considered
after Item #3 on the agenda (Mr. Ed Johnson, Attorney).

Continuing, Mr. Borries entertained a motion concerning approval -
of the minutes of the previous meeting.

Commissioner Cox said she sees nothing incorrect in the minutes.
However, she did make a motion (recorded on Page 11) based on
some false information. Therefore, she would like to have that
motion clarified at this time. It concerned an appropriation for
an increase for the contractual agreement with Mrs. Connie

Davis. She was under the impression that the County Council had
appropriated money from the County General Fund to meet this
obligation. "However, they did not do that; it was a transfer
within our own budget under our control. I would like to amend
the motion made on Page 11 to approve and sign the agreement and
prepare a blue claim to be signed by the Commissioners.” I

Commissioner Borries said that if it is agreeable with the other
Commissioners, he will simply 'x' out the remaining portion of
that sentence in the minutes. Commissioners Willner and Cox gave
their verbal approval. President Borries said that, as pointed
out by Commissioner Cox, what this does is -- since the money was
in the Hillcrest-Washington budget, it will remain there.

Council had actually allowed a transfer of $10,000.00 and the
Commissioners told them that it was not necessary to do that,
that we were only going to pay Mrs. Davis money that she had lost
in income -- and that is basically what has come about. The
remainder of the money approved for transfer will remain in the
account and could be used by the County to pay for our agreement
with the Southwest Mental Health Foundation Inc. With that
correction, President Borries entertained a motion concerning
approval of the minutes.

Motion was made by Commissioner Cox that the minutes of meeting
held on Monday, June 1, 1987, be approved as amended, as
engrossed by the County Auditor and the reading of same be
waived, with a second by Commissioner Willner. So ordered.

RE: SEWER FOR CARANZA DRIVE & OLD STATE RD.

The Chair recognized Attorney Ed Johnson, Sr. He said that while I
the agenda shows simply Caranza Drive, he would request that 0ld

State Rd. be included, as he has been informed that most of the
violations of the Health Department's regulations occur on 0ld

State Rd.

With him today are Clarence Day(?), Mr. and Mrs. D. E. Smith (who
live on Caranza Drive) and also Fred Sievers. On June 18, 1986.
he wrote a letter to Commissioner Robert Willner. He asked
Commissioners Borries and Cox if they had seen this letter? He
continued by reading same:
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"Dear Mr. Willner,

Mr. & Mrs. D. E. Smith, who reside at 7 Caranza Drive,
have asked the writer to make an official demand for
enforcement of the sanitation laws in their area. You are
aware that raw, untreated septic sewage is discharged on the
surface of lots adjoining or in close proximity to the
Smith's dwelling. The unsavory condition of this area is
a distress to Mr. and Mrs. Smith and to other neighbors, I
am sure, in this vicinity. I spoke with Sam Elder of the
Health Department and he advises me that he is well aware
of the deplorable condition, but is powerless to enforce the
present law by reason of present conditions. Mr. Elder
further advises me that only a sanitary sewer would serve the
needs of the area and that, in fact, Jim Morley had done some
preliminary work with this goal in mind. Nevertheless, Mr.
and Mrs. Smith are extremely exercised about the conditions
they have put up with for more than three years.

The Smiths contemplate action for mandate, private nuisance
and public nuisance and damages. The Smiths are very
tolerant people, but the present conditions destroy the
enjoyment of their home.

I previously have corroborated the seriousness of the
situation by speaking to other persons besides Sam Elder
and the Smiths and all are in agreement that the situation
is intolerable.

This is not an official notice of the Smith's intention to
bring suit but is, however, formal notice of the conditions
and a request for relief. I suggest this letter be made
known to the other Commissioners, although at this time it
is not necessary to make it a matter of record unless you
elect to do so.

With best personal regards I remain,
Very truly yours"

Mr. Johnson continued, "Well, eleven months and three weeks have
gone by and the conditions there are more deplorable than they
were before. Mr. and Mrs. Smith and Mr. Sievers are here to say
just a few words about the conditions. I know Mr. Willner has
been out there. Mr. Borries, have you been there? (Mr. Borries
responded in the negative.) Mrs. Cox have you been there?2"
(Mrs. Cox also responded in the negative.) "Well, you really
ought to go. As I understand it, the smell is intolerable and
destroys the entire use and enjoyment of the premises and
constitutes a substantial health hazard. I am informed by Mr.
Willner that certain steps have been taken by the Commissioners
to initiate a Barrett Law process to have a sanitary sewer placed
in this area, but the work has not been even substantially
completed. 1Is that right Bob? This is what you told me on the
phone?”

Commissioner Willner confirmed that this is correct. He had
asked the County Attorney to research the statute. He is doing
that right now. Mr. Willner said he has also asked the County
Engineer to come down to the meeting as soon as he can. It is
now in his hands to figure a cost estimate for the sanitary sewer
for these 22 houses or so. We should have a report as soon as
both parties arrive.

Mr. Johnson continued, "As we all know, these things take time.
Even if the preliminary work were done -- if you had the report
from the County Engineer as to the cost of each lineal foot of
this sewer, etc., then it has to be published and a public
hearing held and notice given to everybody -- and public hearings
can be continued and, if things were in place, you're probably
looking at 4 to 6 months' legal time. Once you get that taken
care of, we're looking at probably a year (he's guessing at that)
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in engineering time to install the sanitary sewer and bring it
into the Evansville City Sewer System, which is available nearby.
Pending that year or so, the Smiths and Sievers (and he supposes
others in the neighborhood) are unwilling to wait any further.
They are here for a twofold purpose: The first one is immediate
relief; to have the laws of the County enforced, executed and
steps be taken by the violators (and the violators are all known
to the Health Department -- Sam Elder has a record and probably
Bob Willner has a record) -- but have immediate steps taken to
rectify this and immediate steps taken to put the sanitary sewer
in this area. I believe I am informed that all of the other
subdivisions in the area have sanitary sewers. So there are two
things he'd like the Commissioners to act on:

1) Act on giving notice to the violating people there to
cease the discharge of sanitary septic sewage on the
surface of the ground immediately.

2) Ask the County Engineer (or whoever it is who has failed
to provide the necessary information) to act on the
Barrett Law, to do so forthwith and commence the
enactment of the Barrett Law provisions for the
installation of a sanitary sewer.

Mr. Johnson said he thinks Attorney Miller would agree that if
all the legal work were in order today, it would be 4-6 months
before all the publication notices could be given and public
hearings held. There is a lag time on these things.

Attorney Miller said he is not sure that it is that long. He's
looking at the statute now to get all the time frames together.

Attorney Johnson said these people cannot wait any longer.

The Chair recognized Mr. Sievers. He said to summarize the
situation, this ditch runs about 350 ft. through his property.
It's a drainage ditch about two to three feet wide and two or
three feet deep. It is a natural drainage ditch that goes
perhaps a mile up the road. They have some people who have a
septic system tiled into the ditch -- even on his property. The
Commissioners would probably ask, "Why don't you dig it up?" He
could perhaps do this legally, but that probably wouldn't solve
the problem and the sewage has to go someplace. He doesn't even
use the ditch; he has a sanitary sewer system; a septic tank and
field bed and a sand filter. His sand filter overflow does not
go into the ditch at all, even though other people's flows into
the ditch that is on his property (or at least the part of the
ditch that is on his property).

Mr. Smith was then recognized by the Chair. He said he'd like to
bring the Commissioners' attention to a situation where they have
been there for 14 years. They started on this problem in 1985,
because they thought eventually someone would do something about
it. Since they didn't, he approached Mr. Elder and got no
satisfaction. The only thing that really started happening was
that Mr. Johnson wrote Mr. Willner that letter, which was almost
a year ago. Mr, Smith said their home is situated on Caranza
Drive and they are the lowest ones in the area. The rest of them
are on the top of the hill and all of their sewage drains down
into the ditch. When people come home from school, they take a
bath and wash. It flushes out their sewage system through the
pipe layed in Fred Sievers' property. There are also two other

" violators. One cannot pump out his sewage system, because he
built a garage over the top of his sewage tank. The residents
have an area where they cannot go outside unless the wind is
coming from the east period. Any other way -- they get blown
out. They have to fog their whole yard every time they go
outside. People will come to see them for a social visit. The
first thing when they enter the driveway, they start waving their
hands, asking "What is that I smell?" They have come to the end
of their rope and they intend to press this as far as the
statutes of the State of Indiana will let them.
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Attorney Johnson said now that the Commissioners have been made
aware of and understand the problem, he would urge that
Commissioners Borries and Cox take a trip out to Caranza Drive.
Also he wants to say that he doesn't want to leave today's
meeting with the statement that the Barrett Law will be done. He
expects that to be done. But these people need to have some
immediate relief and the laws of the county allow it. The Health
Department can enforce it; the Commissioners can enforce it; and
the County Attorney can enforce it. If necessary he can go to
court and claim private nuisance and ask for a mandate -- but
there is no reason to do that. The powers rest with the three
County Commissioners. They'd like to wait around here....

Commissioner Cox asked, "Is this a subdivision?"

Attorney Johnson said it is a subdivision, Each house was
separately purchased and separately built.

Commissioner Borries asked, "Are each of these lots at least an
acre wide? I assume they must be, in order to have a septic
system out there, right? They must be at least an acre.” -

Attorney Johnson replied, "I'd say they must be close to an acre;
but the acre requirement only went into effect some time back.
Some of the people do not have an acre; others have less than
half an acre. These homes were individually built periodically "

Commissioner Borries asked, "So there was no developer organizing
it at that time? No city water/city sewers, etc.?"

Attorney Johnson responded, "No sir; Mr. Sievers had to put in
the water himself; the gas himself. The same happened on 01ld
Kembell. We have Kembell on the west and 0ld State on the east;
Campground on the north and Caranza to the south. Everything
drains towards Caranza. Mr. Robert Allen from the Health
Department came out and showed him a diagram. There are 53 homes
that can be hooked into this sewer. He had the names of everyone
there. The three violators are still violating."

Attorney Johnson said the big problem now is the pipe going
across Mr. Sievers' property and the sewage coming out of it.
That is the number one problem. The other problem is at 6414 01d
State Rd. The yard is completely black. She has no place else
to dump the sewage. '

Commissioner Cox asked if this is discharging from 6414 or ending
up at 64142

Attorney Johnson said that 6414 is the beginning of the problem
and it comes on down 0ld State Rd.

Commissioner Cox, "But you said her yard was black from the
sewage. But is she....."

" Attorney Johnson said, "6414 discharges in underground pipe. But
about 200-300 feet later it pops out up in Sievers' backyard."

Commissioner Willner said he believes there were even a couple of
houses on Campground Rd., were there not? He asked County
Engineer Andy Easley what he has learned?

Mr. Easley said he supposes it was 90 days ago that Mr. Willner
asked him to investigate helping these people get a sanitary
sewer extension. Lee Stuckey turned over some information to
him. He talked with John Rexing and had a field meeting with
him, He has a preliminary design (and he told Mr. Sievers the
first step was to get a preliminary design to see what the cost
would be). He's had that about two weeks and was thinking of
calling Mr. Sievers tomorrow morning to see what the next step
would be -- whether he wanted to call an informal meeting of
those people so he could present the cost estimate. He c